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PART A:

GENERAL INFORMATION



1. DEPARTMENT’S GENERAL INFORMATION

Steve Vukile Tshwete Education Complex Private Bag X0032
Zone 6 Bhisho

Zwelitsha 5605

5608

Tel: 040 608 472 | Citizen care line:080 121 2570

Website: www.eceducation.ﬁov.za

Cluster Chief Director Mr. Themba Dyasi
Cell: 083 344 626
Email: themba.dyasi@ecdoe.gov.za
Director Mr. Welile Payi
Cell: 083 561 1593
Email: welile.payi@ecdoe.gov.za
Alfred Nzo East District Director Ms. Zoleka Khuzwayo
Cell:083 990 7931
Email:_zoleka.khuzwayo@ecdoe.gov.za
Alfred Nzo West District Director Mr. Monwabisi Mbangeni
Cell:060 530 0997
Email:_monwabisi.mbangeni@ecdoe.gov.za
Chris Hani East District Director Mr. Nkosikho Mtshotane
Cell:072 883 8482
Email:_nkosikho.mtshotane@ecdoe.gov.za
O.R Tambo Inland District Director Ms. Fundiswa Makrwede
Cell:082 066 7176
Email:_fundiswa.makrwede@ecdoe.gov.za
0O.R Tambo Coastal District Director Ms. Bongie Peyana
Cell:082 662 3759
Email:_bongi.peyana@ecdoe.gov.za
Joe Gqabi District Director Mr. Bedeshani Mceleli
Cell:082 066 5979
Email:_moses.mceleli@ecdoe.gov.za

Cluster B
Cluster Chief Director Ms. Sharon Ann Maarsdorp

Cell:083 324 4378

Email:_sharon.maarsdorp@ecdoe.gov.za
Director Mr. Nceba Magadu

Cell:083 324 4380

Email: nceba.magadu@ecdoe.gov.za
Amathole East District Director Ms. Mavis Tolom

Cell:078 370 3367

Email:_mavis.tolom@ecdoe.gov.za
Amathole West District Director Ms. Nomgcobo Futshane

Cell:083 295 1391

Email: nomgcobo.futshane@ecdoe.gov.za
Buffalo City Metro District Director Mr. Nkosiyabantu Mabece

Cell:082 066 7301

Email:_victor.mabece@ecdoe.gov.za
Chris Hani West District Director Mr. Nicolaas Riaan De Bryun

Cell:083 275 0706

Email:_nicolaas.debryun@ecdoe.gov.za

Nelson Mandela Bay Metro District Mr. Ernest Gorgonzola
Director Cell:083 792 0525

Email: enerst.gorgonzola@ecdoe.gov.za
Sarah Baartman District Director Mr. Nkosinathi Godlo

Cell:083 575 8702
Email:_nkosinathi.godlo@ecdoe.gov.za
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2. ABBREVIATIONS AND ACRONYMS

ACRONYM

DISCRIPTION

AAC
AET
AGSA
AFS
AIDS
AlIP
ANA
AO
ASIDI
CAPS
CFO
COE
CMC
CSE
CSRP
CSLP
DBE
BBBEE
DDD
DPSA
DPWI
ECD
ECDoE
EFMS
EIG
EMIS
EPWP
FET
HEDCOM
HIV
HOD
HR
HRD
IA
IBAC
ICU
IPIP
IQMS
ICT
IPMP
IDMS
IRM
LAIS
LSPID
LTSM
MEC
MPAT
MST

S\ N

Autism Alternative and Augmentative Communication
Adult Education and Training

Auditor General South Africa

Annual Financial Statements

Acquired Immuno-Deficiency Syndrome

Audit Improvement Plan

Annual National Assessments

Accounting Officer

Accelerated Schools Infrastructure Development Initiative
Curriculum and Assessment Policy Statements
Chief Financial Officer

Compensation of Employees

Circuit Management Circuit

Comprehensive Sexuality Education

Curriculum Support and Recovery Plan

Circuit School Landscape Plan

Department of Basic Education

Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment
Data Driven Districts

Department of Public Service and Administration
Department of Public Works and Infrastructure
Early Childhood Development

Eastern Cape Department of Education
Education Facilities Management System
Education Infrastructure Grant

Education Management Information System
Expanded Public Works Programme

Further Education and Training

Heads of Departments Committee

Human Immunodeficiency Virus

Head of Department

Human Resources

Human Resource Development

Internal Audit

Independent Broad-based Anti-Corruption Commission
Internal Control Unit

Infrastructure Programme Implementation Plans
Integrated Quality Management System
Information and Communication Technology
Infrastructure Project Management Plan
Infrastructure Delivery Management System
Infrastructure Report Model

Learner Attainment Improvement Strategy
Learners with Severe to Profound Intellectual Disability
Learning and Teaching Support Materials
Member of Executive Council

Management Performance Assessment Tool
Mathematics, Science and Technology
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DISCRIPTION

ACRONYM
MSTCG
MTEF
MTSF
NCF
NECT
NEPA
NQF
NSC
NSNP
NDP
PFMA
PMDS
PPM
PPN
PPE
PSU
PSCBC
PAIA
PAJA
PID
PFMA
PSA
PSRIP
PT
PYEI
PSET
SAFE
SAMF
SASAMS
SBA
SCM
SDIP
SMT
SDM
SOP
SRRP
SONA
SOPA
SACE
SAQA
SITA
SGB
SRH
TOC
TR
T™MU
U-AMP

S\ N

Maths, Science and Technology Conditional Grant
Medium-Term Expenditure Framework

Medium Term Strategic Framework

National Curriculum Framework

National Education Collaboration Trust

National Education Policy Act

National Qualifications Framework

National Senior Certificate

National School Nutrition Programme

National Development Plan

Public Finance Management Act

Performance Management and Development System
Programme Performance Measure

Post Provisioning Norms

Personal Protective Equipment

Programme Support Unit

Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council
Promotion of Access to Information Act

Promotion of Administrative Justice Act

Profound Intellectual Disability

Public Finance Management Act

Public Service Act

Primary School Reading Improvement Programme
Provincial Treasury

Presidential Youth Employment Initiative
Post-School Education and Training

Sanitation Safe for Education

South Africa Mathematics Foundation

South African School and Administration Management System
School Based Assessment

Supply Chain Management

Service Delivery Improvement Plan

School Management Team

Service Delivery Model

Standard Operation Procedure

School Rationalisation and Realignment Programme
State of The Nation Address

State of the Province Address

South African Council for Educators

South African Qualifications Authority

Sate Information Technology Agency

School Governing Body

Sexual and Reproductive Health

Technical Occupation Curriculum

Treasury Regulations

Teaching Mathematics with Understanding
User-Asset Management Plan
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3.

FOREWORD BY MEC

It is my pleasure to present the 2021/22 Annual Report for the Eastern Cape
Department of Education (ECDoE). The Annual report reflects on the
achievements and relevant financial information in relation to our department’s
continued efforts in developing and improving the Provincial Education system.

The National Development Plan (NDP) aims to put South Africa in line with other
middle-income economies. The NDP proposes that basic education until 2030
should focus on improving Literacy, Numeracy/Mathematics and Science
outcomes, thus increasing the number of learners eligible to study Mathematics
and science-based degrees at university.

This was aimed at improving performance in international testing programmes and
retaining more learners and expanding skills and vocational training. By 2030,
South Africans should have access to education and training of the highest quality,
leading to significantly improved learning outcomes.

Schools only became fully functional as from March 2021, resulting in additional pressure to the learners,
educators and our governance systems. The Department continued to strengthen and improve its strategic
partnerships with various stakeholders such as civil society, social partners, parents, and organised labour
in efforts to support quality teaching and learning. While ensuring that safe learning and working
environments and promoting social cohesion, health, and school safety, we have worked with the South
African Police Services, Department of Health and Department of Sport, Recreation, Arts and Culture

The Department’s strategic focus areas emanating from the Four Pillars of the Education System
Transformation Plan (ESTP) 2019 to 2023, prioritises the following:

. The need to work together internally to enable to Department to function optimally.

. All learners require a good foundation in reading, writing, and calculating for opportunities in school
and after schooling.

. Education needs to be relevant and responsive to the skills requirements of the provincial economy.

. The Fourth Industrial Revolution and the impact it will have on how the Department operates and
how we educate our learners to prepare them to thrive in the future.

. The ongoing quest to ensure that no learner is left behind in the province.

The implementation of the Service Delivery Model of the Department resumed in 2018. The impact of this
exercise is evident in the overall performance of the institution particularly on learner performance. The
implementation of the organisational structure through the migration of employees, which resumed in 2020
further empowered the system through the placement of employees in line with the Service Delivery Model
of the Department. The Department has concluded the placement of staff both at Head Office and all 12
District Offices. The placement of employees on salary level 2 to 12 was concluded on 31 March 2022 this
included Head office and District offices.

In the period under review, we worked closely with the Basic Education Sector in cultivating a culture of
reading through the promotion of a culture of reading especially in primary schools. A key imperative has
been on ensuring that we provide all our learners with strong literacy foundations. We have supported
initiatives such as World Read Aloud Day, which is about celebrating the power of reading aloud; the power
of migrating words and indeed our classrooms must be a conduit to creating a new tale for the African child.
The Department is implementing its Reading Plan for 2019 to 2023 which is based on the National Sector
Plan and tailored to the needs and realities of the Eastern Cape province.

The Department has encouraged schools to use the ECDoE online library and also ensure full use of DBE
workbooks. There has been positive progress with the Foundation Phase e-library — the zero-rated ECDoE
online library which assists teachers to access the readers. The www.eccurriculum.co.za;
WWwWw.ecexams.co.za — websites were revamped and relevant content uploaded.

The performance of South African learners in international standardised tests should be comparable to the
performance of learners from countries at a similar level of development and with similar levels of access.
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Our learner's performance has exceeded the Departments 5-year strategic goals, obtaining an average
score of 350 by Grade 4 learners in PIRLS and an average score of 350 obtained by Grade 5 learners in
TIMSS. The number of schools implementing EGRA increased has reached 1487 thus far.

We know that schools in former ‘homelands’ account for just under half of all public school enrolments and
face special challenges of poverty and inaccessibility of public facilities and jobs. It is true that more needs
to be done in terms of access, equity, digital empowerment and ensuring all our schools are able to provide
quality basic education no matter where they are in the province.The LSPID grant which is intended to
ensure care and support for the vulnerable learners with severe intellectual disabilities. We have 30
specialists employed in their grant including Psychologist Occupational Therapist, Physio Therapist
Educational Therapist. These specialists are also working in our SID Schools.

The Psychosocial support has been provided to more than 900 learners through individual and group
therapy, as well as telehealth call centre number has been created to provide services to learners who
experience. An excess of 1300 learner have successfully placed in special schools through the SIAS
programme. 1530 learners have assessed and provided with support by psychologists and therapists.
School Based Support Teams (SBSTs) are being trained and supported by the DBSTs on the
implementation of SIAS processes.

The Provincial Basic Education sector operations were stretched to limit and in certain instances beyond
its financial capacity and the sector was not spared of the devastating impact of the pandemic and
associated devastating socio economic effects on the Eastern Cape populace.

The period under review was marked by consolidation of the work that has been done while accelerating
new risk adjusted strategies that will maintain and reinforce the positive trajectory in the province’s
learning outcomes. The implementation of the new organogram, gradual expansion of the three-stream
curriculum model, the rollout of virtual platforms to support teaching and also learning the Department’s
administrative processes and entrenching inclusive education across our basic education system. The
implementation of the transformative strategy will entail traversing the challenges posed by the pandemic
and the constrained fiscal outlook for the province. Lessons from the previous work of the Department will
guide our future perspective. Improved learner performance and the creation of safe learning
environments will continue to be the overriding goal in all our plans and strategies.

My appreciation and thanks to all the learners, learner organisations, teachers, teacher unions, principals,
parents, learners, SGBs, SGB associations, individuals, and all our social partners.

MR FD GADE
MEC OF DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
DATE : 29 SEPTEMBER 2022
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4, REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

The 2021/22 Annual Report aims to accurately account for and reflect on the status
of the ECDoE’s administration during the period under review and with specific
emphasis on its financial management and performance in relation to pre-
determined objectives.

Overview of the operations of the Department

The Department, despite the ensuing instability brought about by the pandemic, has

continued to support all schools and districts as evidenced by the positive outcomes

in the National Senior Certificate. The 2021 Matric Class was the 8th cohort to sit for

the NSC based on CAPS, with a significant increase in the number of full-time
enrolments in 2021. It increased from 72 926 in 2020 to 97127 in 2021. There is a difference of 24 201
candidates which constitute 34%. The number of progressed learners decreased from 9000 in 2020 to 7000 in
2021 which indicates that more learners met promotion requirements. The Class of 2021 did us proud with a
73% pass rate, a 4,9% improvement from the 68,1% pass of the Class of 2020. Given the high enrolments in
the class of 2021, the total number of children that passed the National Senior Certificate stands at 66 770,
making it 17 079 more learners passing in 2021 compared to 2020. The province recorded the second highest
improvement nationally with a 4.9 percentage increase.

The Department is committed to the country’s vision of providing children with access to quality holistic early
childhood development so that all children reach their full potential. The President announced in the 2019
SONA that the country would proceed towards two years of compulsory pre-school for all children before they
enter Grade 1. The President further declared the ECD centres would be migrated from Department of Social
Development to Department of Basic Education.

The Department worked closely with the Department of Social Development and met weekly to ensure that all
systems were in place for the realisation of the envisaged change in responsibilities for the provision of ECD
services.

The Department’s partnership with the Department of Health has been strengthened in the period under review
to ensure that integrated school health package of services that is age and grade appropriate was rendered to
learners as stipulated in the Integrated School Health policy of 2017, the DBE HIV, STI and TB Policy for
learners, educators and school support staff as well as the DBE Standard Operation Procedures for rendering
Sexual Reproductive Health Rights and Services (SRHRS) to learners in Secondary schools.

On infrastructure, the Department made strides in completing some of the multi-year projects that have been
stalled for many years. In the period under review, nine (9) schools with dedicated Grade R classrooms, at the
value of R607 million were completed. Further investments on infrastructure were delivered through the ASIDI
Programme with Kidston JPS in Chris Hani being the flagship project. The province has also established a
dedicated programme providing 150 schools with decent sanitation and 46 schools with mobile classrooms.

The Department appreciates various Private sector donors who responded to the Presidential call to partner
with the Sector on infrastructure projects. To this end, successful province wide sanitation projects were
completed with Assupol, Northam, Old Mutual Foundation, Unilever, Korea Embassy, Gcap Technologies, as
well as innovative pilot projects by Liquid Gold.

In improving the functionality of the organization, the Department’s key focus area was on ensuring the
successful implementation of the new organogram. The migration of existing staff to the new organogram is a
complex process which required extensive consultation and was implemented in the period under review. We
appreciate the support and contributions of our social partners and staff in the positive progress that has been
made in the migration process

The Department prioritised Continuous Professional Development as an essential part of a progressive
workforce. The Department ensured that Annual Teaching Plans, diagnostic and assessments for all terms
were successfully distributed and mediated to educators. Grade 3 educators from 26 schools across the
province were trained on the Mental Starters Project to develop number sense: a challenging concept in
Foundation Phase. Furthermore, 955 educators have been trained on problem-solving strategies; a module
that is continuing. Educators on the Teaching Mathematics for Understanding (TMU) were trained on the
content for all the terms (Grade 1 to 4). More so, 19 Subject Advisors, 12 Circuit managers, 172 SMT and 816
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Foundation Phase (FP) educators and officials in the district were trained on the Foundation Phase Initiative
Programme - a Learning Through Play programme. Two hundred and fifty —seven (257) Departmental Heads
were trained on how to use different cognitive levels to develop quality formal assessment tasks. One hundred
and twenty-two (122) Grade R to 3 educators, 15 SMTs, 23 Subject Advisors, 2 Provincial officials were trained
on Coding and Robotics content. 2399 FP educators and 164 Departmental Heads have been trained on
NECT Recovery trackers to assist in pacing of the content. Seven thousand three hundred and fifty- one
(7351) Curriculum Education Assistants were trained. Four Thousand nine hundred and fifty (4950) Reading
Champions were trained on reporting tools and managing their outcomes. And finally, 205 schools have been
monitored and supported on curriculum implantation and DBE workbook utilization.

Curriculum coverage tools were developed for online and onsite learning. This also transitioned to Radio
lessons on Umhlobo Wenene and Tru FM. A main component of our Curriculum coverage drive focused on
Coding and Robotics Curriculum which has been successfully piloted in 125 schools, of which 25 are Grade R
— 3 schools and 100 are Grade 7 schools

Overview of the financial results of the Department

Departmental Receipts

2020/21 2021/22

Actual Amount (Over)/Under Actual Amount | (Over)/Under
DI ENENEEE S Collected Collection Collected Collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Sales of goods and services other than 28 364 56 333 (27969) | 68,113 63,826 4,287
capital assets

Transfers received - - R R R R

Fines, penalties and forfeits 116 43 73 122 110 12
Interest, dividends and rent on land 351 84 267 368 37 331
Sale of capital assets - - - - - -
Financial transactions in assets and 21389 8603 12786 | 22,416 26,769 (4,353)

65,063 (14,843)

For the period ending March 2022, the department collected a total amount of R90.742 million against the
estimated revenue collection of R91.019 million, recording an under-collection of R277 thousand.
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Programme Expenditure

2020/21 2021/22 |
Programme Final Actual (Over)/ Final Actual (Over)/Under

Name Appropriation Expenditure Under Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure
Expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

1. Administration 2,840,368 2,627,362 213,006 2,676,391 2,676,391 0
2. Public Ordinary 28,618,511 29,651,904 1,033,393 29,866,018 30,050,710 (184,692)
School Education

3. Independent 141,789 138,718 3,071 101,628 99,226 2,402
School Subsidies

4. Public Special 913,905 896,096 17,809 955,947 944,476 11,471
School Education

5. Early Childhood 490,700 463,192 27,508 587,605 516,607 70,998
Development

6. Infrastructure 1,340,638 1,222,325 118,313 1,506,631 1,214,942 291,689
Development

7. Examination & 1,871,868 1,594,268 277,600 1,445,510 1,445,510 0
Education Related

Services

36,217,779 36,593,866 (376,087) | 37,139,730 | 36,947,862 191,868 |

The Department had an adjusted budget of R37.139 billion in the 2021/22 financial year. The
department spent R36.947 billion which represents 99.5 percent of total adjusted budget. The
Department has recorded an under expenditure of R191.868 million at year end.

Programme 2: The over expenditure in social contributions is attributed to the employer’s contribution to
medical aid and the employer’s contribution on pension fund, which was not provided for in the departmental
baseline during the adjustment estimates as expected in terms of PSCBC Res 1 of 2021. The amount provided
for as additional funding of R1.054 billion for cash allowance was not adequate to cover the total salary
increase implications, hence the whole amount was allocated under salaries and wages.

Programme 3: The underspending is due to the withholding of funds for non-compliant independent
schools due to late submission of quarterly reports (AFS) and also to underperforming schools.

Programme 4: The under expenditure is as a result of delays in the payment of historical overtime for special
school staff which was projectized and the delays are due to the verification processes coupled with the
allocation of the code by PT being issued for short periods of time. The underspending is also due to austerity
measures implemented by the Department to control the spending of goods and services and machinery and
equipment.

Programme 5: The underspending is mainly on personnel due to unfilled vacancies caused by
practitioners that has left the system due to retirement and others who were appointed in the
mainstream schools as Post Level 1 educators after acquiring the professional qualifications of ECD as
well as Pre Grade R Training budget which was set aside for training and development of Pre-Grade R
(ECD NQF Level 4 qualification was on the evaluation stage by year end hence the budget could
therefore not be utilized as the tender processes were not yet finalized.

Programme 6: The overall under expenditure is evident under Public Ordinary Schools mainly due to
invoices that could not be processed on time which relates to maintenance work for different
implementing agents which was set aside for fencing projects as part of the departments’ recovery plans
but could not be finalised. A rollover of unspent funds has been requested from Provincial Treasury for
all unpaid invoices.
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Virements

Administration -R218.772 million
Public Ordinary School Education R246.834 million
Public Special School Education -R42,664 million
Early Childhood Development -R51,097 million

Examination And Education Related Services R65,699 million
Roll Overs

The Department applied for Rollover of Conditional Grants funds that were not spent due to the

following:
. Late delivery of goods and services resulting in late submission of invoices by Service
Providers.

. Delays in payment if invoices received.
The application for rollover of 2021/22 unspent funds was made for the following Conditional Grants:

. R19.947 million - Maths Science and Technology

. R4.467 million - Learners with Severe to Profound Intellectual Disabilities
. R403.569 million - Education Infrastructure Grant

. R2.369 million - HIV& AIDS

Approved Rollovers for 2020/21, funding received during 2021/22 adjustment estimates R90.541 million

Programme 2: Public Ordinary School Education
R7.580 million has been rolled over for Maths, Science and Technology (MST) grant mainly for the

procurement of workshop tools and equipment for technical schools. Commitments were made for these
purchases but disbursement could not be effected prior year-end.

Programme 4: Public Special School Education
R6.905 million is for Learners with Profound Intellectual Disabilities Grant in respect of procured goods

and services (equipment, wheelchairs, training toolkit and learner teacher support material) for the
special care centres.

Programme 6: Infrastructure Development
R70.776 million for Education Infrastructure Grant (EIG) to honour contractual obligations / commitments

that were made with service providers in respect of infrastructure projects at schools.

Programme 7: Examination and Related Services
R5.280 million for HIV and AIDS (Life Skills Education) Grant to honour contractual obligations /
commitments that were made in respect of LTSM and workshop activities

Unauthorized, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Unauthorized Expenditure

The Department made an overspend of R184 692 million in programme 2 for Public Ordinary Schools
Education. The over expenditure related to social contributions attributed to the employer’s contribution to
medical aid on the employer’'s contribution to pension fund, which was not provided for in the departmental
baseline during the adjustment estimates as expected in terms of PSCBC resolution 1 of 2021. The amount
provided for as additional funding of R1 054 billion for cash allowance was not adequate to cover the total
salary increase implications, hence the whole amount was allocated under salaries and wages.

The Department is slowly recovering from the effects of national fiscal consolidation that affected the
Department’s ability to afford it's Cost of Employees financial obligations.
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Irregular Expenditure

The Department incurred irregular expenditure due to non-compliance on Infrastructure projects which are
inter-institutional arrangement with Department of Public Works and Infrastructure. Of the R 22,747 million
disclosed in the 2020/2021 financial year, R3.163 million relates to subsequent payments which were made in
the current year for multi-year infrastructure contracts identified irregular in prior years and R19 583 million
relates to payments made for infrastructure projects without proper approval of variation orders by Department
of Public Works and Infrastructure on behalf of the Department. The Department have embarked on monitoring
and review of all projects by Implementing Agents to ensure compliance with regulations before awarding
contracts.

Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

In the 2021/22 the Department incurred interest of R7 004 million which was due to late payment. The
Department has committed to ensure compliance with PFMA on payment of service providers within 30 days,
through implementation of effective and efficient internal control mechanisms on handling and processing of
supplier invoices

Strategic focus over the short to medium term period

The NDP aims by 2030, South Africans should have access to education and training of the highest quality,
leading to significantly improved learning outcomes. The performance of South African learners in
international standardised tests should be comparable to the performance of learners from countries at a
similar level of development and with similar levels of access. Education should be compulsory up to Grade 12
or equivalent levels in vocational education and training. The education, training and innovation system should
cater for different needs and produce highly skilled individuals.

Education System Transformation Plan 2019 to 2023

The focus areas that form the Four Pillars of the Education System Transformation Plan (ESTP) 2019 to
2023 recognise:

e The need to work together internally to enable to Department to function optimally.

e All learners require a good foundation in reading, writing, and calculating for opportunities in school
and after schooling.

e Education needs to be relevant and responsive to the skills requirements of the provincial economy.

e The Fourth Industrial Revolution and the impact it will have on how the Department operates and
how we educate our learners to prepare them to thrive in the future.

e The ongoing quest to ensure that no learner is left behind in the province.

The period 2019 to 2023 will be marked by consolidation of the work that has been done while accelerating
new risk adjusted strategies that will maintain and reinforce the positive trajectory in the province’s learning
outcomes. The implementation of the new organogram, gradual expansion of the three-stream curriculum
model, the rollout of virtual platforms to support teaching and learning the Department’s administrative
processes and entrenching inclusive education across our basic education system. The implementation of
the transformative strategy will entail traversing the challenges posed by the pandemic and the constrained
fiscal outlook for the province. Lessons from the previous work of the Department will guide our future
perspective. Improved learner performance and the creation of safe learning environment will continue to be
the overriding goal in all our plans and strategies.

Public Private Partnerships
The Department has entered into partnerships with the following organisations in the 2021/22 financial year:

e DG Murray trust (renewal of an existing partnership)
e Initiative for Education and Economic Solutions (IEES)
¢ Old Mutual
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Discontinued key activities / activities to be discontinued
There were no discontinued key activities in the 2021/22 financial year

New or proposed key activities

There were no new activities in the 2021/22 financial year

Supply Chain Management

The Supply Chain Management Chief Directorate continued to implement its strategic sourcing framework
which was adopted to implement 80% term contracts for routine and high-volume commodities which are time
consuming. The implementation of the Framework significantly reduced the time and effort spent on procuring
high volume goods and services and enabled SCM to invest its efforts in capacitating and skilling SCM staff,
strengthening controls, monitoring existing contracts, and developing systems that will optimize operations and
improve efficiency levels. It also contributes to SCM motto of procuring legally, quickly, cost effectively and
reduce irregular expenditure.

The SCM Unit subjects all its bids to Provincial Treasury (IBAC) to review the departments evaluation
processes where the Interim Bid Advisory Committee scrutinize the bids for SCM compliance and make
recommendations to the Accounting Officer to endorse the bid. This is a third layer of ensuring that all tenders
advertised and concluded are independently assessed and evaluated for compliance before the final award is
made. No unsolicited bids were concluded in the 2021/22 financial year.

High vacancy rate remains a challenge making the SCM unit unable to effectively perform key functions
relating to:

e Contracts Management and Monitoring,

o Demand and acquisitions remain one directorate which poses risk of segregation of duties,

e Ordering sections not catered for in the new organogram,

e Strategic Sourcing and Planning,

e  Supplier Performance and Compliance and

e Asset Management

SCM was provided with Interns through HRD Internship Programme to address part of the capacity
constraints. To further address the capacity constraints, the SCM directorate established a multi-
disciplinary team consisting of SCM, ICU and Risk Management officials to conduct extensive auditing of all
district payment vouchers to assist in ensuring that SCM is audit ready. The omissions/shortcomings
identified in the new organisational structure will be forwarded to the human resource division to
consider approving these shortcomings as an addendum to the new organisational structure.
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Gifts and Donations received in kind from non-related parties

Release of NSC Results Class of 2021

MTN

Maths & Science Infinity (MSI)

SAICA

Old Mutual

Industrial Development Corporation (IDC)

Harry Printers -
Telkom -

Vodacom -
Road Accident Fund (RAF) -

Back to School Campaign

15x laptops, 15x laptop bags & 20x school bags

50 x Tablets

1x R10 000 cash voucher (Top learner in quintile 1&2), 1
x R10 000 cash voucher (top learner in quintile 3;4&5), 2
x Branded laptops, 2 x laptops,

2 x bursary for learners who qualify to study towards CA
qualifications)

60x Travel cases

3x R10 000 cash voucher (top performing learner
quintile 1,2&3)

66x Certificates, 66x trophies

3x Huawei Mate book D 15 laptop computer, 20x
Huawei B535 LTE Wi-Fi router, 20x Telkom simcard with
15gb of data, 1x R10 000 cash voucher

60x Smartphones

3x R25 000 cash voucher for assistive devices for
learners with special needs

Dimbaza Development Trust
Feel the Gap Foundation

Jenn Trading & Consultancy

Vodacom

Other donations

Donation of school uniform

30x school shoes, 30x pairs of socks for learners,
sanitary towels for learners

10X Schools benefitted:

Teko Fihla PS; Buru PS; Maboboti SS; Mapasa PS;
Isolomzi SS; Xora PS; Colosa PS; Tanga PS; Manaleni
PS; Gengge PS)121x school tracksuit, 121x face masks,
230x school shoes, 301x food parcels, 2834x school
bags, 3032x snack packs, 6x golf shirts for principals,
16x box of sanitary towels, 45x school trousers for boys,
38x school skirts for girls, 15x school tunics, 68x school
shirts, 6x school jerseys,91x pair of school socks, 6x
bags,

R20 000 cash (Isolomzi SS)

20x pairs of shoes, 20 gig data for 3 months, loaning the
school with router for 3 months (Mbekweni SS)

Embassy of South Korea

Northam Zondereinde
Old Mutual
Dike Security

Sizwe Afrika
Intelligent Output Systems

Provision of sanitation projects (Nolitha PS R351 292;
Mnxe PS R375 048; Nomonde PS R347 000; Toisekraal
PS R397 902; Nkosemntu Motman R350 000 & Anako
PS R450 000)

Infrastructure donation (Mbotyi PS, Emyezweni PS &
Sichwe PS)

Masks & Sanitary Towel Drive: R100 000 towards PPEs,
financial education

Masks Drive: donation of masks

Masks Drive: donation of masks

Masks Drive: donation of masks

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury
No deviations for goods and services were requested and recorded for the 2021/22 financial year

Events after the reporting date

There was no event completed after the reporting date applicable for 2021/22 financial year
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Other

None

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to all the School Management Teams, SGBs, District
Leadership for working tirelessly despite the challenges we confronted as the Department. Through their
efforts, peace and stability prevailed in our schools and that created a conducive environment for
teaching and learning. Relatively, the year under review was not at all a smooth sailing, community
service delivery protests, the constrained fiscal of the Department remained a high risk to the plans we
had to improve performance in our schools. The collaboration with different Stakeholders made a huge
difference in ensuring that the Department registers a significant progress in delivering on its mandate.
We really observed in practice what it means when people say, “Education is a societal matter’. | wish to
acknowledge the relations we established with the Radio Stations which really assisted the learners in
augmenting what has been taught in class. A sincere gratitude to teachers, Subject Advisors and
Provincial Subject Planners who made sure that the radio slots allocated were utilized effectively. The
huge increase in the number of grade 12 learners needed rigorous strategies and concerted efforts to
assist learners in achieving good results.

A word of appreciation also goes to the oversight bodies who continuously monitored our performance
as the Department. This has kept us on our toes as we also ensured that there is accountability at all
levels.

Lastly, | cannot forget to appreciate the support from the Senior Managers of the Department and the
commitment by the whole workforce in ensuring that the Department remains a trusted institution to
deliver quality education to the learners of our beloved Province.

Conclusion

I, therefore, present to you the Annual Report of the Eastern Cape Department of Education for the 2021/22
financial year The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with Section 40(1)(d) of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999), and Part IllJ3 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001.

Approval and sign off

O e AP

Mr. M Qwase

Acting Accounting Officer
Department of Education
Date: 29 September 2022
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5. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF
ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | confirm the following:
e All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report are consistent.
e The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions.

e The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as
issued by National Treasury.

e The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the modified
cash standard and the relevant frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

e The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and
for the judgements made in this information.

e The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal
control that has been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the performance information, the human resources information and the annual
financial statements

e The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial
statements.

¢ In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the
human resources information and the financial affairs of the Department for the financial year
ended 31 March 2022.

Yours faithfully

R o

Mr. M Qwase

Acting Accounting Officer
Department of Education
Date:29 September 2022
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6. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
Impact Statement

Globally competitive learners who are able to succeed in a diverse and innovative world regardless of the
socio-economic context of their schools.

6.1 Vision

All learners provided with opportunities to become productive, responsible, and competitive citizens through an
inclusive quality basic education system

6.2 Mission

To achieve the vision, we will

+ Implement appropriate and relevant educational programmes through quality teaching and learning.
+ Mobilise community and stakeholder support through participation; and

+ Institutionalise a culture of accountability at all levels of the Department.

6.3 Values

High Performance
Responsiveness
Accountability
Empathy

Access

Equity

Integrity

FEEEREEE
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7. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act, 1996 (No. 108 of 1996)

In terms of the Constitution, education other than higher education is a concurrent function shared by the
national and provincial spheres of government. The MEC has overall responsibility for providing basic
education and progressively providing further education and training. In the execution of his mandate, the
Executive Authority operates within the framework of the Constitution and a number of other legislative
prescripts and policies in the public service in general and the education sector specifically.

The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (1996) requires education to be transformed and
democratised in accordance with the values of human dignity, equality, human rights and freedom, non-
racism, and non-sexism. It guarantees access to basic education for all, with the provision that everyone
has the right to basic education, including adult basic education

National Education Policy Act (NEPA), 1996 (Act 27 of 1996)

National Education Policy Act (NEPA) National Education Policy Act (NEPA) provides a framework for
intergovernmental relations with regard to the provision of education. It establishes the roles of the Minister
of Education in relation to those of the MECs of Education in provinces. NEPA promotes a spirit of
cooperative governance. It was designed to inscribe into law the policies, as well as the legislative and
monitoring responsibilities of the Minister of Education, as well as to formalize the relations between national
and provincial authorities. NEPA laid the foundation for the establishment of the Council of Education
Ministers (CEM), as well as the Heads of Education Departments Committee (HEDCOM), as inter-
governmental forums that will collaborate in the development of a new education system. As such, it
provides for the formulation of national policy in general, and further education and training policies for, inter
alia, curriculum, assessment, and language, as well as for quality assurance. NEPA embodies the principle
of cooperative governance, elaborated upon in Schedule Three of the Constitution.

South African Schools Act 84 of 1996), as amended

To provide for a uniform system, for the organisation, governance, and funding of schools, to amend and
repeal certain laws to schools, and to provide for matters connected therewith. It ensures that learners have
the right of access to quality education without discrimination.

Basic Education Laws Amendment Act, 2011 (Act 15 of 2011)

This Act provides for the amendment of the South African Schools Act, 1996 (Act No. 84 of 1996), and the
Employment of Educators Act, 1998 (Act No. 76 of 1998) (the SASA and the EEA, respectively) - which if
accepted will have far reaching implications for schools and SGB

The Eastern Cape Schools Education Act (ECSEA), 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999)

This Provincial Act provides for a uniform education system for the organisation, governance and funding of
Eastern Cape schools and makes provision for the specific educational needs of the province. It provides for
the control of education in schools in the province and for other matters connected therewith.

General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance Act, 2001 (Act 58 of 2001)

The General and Further Education and Training Quality Assurance (GENFETQA) Act provides for the
establishment of uMalusi, which is charged with a provision of quality assurance in general and further
education and training, the issuing of certificates at the various exit points, control over norms and standards
of curricula and assessment, as well as conducting of the actual assessment

Employment of Educators (EEA) Act, 1998 (Act 76 of 1998)

To provide for the employment of educators by the State, for the regulation of the conditions of service,
discipline, retirement, and discharge of educators and for matters connected therewith.
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South African Council for Educators Act 2000 (No. 31 of 2000)

The South African Council for Educators Act provides for the governance of the professional teaching corps
under a single professional council. The SACE Act further aims to enhance the status of the teaching
profession, and to promote the development of educators and their professional conduct. It makes provision
for a Legal Affairs and Ethics Department which has to ensure that educators do not breach the Code of
Professional Ethics for educators; protect the dignity of the profession and revised the Code of Educators on
a continuous basis

The Public Finance and Management Act (PFMA) Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999), as amended.

The Public Finance and Management Act regulates the management of finances in national and provincial
government. It sets out the procedures for efficient and effective management of all revenue, expenditure,
assets, and liabilities. It establishes the duties and responsibilities of government officials in charge of
finances. The Act aims to secure transparency, accountability and sound financial management in
government and public institutions

The Annual Division of Revenue Act, 2013 (Act 2 of 2013)

These Acts provide for the equitable division of revenue raised nationally amongst the national, provincial,
and local spheres of government; for the reporting requirements for allocations pursuant to such division; for
the withholding and delaying of payments; and for the liability for costs incurred in litigation in violation of the
principles of co-operative governance and international relations

South African Qualifications Authority (SAQA) Act, 1995 (Act 58 of 1995)

To provide for the development and implementation of a National Qualifications Framework and for this
purpose to establish the South African Qualifications Authority and to provide for matters connected
therewith.

Promotion of Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000 (4 of 2000)

This Act gives effect to section 9 read with item 23 (1) of Schedule 6 of the Constitution, so as to prevent
and prohibit unfair discrimination and harassment; to promote equality and eliminate unfair discrimination; to
prevent and prohibit hate speech; and to provide for matters connected therewith.

Public Service Act, 1947 As Amended (Proclamation 103 of 1994) (PSA)

PSA provides for the organisation and administration of the public service of the Republic, as well as the
regulation of the regulation of conditions of employment, terms of office, disciple, retirement, and discharge
of members of the public service

Skills Development Act 1998, (No 97 of 1998)

The purpose of this Act is to provide an institutional framework to devise and implement national, sector and
workplace strategies to develop and improve the skills of the South African workforce, to provide
learnerships that lead to recognised occupational qualifications and regulate employment services.

Skills Development Levies Act 1999, (No 9 of 1999)

To provide for the imposition of the levy with regard to improvement of work force skills where every
employer is obliged to pay a skills development levy at a certain rate of percentage of the leviable amouNT

Occupational Health and Safety Act 1993 (No 85 of 1993)

The Occupational Health and Safety Act, No. 85 of 1993 provides for the health and safety of persons at
work as well as the protection of persons other than persons at work against hazards to health and safety
arising out of or in connection with the activities of persons at work.

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act 2000 (No 5 of 2000)

The general conditions and procedures are subject to the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act,
2000 (Act No 5 of 2000), and the Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2001 and are applicable to all
tenders, contracts, and orders, unless otherwise decided by the Accounting Officer prior to the invitation of
tenders. 8.6 Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999 and its Regulations Public Finance Management
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Act, No. 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), deals with funding and spending of the state monies.
The Act promotes the objective of good financial management in order to maximize delivery through the
efficient and effective use of limited resources

The Promotion of Administrative Justice Act [PAJA], 2000 (Act 3 of 2000)

It gives effect to the right to administrative action that is lawful, reasonable, and procedurally fair and to the
right to written reasons for administrative action as contemplated in section 33 of the Constitution of the
Republic of South Africa, 1996 and to provide for matter incidental thereof. The Act applies to all
administrative decisions of organs of state.

The Promotion of Access to Information Act [PAIA], 2000 (Act 2 of 2000)

The PAIA deals with section 32 of the Constitution, the right of access to information ‘records’ held by public
and private bodies such as all documents, recordings, and visual material, but does not apply during civil
and criminal litigation.

The Education White Paper 5 On Early Childhood Development (2000)

White Paper 5 provides for the expansion and full participation of 5-year-olds in pre-primary school
reception grade education by 2010, as well as for an improvement in the quality of programmes, curricula,
and teacher development for 0 to 4-year-olds and 6 to 9-year-olds

Education White Paper 6 On Inclusive Education (2001)

White Paper 6 describes the intent of the Department of Education to implement inclusive education at all
levels in the system by 2020. Such an inclusive system will facilitate the inclusion of vulnerable learners and
reduce the barriers to learning, via targeted support structures and mechanisms, which will improve the
retention of learners in the education system, particularly those learners who are prone to dropping out.

Education White Paper 7 On E-Learning

The Education White Paper 7 on e-Learning provides a framework for the roll out of information and
Communication Technology (ICT) infrastructure in schools as well as curriculum delivery through ICTs.

National Curriculum Statements (Grades 10 To 12)

The National Curriculum Statements embody the vision for general education to move away from rote
learning model, to a learner-centered outcomes-based approach. In line with training strategies, the
reformulation is intended to allow greater mobility between different levels and between institutional sites, as
well learning pathways. Its assessment, qualifications, competency, and skills-based framework as to
promote the integration of knowledge and skills through encourage the development of curriculum models
that are aligned to the NQF in theory and practice. The NCS was declared policy in November 2003 to roll
out curriculum transformation to schools in the Further Education and Training Band (Grades 10-12). The
first year of implementation was 2006 in Grade 10, with Grades 11 implemented in 2007 and the first Grade
12 NCS results released at the end of 2008 academic year
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PART B:

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION



1. AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

The AGSA currently performs certain audit procedures on the performance information to provide
reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion. The audit conclusion on the performance
against predetermined objectives is included in the report to management, with material findings being
reported under the Predetermined Objectives heading in the Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements section of the auditor’s report.

Refer to page 136 : Report of the Auditor General, is published in Part E: Financial Information.

2. OVERVIEW OF DEPARTMENTAL PERFORMANCE

21 Service Delivery Environment

The Department adopted a 4-tier Service Delivery Model (SDM), which is comprised of the Provincial Head
Office. The province has 12 Districts that are divided into two clusters, which are cluster A and B, and each
cluster oversees six (6) Districts which on average services between 25 — 30 schools per Circuit. Each Circuit
is led by a Circuit Manager. On the new SDM, the Department established 203 Circuit Offices to service all
public the schools (5 401) in the Province.

National Development Plan (NDP): Vision 2030, states that districts have a responsibility to “provide targeted
support to improve practices within schools and ensure communication and information sharing between
authorities and schools. Schools need to share best practice.”

Education districts play a central role in ensuring that all learners have access to education of progressively
high quality. Districts are the link between Provincial Education Department, their education institutions, and
the public in general. They are often the major and sometimes the only source of external assistance and
support received by schools. Districts are, therefore, a key vehicle for initiating, testing, driving, and sustaining
systemic reforms. Schools often lack the capacity to redesign themselves and school functionality therefore
relies in many ways on the functionality of education districts. Therefore, the Department will continue to
decentralize authority to Districts to ensure that service delivery decisions are made close to service delivery
points. The Department will support all Districts on all delegated functions. In addition to the above, the
Department is to ensure uniformity across the system and will work on standardizing human resource services
through ensuring that Standard Operating Procedures (SOP's) and process maps are designed and
implemented by all Districts

A Circuit Management Framework was developed and has been approved. The objective is to support, monitor
and make Circuit Managers accountable for improved Circuit and School functionality. The Framework has
been developed using Quality Promotions & Standards guidelines on Whole School Evaluation.

The rollout of District Fundamentals of Performance which is focusing improving efficiency in both finance and
corporate services has begun.
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Learner environment

The period under review has undoubtedly been one dominated by the Covid-19 pandemic in our country and
across the globe. Like many other sectors, the Basic Education sector has also been negatively affected at We
have put in place a number of measures in the past year to combat and manage the spread of the pandemic in
the provincial basic education sector with the safety of our learners and officials being a fundamental guiding
principle. The full impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on education outcomes is still to be fully ascertained. As a
result, the Department re-assessed and recalibrated its services across all Districts and all programmes within
our institutions. All these happened under severe budget cuts which were implemented across all levels of
government. While the closure of schools is likely to have had some impact on learning outcomes, research
indicates that it will not impact substantially on the upward trends observed with respect to learning outcomes.
We will continue to intensify our efforts in ensuring the continued provision of quality teaching and learning in
our schools in a safe environment.

The NSC Class of 2021 is the 8th cohort to sit for the NSC based on CAPS, with a significant increase in the
number of full-time enrolments in 2021. The number of full-time enrolments increased from 72 926 in 2020 to
97127 in 2021. This is a difference of 24 201 candidates which constitute 34%. The Class of 2021 did us proud
with a 73% pass percentage, a 4,9% improvement from 68,1% pass of the Class of 2020. Given the high
enrolments in the class of 2021, the total number of children that passed the National Senior Certificate stands
at 66 770, making it 17 079 more learners passing in 2021 compared to 2020. This trend attests to the
systematic improvements in the Department. If it had not been Covid-19, the NSC results could have been
continuously rising because the Department has laid a robust foundation which is yielding positive outcomes
as evidenced by four consecutive years of improvements on NSC results. Nevertheless, the Department will
build on this robust foundation and improve on strategies to ensure that Grade 12 learners are supported in
order to pass the NSC examinations.

Performance of the NSC Class of 2021
Learner results

2019 76.5% 23.5%
2020 68.1% 31.9%
2021 73% 27%

(SASAMS Eastern Cape 2022)

District performance in 2021 took a new turn, with Districts performing below 70% drastically reducing from 9 to
3.

Overall Performance by District of the Grade 12 Class of 2021

osTRCT | 2019 | 220 | 2021 | Difference 2020-
Achieve Achieve Achieve
Alfred Nzo East 77.6% 22.4% 68.3% 31.7% 72.7% 27.3% 4.4%
Alfred Nzo West 76.9% 23.1% 67.5% 32.5% 73.7% 26.3% 6.3%
Amathole West 64.7% 35.3% 63.2% 36.8% 74.6% 25.4% 11.5%
Buffalo City 77.9% 22.1% 73.6% 26.4% 79.0% 21.0% 5.3%
Chris Hani East 71.9% 28.1% 62.2% 37.8% 69.5% 30.5% 7.3%
Chris Hani West 75.4% 24.6% 70.5% 29.5% 71.9% 28.1% 1.4%
Joe Gqabi 76.4% 23.6% 61.5% 38.5% 69.2% 30.8% 7.7%
Nelson Mandela 81.4% 18.6% 75.5% 24.5% 78.2% 21.8% 2.7%
Sarah Baartman 74.5% 25.5% 69.2% 30.8% 71.9% 28.1% 2.7%
Amathole East 77.2% 22.8% 67.3% 32.7% 74.4% 25.6% 7.1%
Or Tambo Coastal | 77.6% 22.4% 65.2% 34.8% 67.7% 32.3% 2.5%
Or Tambo Inland 75.6% 24.4% 65.2% 34.8% 70.3% 29.7% 5.1%
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The number of Bachelor passes increased by 4.1% from 30% in 2020 to 34.1% in 2021. Districts vary in their
levels of Bachelor output, but the following Districts have demonstrated a commendable improvement, and
these include BCM which is the top District with highest number of Bachelor passes at 42.9%, followed by
Nelson Mandela Bay at 39.2%; and Amathole West is the third highest at 35.9%

Subject performance has improved across spectrum, except for Afrikaans and English Home Languages for
their marginal decline albeit less than 1%. Of the 51 subjects that were written, 31 subjects improved, 15
subjects dropped, and 5 subjects remained stable. Subjects that dropped are very low enrolment subjects
except for Math Literacy which dropped by 1,4% from 73,7% to 72,3%

Provincial Full-time candidates’ performance at 30% and above in Selected Subjects [2019 to 2021

SUBJECT

Accounting 80.7% 72.3% 76.4% 4.0%
Afrikaans 1st Additional 97.0% 95.1% 96.0% 0.9%
Afrikaans 2nd Additional 95.9% 85.3% 94.8% 9.5%
Afrikaans Home 82.1% 83.7% 82.4% -1.3%
Agricultural Management Practices 91.0% 90.6% 89.1% -1.5%
Agricultural Sciences 80.9% 76.5% 81.2% 4.6%
Agricultural Technology 100.0% 95.8% 100.0% 4.2%
Arabic 2nd Additional 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%
Business Studies 68.1% 77.8% 80.6% 2.7%
Civil Technology (Civil Services) 93.3% 87.9% 100.0% 12.1%
Civil Technology (Construction) 99.2% 95.0% 96.2% 1.2%
Civil Technology (Woodworking) 99.4% 90.2% 92.9% 2.7%
Computer Applications Technology 91.5% 91.2% 87.7% -3.4%
Consumer Studies 95.4% 94.9% 96.5% 1.6%
Dance Studies 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%
Design 96.4% 98.7% 99.0% 0.3%
Dramatic Arts 100.0% 96.8% 99.6% 2.8%
Economics 73.1% 70.2% 73.4% 3.3%
Electrical Technology (Digital Systems) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%
Electrical Technology (Electronics) 98.9% 96.6% 89.9% -6.7%
Electrical Technology (Power Systems) 95.7% 92.3% 94.5% 2.2%
Engineering Graphics & Design 94.6% 91.1% 90.8% -0.3%
English 1st Additional 96.5% 98.5% 98.8% 0.3%
English Home 90.2% 93.1% 92.7% -0.4%
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2.2 Service Delivery Improvement Plan

Main Services and standards

Current Desired Actual
Main services Beneficiaries Standard of Standard of Achievement
Service Service
To provide Educators to Districts, CMCs, Schools and 90% of posts 95% Achieved
Schools SGBs filled
To provide all school-going age | Children of school going age at | 90% 100% 78%
learners with LTSM Public Ordinary Schools
The provisioning of Provincial Office Management, 5095 5240 Achieved
management information for Districts, CMCs, Schools and
monitoring and decision SGBs
making

Batho Pele Arrangements with beneficiaries

Current/Actual Arrangements Desired Information tools Actual Achievements

Formal meetings with organised labour; SGB Formal meetings with organised labour; Achieved
engagements and emails SGB engagements and emails;

Roadshows and Emails
Consultation includes publishers, stationery Consultation includes publishers, Achieved
manufacturers, warehouses, district offices and | stationery manufacturers, warehouses,
schools. district offices and schools.
Quarterly meetings with districts and Head Quarterly meetings with districts and Head | Achieved
Office to monitor process Office to monitor process

Service delivery information tool

Current/actual information tools Desired information tools Actual achievements

Provide information through Edustat, EMIS Edustat, EMIS data, SASAMS and Data Achieved
data, SASAMS and Data Driven District Driven District System
System

Complaints Mechanism

Current/actual complaints mechanism Desired complaints mechanism Actual achievements

Through direct contact, email and Through direct contact, email and Achieved
telephonically with the management of the telephonically with the management of the
Department Department
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2.3. Organisational Environment

The Department has two types of employees, namely, educators and public servants. The employment of
these employees is based on the Organisational Structure that came to effect on the 1 April 2020.

The number of employees in the Department is 64,879. The distribution of these employees is as follows:

e Public school educators are 51,179

e Office Based Educators are 1,277

e ECD Practitioners are 3,302

e Public Servants are 9,116 of which 6,520 are in schools

The total number of males is 18,256 versus 46,623 females.
Organisational and posts establishment structure

The organisational and posts establishment structure was approved for implementation by the MEC in 2019/20
financial year. 2021/22 is the second financial year for the Department in operation with the structure. It is a
requirement that organisational of the public service institution be amended after 3- 5 years, as depicted in the
Amended 2015 Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) directive on changes to the
organisational of the Department.

The period is given to Department to unpack their current strategy in ensuring the Department continue
exercise its purpose and mandate. The placement was done in line with the staff migration agreement
managed through the following phases:

Phase 1 (MMS & Professionals) Placement concluded
e Placement Letters issued to MMS Members
e Acting arrangements instituted on funded vacant MMS posts
o Departments is engaging with PT on funding the vacant posts for filling

Phase 2 (SL 5 — 8) Placement implemented
e 52 Placement Recommendation Panels convened (Head Office & District Office)
e 4 Task Team Meetings convened
¢ 1 Placement Committee seating convened for the placement of employees at Head Office.
e No appeals received for Phase 2 from both Districts and Head Office

Phase 3 (SL 2 — 4) Placement was concluded
o District Placement Recommending Panels convened
e 3 Task Team Meetings convened
e A Placement Committee meeting is being arranged to adjudicate on placement of Phase 3
employees.
e Process completed in March 2022.
e No appeals received for Phase 3 from both Districts and Head Office

The contextual realities are demanding a closer review of the system and operations. Since the approval of the

organisational structure there has been a number of factors both internally and externally that impacted on the
operations of the Department. Below are some of these factors but not limited to:
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Fiscal Constraints

The decline of our currency resulted on the country to be downgraded to a lower status in economic value. This
affected a number of industries including public service to restructure their budget allocations in responding to
this situation. The public service embarked on budget cuts. In the province, this meant that DOE as the biggest
Department will have to be subjected to a bigger margin of the provincial budget cut. This forced the
Department not to achieve some of its strategic objectives due to budget constraints.

COVID-19 Pandemic

The Department like all institutions was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. The pandemic forced public
service to rethink the manner to which services must be rendered. A number of operations in the Department
are coordinated virtually. It was not ideal to provide teaching and learning virtually as our context provides for a
contact interaction. For the Department to embark on that approach, it required a lot funding on ICT tools,
which was not feasible given the budget cuts were implemented.

Migration of the Early Childhood Development (ECD) function from DSD to DoE

The approved organisational structure makes provisioning of functions in supporting its approved Service
Delivery Model (SDM). The scope of the SDM does make no provisioning of the ECD Resourcing and Capacity
building function. The ECD Resourcing and Capacity building is migrating from DSD and to the Department as
a result of call by the President. A call that emphasised the exposure of the child to teaching and learning from
an early age. This instruction further indicated that the function be administered by DoE instead of DSD. This
illustrates that the Department has reviewed its current organisational structure to accommodate the ECD
Resourcing and Capacity Building function. However, approval is yet to be granted by the Executive Authority
responsible for Education.

. The ECD Function Shift project was concluded effectively on 31 March 2022

° The legislative element of the project such Memorandum of Agreement, Joint Submission and signing

of Service Level Agreements was concluded in 2021.

. All identified employees migrated to ECDoE.

° Budget for the function was allocated from DSD to DoE by Provincial Treasury

° Payment of subsidies is administered by ECDoE with effect from 15t April 2022.

Increased creation of functional schools

e Framework guiding operations of Circuit Management has been developed and approved by the
Eastern Cape Department of Education (Office of the Head of Department) which is in line with Nine
(09) Focus Areas of Whole School Evaluation. These Focus Areas are critical as they are the
domains of School Functionality.

e ECDoE has in line with the Circuit Management Framework developed and mediated School
Monitoring and Support visit Tool for Circuit Managers as well as reporting tools for both Circuit
Managers & CMC Heads.

e  Circuit Managers were trained on School Improvement Planning processes, in order to support
schools on conducting School Self Evaluation and developing School Improvement Plan.

e  Support working sessions for CMC Heads were held to guide CMC Heads on annual management
processes leading towards functional Schools and Circuits through administration of School
Monitoring and support visit tool. The session intended to EMPOWER CMC Heads on improving
Frequency and Quality of School Monitoring and Support visits, for enhanced functional schools
Strategic Goal 27 of Action Plan 2019
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2.4. Key policy developments and legislative changes

Covid-19 Regulation were the only legislative change during the period under review. However, in terms of the
budget, there were significant budget cuts, especially under compensation of employee’s budget. This may
make the Department unable to appoint educators in the future although they may be needed in the system.

The Minister of Basic Education on 12 February 2021 published the Directions regarding the reopening of
schools and measures to address, prevent and combat the spread of COVID-19 in the National Department of
Basic Education, all Provincial Departments of Education, all Education District Offices, and all schools in the
Republic of South Africa (Government Notice No 42, Government Gazette 44154 of 12 February 2021). The
objective of these directions is to provide for arrangements for the return of educators, officials and learners to
schools, hostels, and offices and to ensure a uniformed approach, as far as possible, in respect of
arrangements by the Department of Basic Education, Provincial Departments of Education, for the return of
learners and officials to schools, hostels and offices.
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4. INSTITUTIONAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
41 Programme 1: Administration
Purpose

To provide overall management of the education system in accordance with the National Education Policy Act,
the Public Finance Management Act, and other relevant policies.

Sub-Programmes

Sub-Programmes Purpose

Office of the MEC To proylde for the functlor.wmg of the office of the Member of the Executive
Council (MEC) for education.
To provide management services that are not education specific for the

Corporate Services education system and to make limited provision for, and maintenance of
accommodation.

Education Management To provide education management services for the education system.

Human Resource Development To provide human resource development for office-based staff.

Education Management Information To provide education management information in accordance with the National

System Education Information Policy.

Programme Outcomes

Outcome

ICT integrated in the provision of quality basic education
Good governance for quality basic education
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Linking performance with budgets

The programme has spent R2.676 billion of the final appropriation of R2.676 billion, the spending is within the

budget.

Sub-programme expenditure

2020/21 2021/22 ‘

Sub- Programme Name Final Actual Over/Under Final Actual Over/Under

Appropriation| Expenditure | Expenditure Appropriation Expenditure [Expenditure

R000 |  R'000 R’000 R’000 R000 |  R000 |
Office of the MEC 10,571 10,173 398 15,462 14,426 1,036
Corporate Services 1,427,402 1,268,523 158,879 1,396,666 1,392,208 4,458
Education Management 1,317,270 1,286,994 30,276 1,199,959 1,203,854 (3,895)
Human Resource Development 18,245 17,299 946 16,249 16,197 52
Education Management 66,879 44,374 22,505 48,055 49,706 (1,651)

Information Systems (EMIS)

2,840,367

2,627,363

213,004

2,676,391

2,676,391

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Output Indicator \ Strategy to overcome under-performance \
Strengthen monitoring systems at District Level to ensure the
proper use of the DDD and SASAMS systems to monitor and

support schools.

PPM 101

Number of public schools that use school administration
and management systems (SASAMS) to electronically
provide data

PPM 104 e  Provide focused support to schools through school visits

Percentage of schools visited at least twice a year by by multi-disciplinary teams.

district officials for monitoring and support purposes . Ensure adequately resourced Circuit Management and
District Officials provide monthly reports validated at district
level. Ensure fruitful utilization of budget at District level.
Ensure ICT integration in reporting.

PPM 103 'To strengthen budget processes within the Department.

Percentage of education expenditure going towards non-
personnel items

PPM 105

Percentage of learners having access to information
through (a) Connectivity (other than broadband) and(b)
Broadband

PPM 106

Number of qualified Grade R-12 educators aged 30 and
below, entering the public service as educators for the first
time during the financial year

'The Department is to ensure continuous engagements with OTP
for accelerated broadband rollout.

'The Funza Lushaka Bursaries are available to enable eligible
students to complete a full teaching qualification.

Performance in relation to standardised outputs and output indicators for Sector Concurrent
Functions

Not Applicable
Reporting on the Institutional response to the COVID -19 Pandemic

Not Applicable
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4.2 Programme 2: Public Ordinary School Education
Purpose:

To provide overall management of, and support to, the education system in accordance with the National Education
Policy Act, the Public Finance Management Act, and other relevant policies

Sub-Programmes:
Sub-Programme ‘Sub-Programme Purpose ‘
Public Primary Schools 'To provide Public Primary Ordinary Schools with resources required for quality
education in Grades 1to 7.
Public Secondary Schools 'To provide Public Secondary Ordinary Schools with resources required for
quality education in Grades 8 to 12.
Human Resource Development ITo provide services required for the professional development of Educators and

Non-Educators in Public Ordinary Schools.

School Sport, Culture and Media Services [To provide departmentally managed sporting, cultural and heritage activities in
Public Ordinary Schools.

Conditional Grant School e To provide for projects specified by the Department of Basic Education and
funded by conditional grants:

e To provide a nutritious meal to all targeted learners on every school day
through the National School Nutrition Programme (NSNP).

e To improve performance of learners in Mathematics, Science and
Technologies (MST) through targeted resourcing of specific public ordinary
schools.

e To contribute to the skills development training, create jobs in educational
institutions through Expanded Public Works Programme

Programme Outcomes

Outcomes

10-year-old learners enrolled in publicly funded schools read for meaning

ICT integrated in the provision of quality basic education

Youths better prepared for further studies and the world of work beyond Grade 9
Skills for a changing world

A well-defined holistic integrated inclusive education support system
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Linking performance with budgets

The programme spent R30.050 billion of the final appropriation of R29.866 billion for 2021/22 financial year,
overspending its budget by R184.692 million.

The over expenditure in social contributions is attributed to the employer’s contribution to medical aid and the
employer’s contribution on pension fund, which was not provided for in the departmental baseline during the
adjustment estimates as expected in terms of PSCBC Res 1 of 2021. The amount provided for as additional
funding of R1.054 billion for cash allowance was not adequate to cover the total salary increase implications,
hence the whole amount was allocated under salaries and wages.

Sub-programme expenditure

2020/21 2021/22

Sub- Programme Name Final Actual Over/Under Final Actual Over/Under
Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure Appropriation Expenditure | Expenditure

R’000 \ R’000 R’000 R’000 \ R’000 \ R’000 \

28,618,511

29,651,904

-1,033,393

29,866,018

30,050,710

Public Primary Level 9,645,351 9,968,918 (323,567) 9,978,283 | 10,340,802 (362,519)
Public Secondary Level 17,410,657 | 18,150,343 (739,686) | 18,250,561 | 18,122,921 127,640
Human Resource Development 92,164 91,402 762 88,919 75,016 13,903
School Sport, Culture and 15,909 8,237 7,672 10,461 1,952 8,509
Media Services

Conditional Grants 1,454,430 1,433,004 21,426 1,537,794 1,510,019 27,775

(184,692)

NX
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Linking performance with budgets

The programme spent R99.226 million of the final appropriation of R101.628 million for 2021/22 financial year,
underspending its budget by R2.402 million.

The underspending is due to the withholding of funds for non-compliant of 3 independent schools due to
late submission of quarterly reports (AFS) and also to underperforming schools

Sub-programme expenditure

Sub- Programme Name 2020/21 2021/22

Final Actual (Over)/Under Final Actual (Over)/Under
Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure |Appropriation| Expenditure | Expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

3.1 Primary Level 82,602 79,804 1,108 59,206 57,592 1,614
3.2 Secondary Level 59,187 58,914 273 42,422 41,634

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

Strategy to overcome under-performance

PPM 301 Improve the quality of monitoring and support provided to schools by the
Percentage of registered independent Department to ensure schools comply with policy prescripts.

schools receiving subsidies

PPM 302

Improve the quality of monitoring and support provided to schools by the

Number of leamers at subsidized registered Department to ensure schools comply with policy prescripts.

independent schools

PPM 303 _ _ & Utilise officials from other Directorates and Districts for visits. Strict
Percentage of registered independent schools visited  ang focused monitoring and support through visits and monthly
for monitoring and support reports validated at district level

e Finalisation of staff migration plan

\\ Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/. PAGE
—_— 54



Jeakh |ejoueuly
sy} Buunp awiy 1sdl Y} IO} SI0}EONPS
se 901n9s 2ljgnd 8y Buusius

panes .
asom sjs0d MO[2q pue 0¢ bmmcm slojeonpa 61 AINOD Aq patoaye
juejsisse Cl-d 8pelO pslENnD JO JSquINN Sjue}sissy s|jooyos sjsod juejsissy
pue Jojeonp3 ‘901 Wdd | 08 150 LY vy LSZ 8SLY Jojeanp3 | pazIpisqns 6/ somsIa v Jojeonp3 anes o) ¢ swwe.boid

(000.d) (Ayedidiunw
uonuaAISUI uonuaAISUI soueIdlauag [e20]

Sawoo)no ddv 1ad juads Jad uopeoojje Jo | saueloyauaq | AoaMISIg uoneso| awuweiboid
ajeipawwi] | a8y} ui syndinQ ayj o3 uonqiiUOD jobpng 19bpnq |ejo] | uonebaibbesig JO "ON aydeiboan UOIjUdAIBYU| j9bpng

olwapued 6L-AINOID 2Y3} 0} asuodsay jeuonnjipsuj uo ssaiboid

"120Z UoJ4e 0} 020z J1equiedeq 10} 028 LSO
LG Y Sem palisjsuel) Junowe ay| "sisod JuejsiSSy 10}eonpg SAES 0} JUBSW SEBM UOIUM puny Jaljoy 8y} Wolj pajiyeuad s|ooyos Juspuadapul pazipisqns €1 | 40 N0 6/

slwapued 6L-AIAOI 3y} 0} asuodsay |euoiinliysu] ayj uo buiuoday
a|qeoldde JoN

uoIjoUN 4 JUBLINDUOY YJIM SI10303S 10} siojeaipu] inding pue syndinQ pasipiepuelg 0} UoIje[ad Ul ddueuLIouad

PAGE 55

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

Eastern Cape Department of Education

NX



4.4 Programme 4: Public Special School Education
Purpose

To provide compulsory public education in special schools in accordance with the South African Schools Act
No. 84 of 1996 (as amended) and the White Paper 6 on special education. It is also to build an Inclusive
Education and Training System.

Sub-Programmes

Sub-Programmes

To provide specific public special schools with resources (including E-
learning and Inclusive Education).
To provide Departmental services for the development of educators and
non-educators in public special schools (including Inclusive education).
To provide for Departmentally managed sporting, cultural and reading
School Sport, Culture and Media Services activities in public special schools (including Inclusive education) and
required additional staff.
To provide for projects under Programme 4 specified by the Department of
Conditional Grants Basic Education and funded by conditional grants (including Inclusive
education).

Schools

Human Resource Development

Programme Outcomes

Well-defined holistic integrated inclusive education support system.
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Linking performance with budgets

The programme spent R944.476 million of the final appropriation of R955.947 million for 2021/22 financial
year. The programme has underspent in all sub programmes by R11,471 million.

The under expenditure is as a result of delays in the payment of historical overtime for special school
staff which was projectized and the delays are due to the verification processes coupled with the
allocation of the code by PT being issued for short periods of time. The underspending is also due to
austerity measures implemented by the Department to control the spending of goods and services and
machinery and equipment.

Sub-programme expenditure

2020/21 2021/22 |
Final Actual Over/Under Final Actual Over/Under

Sub- Programme Name |Appropriation| Expenditure | Expenditure Appropriation Expenditure |[Expenditure
R’000 \ R’000 \ R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

4.1. Schools 876,698 869,018 7,680 922,611 920,535 2,076
4.2. Human Resource 1,948 - 1,948 - - -
Development

4.3. School sport, culture and 1,180 841 339 16| 16 -
media services

4.4. Conditional Grants 34,079 26,237 7,842 33,320 23,925 9,395

896,096‘ 17,809

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

PPM Strategy to overcome under-performance ‘
PPM 401: e  Readvertise 26 Specialist posts within Special Schools with a special
Percentage of Special Schools serving emphasis on Special Schools within rural areas.
as Resource Centres e Increase the capacity of Special Schools by consider the expansion of new
PPM 402: Special Schools within the new financial year or increase the capacity of
Number of learners in Public Special existing Special Schools.

Schools . Increase advocacy campaigns for the girl-child for placements at School of

PPM 403: Skills.

Number of therapists/specialist staffin o Expansion of School of Skills programme at identified Special Schools

Special Schools e Continue to provide additional funding to Special School as Resource Centres
in order to provide outreach programmes to neighboring schools. Special
emphasis will be placed on provincial coordinated outreach services to rural
areas where learners do not receive all the necessary specialised support.

Performance in relation to Standardised Outputs and Output Indicators for Sectors with
Concurrent Function

Not Applicable
Reporting on the Institutional Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic

Not Applicable
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4.5 Programme 5: Early Childhood Development
Purpose

Early Childhood Development is a policy priority which was conceptualised in the Education White Paper 5 on
Early Childhood Education (May 2001) and highlighted in the National Development Plan as critical in laying a
strong foundation towards breaking the cycle of inequality and poverty.

Sub-Programmes

Sub-Programmes \ Purpose
To provide specific public ordinary schools with resources required for
Grade R in Public Schools Grade R.

Grade R in Early Childhood Development centers |To support Grade R level at Early Childhood Development centres.

To provide training and payment of stipends of Pre-Grade R

Pre-Grade R Training Practitioners/Educators.

To provide Departmental services for the development of practitioners
Human Resource Development and non-educators at public schools and ECD centres.

To provide for projects under Programme 5 specified by the Department
Conditional Grants of Basic Education and funded by Conditional Grants.

Programme Outcomes

Improving the foundational skills of literacy and numeracy

Improved access to quality early learning
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Linking performance with budgets

The programme has spent R516.607 million of the final appropriation of R587.605 million. The
programme has underspent its budget by R70.998 million.

The underspending is mainly on personnel due to unfilled vacancies caused by practitioners that has left
the system due to retirement and others who were appointed in the mainstream schools as Post Level 1
educators after acquiring the professional qualifications of ECD as well as Pre Grade R Training budget
which was set aside for training and development of Pre-Grade R (ECD NQF Level 4 qualification was
on the evaluation stage by year end hence the budget could therefore not be utilized as the tender
processes were not yet finalized.

Sub-programme expenditure
Final Actual Over/Under Final Actual Over/Under
5.1. Grade R in Public Schools 477,507 457,990 21,781 572,240 516,377 55,863

5.2. Pre-Grade R training 13,193 5,202 7,991 15,365 230 15,135
5.3. Human Resource - - -
Development

490700 463192 29,772 587,605 516,607 70,998

Performance in relation to Standardised Outputs and Output Indicators for Sectors with
Concurrent Function

Not Applicable
Reporting on the Institutional Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic

Not Applicable
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4.6 Programme 6: Infrastructure Development

Purpose

To provide and maintain infrastructure facilities for schools and non-schools.

Sub-Programmes

Sub-Programmes

Administration
Public Ordinary Schools

Special Schools

Early Childhood Development

Early Childhood Development (Pre-Grade R)

Programme Outcomes

To provide goods and services required for the office infrastructure
development and maintenance.

To provide goods and services required for public ordinary schools
(mainstream and full-service schools) infrastructure development and
maintenance.

To provide goods and services required for special school's
infrastructure development and maintenance.

To provide goods and services required for the early childhood
development infrastructure development and maintenance.

To provide maintenance services required for the Early Childhood
Development Centres operated by the registered Non-Profit
Organisations (NPO'’s).

School physical infrastructure and environment that inspires learners to learn and educators to teach
All schools meet the statutory safety standards resulting in safer schools,
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Linking performance with budgets

The programme has spent R1.214 billion of the final appropriation of R1.506 billion. The programme has
underspent its budget by R291.689 million.

The overall under expenditure is evident under Public Ordinary Schools mainly due to invoices that
could not be processed on time which relates to maintenance work for different implementing agents
which was set aside for fencing projects as part of the departments’ recovery plans but could not be
finalised. A rollover of unspent funds has been requested from Provincial Treasury for all unpaid
invoices

.Sub-programme expenditure

2020/21 \
Final Actual ‘ Over/Under‘ Final

2021/22 |
Actual Over/Under
Appropriation Expenditure Expenditure | Appropriation | Expenditure |Expenditure

R’000 R’'000 \ R’'000 \ R’'000 \ R’'000 \ R’000 \

Sub- Programme Name

118,313

6.1. Administration 614,224 608,411 5,813 202,184 257,453 (55,269)
6.2. Public Ordinary Schools 571,160 554,547 16,613 | 1,183,373 853,615 | 329,758
6.3. Public Special Schools 27,204 22,263 4,941 65,056 74,684 (9,628)
6.4. Early Childhood 128,050 37,104 90,946 56,018 29,190 26,828
Development

1,340,638 1,222,325 1,214,942 291,689

1,506,631

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

PPM Strategy to overcome under-performance

PPM 601 Improve project completions by engaging Implementing Agents (I1As)
Number of public schools provided with water and Department of Public Works and Infrastructure (DPWI) to
infrastructure accelerate projects at advanced stages to be completed by year end
PPM 604 deferring early-stage projects and commitments to outer years.

Number of additional classrooms built in, or
provided for, existing public schools (includes
new and replacement schools)

PPM 605 management assistance.

Number of additional specialist rooms built in A governance structure has been established to manage the
public schools (includes specialist rooms built in |Programme and the relationship with the Implementing Agents (in
new and replacement schools) terms of each SDA).

PPM 606

Number of new schools that have reached
completion (includes replacement schools)
PPM 610

Number of schools where scheduled
maintenance projects were completed

The appointment of a new Programme Support Unit (PSU) has been
finalized and the PSU has commenced duties. The initial workplan has
been expanded to support the rationalisation process and EFMS

The Department is now strictly enforcing the SDA requirement that
payment of any invoice will only proceed if all documentation and data
for that project is up to date on the EFMS.

A compliance checklist is being used to confirm all pertinent data and
documentation. The EFMS is also being enhanced to facilitate easier
extraction of the relevant audit reports in future.

Revise 2022 MTEF targets to align with realistic projects life cycle.

Performance in relation to Standardised Outputs and Output Indicators for Sectors with
Concurrent Function

Not Applicable
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4.7 Programme 7: Examinations and Education Related Services
Purpose
To provide education institutions as a whole with support.

Sub-Programmes

Sub-Programmes Purpose

Payments to SETA To provide employee HRD in accordance with the Skills Development Act.

Professional Services To provide educators and learners in schools with Departmentally managed support
services.

Special Projects To provide for special Departmentally managed intervention projects in the education
system as a whole.

External Examinations To provide for Departmentally Managed Examination services and Assessment
Services.

Conditional Grants Conditional Grant Projects

To provide for projects specified by the Department of Basic Education that are

applicable to more than one programme and funded from conditional grants:

To support South Africa's HIV prevention strategy by increasing sexual and
reproductive knowledge, skills and appropriate decision-making amongst learners
and educators.

To mitigate against the stigma of HIV and TB by providing a caring, supportive, and
enabling environment for learners and educators.

To improve performance of learners in Mathematics, Science and Technologies (MST)
through targeted resourcing of specific public ordinary schools.

To ensure the provision of a safe, rights-based environment in schools that is free of
discrimination, stigma, and any form of sexual harassment/abuse.

To reduce the vulnerability of children to HIV, TB and STl infection, particularly
orphaned and vulnerable children.

Programme Outcomes

Youths leaving the schooling system more prepared to contribute towards a prosperous and equitable South Africa.
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Linking performance with budget

The programme has spent R1.445 billion

spending is within budget allocated.

Sub-programme expenditure

Sub- Programme Name

Final

Appropriation

R'000 \

of the final

2020/21

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Over/Under
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

2021/22

Actual
Expenditure

R'000 \

appropriation of R1.445 billion. The programme

Over/Under
Expenditure

R’000

271,600

1,445,510

Payments to SETA 73,344 73,344 65,150 65 150 -
Professional Services 3,180 3,009 17 3,562 648 2,914
Special Projects 1,421,408 1,158,406 263,002 943,627 917,601 26,026
External Examinations 339,901 332,313 7,588 382,802 414,762 (31,960)
Conditional Grants 34,035 27,196 6,839 50,369 47,349 3,020

1,871 ,868‘

1 ,594,268‘

1,445,510‘

Strategy to overcome areas of under performance

PPM \ Strategy to overcome under-performance \
PPM 701: e Planning for district offices infrastructure improvement projects to include
Percentage of learners who passed examinations facilities.
National Senior Certificate (NSC) e Centralise the management of progressed learners.
e Release of bulletins and targeted recruitment of educators in scarce skills.
PPM 703: ¢ Intensify LAIS Programme to support Mathematics.
Percentage of Grade 12 learners e Collaborate with Teacher Development for training of educators on problematic
achieving 50% or more in Mathematics topics.
e Administer Provincially set June Common Papers
PPM 704: e Provide previous question papers for Physical Sciences
Percentage of Grade 12 learners e Administer Provincially set June common papers to prepare learners for the
achieving 50% or more in Physical Trial Examinations
Sciences ¢ Intensify Teacher Development trainings on challenging topics

Performance in relation to Standardised Outputs and Output Indicators for Sectors with
Concurrent Function

Not Applicable
Reporting on the Institutional Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic

Not Applicable

-\
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5. TRANSFER PAYMENTS

5.1 Transfer payments to all public entities
Not Applicable

5.2 Transfer payments to all organisations other than public entities
The table reflects the transfer payments made for the period: 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Name of the transferee| Purpose of which the funds  Amount Amount

were used transferred

budgeted for| Transferred

(R'000) (R'000)

Administration Exit Benefits for Individual 25,466 44,529 Due to unforeseen resignations, early
Personnel retirements, and deaths
Public Ordinary Norms and Standard for 697.922 698,155 Not Applicable
Schools Level funding to Public Ordinary
Schools
Public Ordinary National School Nutrition 1,402,713 1,402,480 Not Applicable
Schools Level Programme
Public Ordinary Exit Benefits for Individual 191,501 222,067| Due to employee resignations, early
Schools Level Personnel retirements not budgeted for, leave
gratuity backpays and deaths
Independent Schools Subsidy to qualifying 101,628| 99,226 Due to late submission of compliance
Subsidies Independent Schools reports (AFS) and also schools that
led to withholding of funds as they
performed less that the required norm
Public Special Schools | Norms and Standards to 144,005 143,407| Not Applicable
Public Special Schools
Public Special Schools | Exit Benefits for Individual 2,415 6,022 Due to unforeseen resignations, early
Personnel retirements, and deaths
Early Childhood All ECD Centre’s 32,114 25,843 This is attributed to a reduced number
Development of Practitioners to be trained because
of normal attrition and some others
who were appointed in the
mainstream schools as Post Level 1
educators after acquiring the
professional qualifications of ECD.
Early Childhood Exit Benefits for Individual 0 0 Not Applicable
Development Personnel
Infrastructure Exit Benefits for Individual 0 0 Not Applicable
Development Personnel
Payments to SETA Training and Development 65,150 65,150 Not Applicable
Payments to Marking 49,692 49,494 Not Applicable
Examinations Centre’s for Exam purposes
Examinations Exit Benefits for Individual - 9 Due to unforeseen resignations, early
Personnel retirements, and deaths
MECs Special Projects | MEC Top achievers 14,500 14,288 Not Applicable

NX
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6. CONDITIONAL GRANTS

6.1. Conditional Grant earmarked funds paid

Not Applicable

6.2. Conditional Grant earmarked funds received

The tables below detail the conditional grants and earmarked funds received during the period 1 April 2021 to

31 March 2022.

Conditional Grant 1: Mathematics, Science and Technology (MST) Conditional Grant

Department who transferred
the grant
Purpose of the grant

Expected outputs of the grant

Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amended DORA
Amount transferred (R’000)

Reasons if amount as per

DORA not transferred

Amount spent by the
department (R’000)

Reasons for the funds unspent

by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the
transferring department

NX

Department of Basic Education

To provide support and resources to schools, educators, and learners in line with the
Curriculum Assessment Policy Statement (CAPS) for the improvement of mathematics,
science and technology teaching and learning in selected public schools.

. Information, communication, and technology (ICT) subject specific resources
e  Workshop equipment, consumables, tools, and machinery:

. Laboratory equipment, apparatus, and consumables:

. Learner support:

e  Teacher support:

e  Administration, Monitoring and Evaluation

Information, communication, and technology (ICT) subject specific resources
e 30 schools were resourced with ICT resources.
o Workshop equipment, consumables, tools, and machinery:
e 62 schools received equipment, tools, and consumables for Civil, Mechanical and

Electrical Technology subjects.

Laboratory equipment, apparatus, and consumables:

. 30 schools received Physical Sciences Kits, 30 schools received Life Sciences kits
and 10 schools received Agricultural subjects’ tools and equipment.

Learner support:

. 600 learners participated in Science Olympiads. 50 000 learners befitted from
tuition classes conducted by Maths and Science Infinity Group.

Teacher support:

. 800 Maths, Science and Technical subjects’ educators attended teacher training
workshops.

Administration, Monitoring and Evaluation

e 20 schools were monitored and supported

The Department received an Original Allocation of R52 116 million

The Department received an additional allocation in the form of a rollover of R7.580
million through the Adjustment Budget. This resulted in a Final Allocation of R59.696
million

The total amount was transferred.

The actual expenditure was an amount of R 38,680, 000

The under expenditure was caused by delays in submission of quotations by service
providers. The Bas system of the department was down at crucial moments of grant
implementation. There are no standing contracts to procure Laboratory kits, Maths Kits,
and ICT resources. SITA delayed approving specification for ICT resources.

. Monthly reporting

e Quarterly reports

e Quarterly interprovincial meetings

. Provincial visits for monitoring & support
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Conditional Grant 2: National School Nutrition Programme

Department who transferred the grant Department of Basic Education

Purpose of the grant To provide nutritious meals to targeted learners on time

Expected outputs of the grant 4982 schools that prepare nutritious meals for learners (projected data)

1,637,267 learners benefitting from the provision of a nutritious meal
(projected data)

Actual outputs achieved 1,647,220 (Average cohort of learners over the four quarters)

4932 (Average number of schools over the four Quarters)
Amount per amended DORA The Department received an Original Allocation of r 1 443 715million
Amount transferred (R’000) R 1 443 715 million

(RCEET g S =100 (o10]0 | RF-E 0T AIDIO1 SN o1l All funds are transferred as per the approved business plan 2021/2022
transferred
Amount spent by the department(R’000) R 1437 852 136.00

[RCEETOI SN (TR (- (1o e CRNTT ETol-To | ANV UCM  The National School Nutrition Programme succeeded in spending 99.6% of
entity the allocated budget. An amount of R5 862 864 was underspent. R3 000 000
was set aside for the procurement of vehicles for monitoring purposes,
during the 4™ quarter, however the Programme experienced challenges with
the availability of new vehicles, which we understand is a national challenge.
(el s MNEIMERE MORGERIERS el The National School Nutrition Programme relies on school monitoring by
department 54 contracted monitors. Number of monitors per district is determined by the
number of schools that participate in the program. Monitors have been
provided with the tools to enable them to effectively monitor the schools.
Monitors utilise a standardised tool to monitor schools. Monitors present a
summary of schools visited, and planning for the next week every Friday. It
enables the team to respond to issues identified. Monitor tools are also
collated into a quarterly report, which is submitted to Basic Education. Once
again monitoring of schools were hampered in the first six months of the year
due to Covid — 19. Although monitoring did take place, it may not have been
that effective. In the second half of the year, we were successful in
increasing the number of visits to an average of 250 schools per week as to
the national standard of 102 visits per week.
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Conditional Grant 3: Infrastructure Education Grant

Department who transferred Eastern Cape Department of Education
the grant

Purpose of the grant e To help construction, maintenance, upgrading and rehabilitation of new and existing
infrastructure in education including district and circuit accommodation

e To address achievement of the targets set out in the minimum norms and standards
for school infrastructure

e  To address damages to infrastructure

e  To enhance capacity to deliver infrastructure in education

Expected outputs of the grant . Number of new schools, additional education spaces, education support spaces and
administration facilities constructed as well as equipment and furniture provided.

. Number of existing schools’ infrastructure upgraded and rehabilitated including
schools constructed of asbestos material and other inappropriate material

. Number of storm damaged schools rehabilitated

. Number of new and existing schools maintained

. Number of work opportunities created

. Number of new special schools provided, and existing special and full-service
schools upgraded and maintained

. Number of schools where contracts focused on the development and upgrading of
potable water supply and safe sanitation have reached practical completion

. Number of schools where contracts focussed on the COVID-19 emergency potable
water supply have reached practical completion

e  Number of schools where contracts focussed on the COVID-19 emergency safe
sanitation have reached practical completion

e Volume of water supplied through trucking (with details of which schools were
supplied on what dates)

. Number of schools provided with sanitisation materials and equipment (with
quantities specified)

Actual outputs achieved In general, a total of 44 projects were completed where Water, electricity and sanitation

were delivered at various schools.

. a total of 24 schools have received water;

e 22 schools received electricity.

e 24 sanitation projects completed at 24 schools.

e 384 classrooms delivered at 27 schools.

e 41 specialist classrooms completed at 10 schools: being a variance of 17 from the
target of 58.

e There has been an achievement of 10 Replacement schools which have reached
Practical Completion.

e A notable over achievement of 42 grade R Classrooms from the target of 28 grade R
Classrooms.

e A Cumulative of 12 maintenance projects has been completed.

The Department received an Original Allocation of R1.640 billion

Amount transferred (R’000) The Department received an additional allocation in the form of a rollover of R70.776

million through the Adjustment Budget. An amount of R205.122 million was surrendered

during a special second adjustment This resulted in a Final Allocation of R1.506 billion

Reasons if amount as per +205 122 not transferred due to inadequate expenditure of already transferred amounts

DORA not transferred

Amount spent by the 1214 942

department (R’000)

REEEER TR RO ENTEoill Amount of R217 220 million was not spent due to the unavailability of cash in the bank to

by the entity pay for the invoices that were received to be honored. This was coupled with the core

challenges pertaining to capacity challenges which were aggravated by the aftereffects of

the reprioritisation of budget in 2020 for Covid essentials to schools.

Monitoring mechanism by the Submission of the IPMP annually, monthly loading of information on the IRM and bi-

transferring department annual visits to the province as well as quarterly sector Sub-Hedcom meetings.
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Conditional Grant 4: HIV/AIDS Grant

Department who transferred Department of Basic Education
the grant
Purpose of the grant e To support South Africa’s HIV prevention strategy by:
- providing comprehensive sexuality education and access to sexual and
reproductive health services to learners
- supporting the provision of employee health and wellness programmes for
educators
e To mitigate the impact of HIV and TB by providing a caring, supportive, and enabling
environment for learners and educators
e To reduce the vulnerability of children to HIV, TB and STls, with a particular focus on
orphaned children and girls
Expected outputs of the grant e Co-curricular activities on provision of Comprehensive Sexuality Education (CSE),
access to Sexual and Reproductive Health (SRH) and TB services implemented in
secondary schools including a focus on prevention of alcohol and drug use and
learner pregnancy, targeting 15 000 learners. Curricular activities in primary schools
will focus on raising awareness of social issues and vulnerabilities such as how to
report abuse and support affected learners.

e Care and support programmes implemented to reach 15 000 learners and educators.
Expand the appointment of Learner Support Agents to 800 to support vulnerable
learners prioritizing primary schools, using the care and support for teaching, and
learning framework.

e Host advocacy and social mobilization events with 20 000 learners, educators and
school community members on the new DBE National Policy on HIV, STIs and TB to
review and change societal norms and values on the provision of comprehensive
sexuality education and access to sexual and reproductive health and TB services,
including a focus on key risk behaviors such as alcohol and drug use, learner
pregnancy, inter-generational and transactional sex amongst girls, multiple
concurrent sexual partnerships, power relations, respect for girls and other issues
that compel negative behavior amongst boys, as well as to advocate for the
integrated school health programme including provision of sexual and reproductive
health services such as contraception, STls, pregnancy and HIV testing, condom
distribution and information on safe circumcision in secondary schools.

Actual outputs achieved * 17 582 Learners and educators as well as 264 school community members reached

through advocacy of HIV risk factors.

» 840 Schools reached through TB and COVID-19 awareness activities

* 329 Educators trained on Quality Sexual Reproductive Health (SRH) and HIV
prevention programmes to implement as part of the LO Curriculum in their schools.

» 805 Learner Support Agents and 87 Keeping Boys in School Monitors appointed to
provide psycho-social support services to learners in schools as well as develop
programmes to address challenges faced by boy-children in schools thereby
creating a safety net and mitigating the scourge of Gender-Based Violence
(especially against girls and women).

« 86 126 Sets of CAPS compliant, age and grade appropriate LTSM provided to
learners. These included rulers with COVID -19 Management golden rules and
pictures for primary school learners, copies of the ISHP and Guidelines for Parents
on implementing ISHP, Posters on Anti- Bullying, the National School Safety
Framework as well as Safety Boxes for learners to drop notes on any abuse/bullying
incidents they encounter either at home or in schools.

* 564 Awareness Campaigns on Drug and Substance Use for learners and educators
conducted.

e 500 Educators trained to implement Comprehensive Sexuality Education (CSE) and
TB prevention programmes for learners to be able to protect themselves from HIV
and TB and associated key drivers including alcohol and drug use, leading to unsafe
sex, learner pregnancy and HIV infection, prioritising schools located in areas with
high burden of HIV and TB infections.

e 500 School Governing Bodies trained to develop policy implementation plans
focusing on keeping mainly young girls in school, ensuring that CSE and TB
education is implemented for learners in schools.

e 20 000 Copies of curriculum and assessment policy statement compliant material,
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Department who transferred
the grant

Amount per amended DORA

Reasons if amount as per
Amount spent by the
Reasons for the funds unspent

Monitoring mechanism by the
transferring department

Department of Basic Education

including material for learners with barriers to learning, printed, and distributed to
schools. Printing of the school policy pack will be prioritized over learner teacher
support material to ensure that all schools have a copy of the Department of Basic
Education’s (DBE) National Policy on HIV, STIs and TB for learners, educators,
support staff and officials in all primary and secondary schools in the basic
education sector.

R50 369 000

Initial amount was R45 089 000 and a roll-over of 5 280 000 was received.
R50 369 000

Not Applicable

R47 349 000

R 2 948 742 Committed funds due to delays in provision of invoices by service providers.
An application for roll-over has been made to Provincial Treasury.

The District Coordinators and Project Officers conduct monitoring and support visits to
schools. Districts/ CMCs also conduct Accountability meetings where the LSAs provide
reports on the implementation of the programme in their schools. The province also
conducts Accountability sessions with the Districts. DBE conducts an Annual Performance
evaluation of the Conditional Grant around May of each year evaluating the previous
financial year.

Conditional Grant 5.1: EPWP Grants - Integrated Incentive Grant

Department who transferred
the grant

Purpose of the grant

Expected outputs of the grant
Actual outputs achieved

Amount per amended DORA
Amount transferred (R'000)

Reasons if amount as per
DORA not transferred
Amount spent by the
department (R'000)

Reasons for the funds unspent
by the entity

Monitoring mechanism by the
transferring department

Department of Public Works & Infrastructure

Aims to support national building through involving young people in delivery of crucial
government service and through this enable these young people to acquire and apply
skills and values to access economic opportunities upon completion of the programme
and continue to engage with community activities and social processes.

To inculcate in young people an understanding of their role in the promotion of civic
awareness and national reconstruction.

Employment of 130 participants (80 farm assistance ,15 Care givers in special school ,10
School Cleaners and 10 Walking bus)

R4 586.000

R4 586.000

Not Applicable

R4 955 100
COE- Overspent due to permanent educators that are paid through this grant.

IYM Monthly reports and Quarterly reports
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Conditional Grant 5.2: EPWP Grants - Social Sector Incentive Grant

Department who transferred Department of Public Works & Infrastructure
the grant

Purpose of the grant To incentivize Provincial Social Sector Departments identified in 2014 Social Sector
EPWP log frame.
To increase work opportunities by focusing on the strengthening and expansion of Social
Sector programmes that have employment potential.
Improve quality of life through unemployment people creation and increased work.

Actual outputs achieved Achieved 1018 participants (150 school gardeners,160 school safety patrollers,296 care
givers in special schools and interpreters,150 school cleaners,50 walking buses,50 social
behavioral change agent ,60 data captures)

R 29 797 000

R R29 797000
Reasons if amount as per Not Applicable
Amount spent by the R30 646 307.70
department (R’000)

Reasons for the funds unspent COE- Overspent due to permanent educators that are paid through this grant.
Monitoring mechanism by the IYM, Monthly reports and Quarterly reports

Conditional Grant 6: Learners with Severe to Profound Intellectual Disability Grant

Department who transferred Department of Basic Education
the grant

Purpose of the grant To provide necessary support, resources, and equipment to identified care centres and

schools for the provision of education to children with severe to profound intellectual

disabilities

Expected outputs of the grant Improve access to quality basic education for children with severe to profound intellectual

disabilities in conditions that ensure dignity, promote self-reliance, and facilitate active

participation by training care givers, appointing therapist approved in outreach

Actual outputs achieved e  Trained 250 care givers on the learning program,

e  Appointed 30 officials who are therapist and senior education specialist to provide
outreach programs to the learners at special care centres.

° Equipped the care centres with kiddies’ furniture, provided Assistive to the PID
learners as well as LTSM to support daily implementation of the learning program.

Amount per amended DORA R 27 004 000
Amount transferred (R'000) R 27 004 000

Reasons if amount as per Not Applicable

DORA not transferred

Amount spent by the R 23 867 000

department (R'000)

Reasons for the funds unspent The amount allocated for COE could be spent all because of the delays that occurred in

by the entity terms of appointing six officials on the grant The delay resulted in under expenditure
accumulated in six months.

Monitoring mechanism by the The transferring Department monitor the receiving officer in terms of quarterly report,

transferring department quarterly onsite visit for monitoring, Desktop monitoring. Monitoring through share point.

7. DONOR FUNDS

7.1 Donor Funds received

Not applicable
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8. CAPITAL INVESTMENT

Capital investment, maintenance, and asset management plan

In general, a total of 44 projects were completed where Water, electricity and sanitation were delivered at
various schools. Therein, a total of 26 schools have received water; 22 schools received electricity; 24
sanitation projects completed; 384 classrooms delivered at 27 schools; 41 specialist classrooms completed at
10 schools; being a variance of 17 from the target of 58. There has been an achievement of 10 Replacement
schools which have reached Practical Completion. A notable over achievement of 42 grade R Classrooms
from the target of 28 grade R Classrooms. A Cumulative of 10 Maintenance projects has been completed.

The table below depicts the progress with 339 projects that were under construction at the end of the financial
year.

Rationalisation of schools and disposal of assets

In 2016 a total of 2077 schools in the province Cape were categorized as small and unviable, and on the
September 2016 the Department issued notices of intent to rationalize to 1 902. The Department has
undertaken a technically, rigorous, and scientific process by applying spatially referenced analytical techniques
and using disaggregated demographic analysis and projection enrolment analysis at circuit level to develop
long-term integrated, sustainable comprehensive institutional landscape plans termed Circuit School
Landscape Plans (CSLPs).

One of the first actions in the rationalisation process was to issue Section 33 letters (in terms of SASA, in which
the MEC advises a school that its closure is being contemplated and requests the school to provide reasons
why this should not proceed) to all schools identified for potential rationalisation. A total of 1 902 Off the 2 077
identified to be small and unviable, in total, 1 902 schools were issued with the Section 33 letters in September
2016. This formed the Baseline of schools to be rationalised and realigned in the province. To this end a
register of 1142 schools that have been gazetted as closed has been taken into cogniscance in the penning of
this plan.

Damage to infrastructure
The table below denotes the distribution and value of damage suffered by schools which were affected by
tornados. In it, some of the school buildings have to be demolished and new infrastructure erected. The

department is faced with this scurge of climate change induced events and needs to have a better plan in the
future.
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Maintenance of the Inmoveable Asset Register

The Department has a functional register of its immovable assets through the Education Facilities Management
System (EFMS), which continuously gets updated with new asset information (NEIMS assessment) on
completion of a project, thus maintaining the currency of the asset data

Whereas the updating of information sometimes proves to be challenging the department has sourced
Program managers to oversee information sanctity through an automated escalation system and an
amendment to IA SDAs to include penalty clauses on non-compliance. The department has further consented
to getting the EFMS as a sector wide Program system by its transferral to DBE and getting it to be hosted and
managed by SITA. The Department has also committed itself to (and budgeted for) updating its asset
information by conducting condition assessments at all schools over the current MTEF period

Furthermore, the resources in the Property management sub-Directorate are being increased which has been
a new Assistant Director joining the team together with 2 support staff while another post of the former was
advertised in February 2022.

Condition of assets

The Department currently has 5246 operational public ordinary schools in the province. whereas the
department conducted condition assessments in 2013 and 2014, the traction in updating such by 2018 was not
fully fulfilled.

the following points accounts for the strategy to make inroads into the matter.

. Completed Major Projects: the ASIDI, the Province and other donors completed a significant number
of projects in the last 3 years whose condition has significantly been upgraded.

. Closed schools: the list of 1142 closed schools need to be eliminated from the register of schools in
order that their condition does not form part of the assessment.

e Assessments for Major Projects: since 2018, various schools have been assessed to
receive new infrastructure through assessment made by various implementation agents.
That condition can be accounted for from the mentioned assessments.

However, while the strategy is to be deployed, the condition of the Department’s fixed assets, based on the
2013/14 assessments, is shown graphically below:

\\ Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ PAGE 79
[\



Condition status General description Rating
No effect on service capability. No risk. Repair cost less than 2,5% of

C5
replacement cost.

Excellent

Probability of risk to health and safety or property is slight. Low-cost

Good implications. Repair cost 2,5% — 6,4% of replacement cost.

c4

Risk index: Frequent inconvenience to operations. Some risk to health and
Fair safety or property. Medium cost implications. Repair cost 6,4% - 21,6% of C3
replacement cost.

Risk index: Many disruptions to service capability, some risk to health and
Poor safety or property. High-cost implication. Repair cost 21,6% - 50% of Cc2
replacement cost.

Risk index: Accommodation is unusable, immediate high risk to security, health
Very poor and safety or property. Significant cost impact. Repair cost greater than 50% of C1
replacement cost, should be replaced.
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The Department acknowledges that, to maintain the value of its physical assets, it needs to budget sufficient
funds for this purpose. Industry norms indicate that an annual budget of at least 2% of the replacement value
of the building should be made available for its maintenance. This would imply an annual maintenance budget
requirement of almost R1,2bn, which is the same order of magnitude as the entire infrastructure budget.

Infrastructure 2020/2021 \ 2021/2022
projects Final Actual (Over)/Under Final Actual (Over)/Under
Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure | Appropriation | Expenditure | Expenditure
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

New and 71959 79729 (8 134) 143 733 167 397 23 664
replacement assets

Existing 1141 705 460 497 681 208
infrastructure
assets

Upgrades and 1330 052 1209 879 120 173 921 328 387 051 534 277
additions

Rehabilitation, 249 228 218 477 30731 77 548 45072 32476
renovations, and

refurbishments

Maintenance and 71595 41 975 29 620 142 829 28 356 114 473
repairs

Infrastructure 157 113 -
transfer ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘

Current - - - - 156 755 -
Capital - - - - 358 -
Total \ | \ 1506631 | 1222325 | 284 306
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PARTC:

GOVERNANCE



1. INTRODUCTION

The Department is committed to ensuring the highest standards of governance as fundamental to the
management of public finances and resources. The Department intends to maintain good governance
structures in place to ensure internal controls measures effectively, efficiently, and economically in
utilizing the state resources, which is funded by the taxpayer. The Department also encourages
participatory governance through the establishment of governance structures such as School Governing
Bodies.

The Department understands and observes the principles of accountability, transparency, and responsiveness
in its internal and external engagement. Responses to all external oversight institutions such as the National
and Provincial Legislatures, the National Department of Basic Education, the Premier's Office, Provincial
Treasury and Auditor-General are accorded the seriousness they deserve. Risk management, prevention of
fraud and corruption and measures to minimize conflict of interest are constantly reviewed to promote clean
governance, effectiveness, and efficiency within the organization.

2. RISK MANAGEMENT

Enterprise Risk and Integrity Management assist the organisation to cope with incidents of risk and
promote business continuity. The office of the Enterprise Risk and Integrity Management has adopted a
risk management strategy and risk management policy framework, its intension is to ensure the
effectiveness of risk management as the integral part to reduce departmental risk and align with
principles of good corporate governance. Effective risk management will therefore assist the institution
to achieve high performance and service delivery target and reduce potential loss of resources. This
result in effective responsibility and accountability structures, improvement of performance and
compliance with laws and regulations, thus avoiding damage to its reputation. Additional key benefits
include:

. Aligning risk appetite and strategy

. Enhancing risk response decisions

. Ensuring proper financial and asset management

. Increasing probability of achieving objectives and planned target

The Department has adopted a Risk Management Implementation Plan which is approved by both the
Chairperson of Risk Committee and Head of Department and reviewed annually. The purpose of the
Implementation Plan is to guide the department on risk management matters and facilitate the execution
of risk management planned activities. Risk Assessment is conducted annually and monitoring of
implementation of planned actions is conducted quarterly in line with the principles of good governance.
All the identified risks both strategic and operational are presented quarterly in the Risk Management
meeting. Implementation of action plans are reported in all risk management meetings as part of
accountability sessions.

The Department has established the Risk Management Committee which constitute one external
member (Chairperson of the RMC) and one member from the departmental committee (audit
committee). The Risk Management Committee is to assist the Accounting Officer to maintain effective,
efficient, and transparent system of risk management. This entails identification and mitigation of risk
management systems.

The Departmental Chief Risk Officer sits in all Audit Committee meetings and present all the identified
risks and mitigation plans to the Chairperson of Audit Committee. The Audit Committee monitors the
implementation of action plans that mitigates identified risks through the strategic and operational risk
registers. The Audit Committee advice on the management of the risk management system and their
advice are independent, effective, and efficient.

The Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee has assisted the department in the
identification of the management risk and mitigation of risks, both committees are regularly monitor the
assessment of risk in order to identify emerging and significant risk in the department. Evaluate the
effectiveness of mitigating strategies implemented to address the material risk of the department.
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3. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

The Department has an approved “Fraud Prevention & Anti-Corruption Policy” which gets reviewed annually.
In all investigations the directorate participates in the process of disciplinary hearing, with intentions of
providing evidence for sanctions as deterrent factor. Areas of controls are identified by the unit as a
preventative measure, which include financial recording and financial reporting.

Mechanisms in place to report fraud and corruption and how these operate

Allegations reported to the National Anti-Corruption Hotline and are reported to Enterprise Risk and
Integrity Management unit via Superintendent General/ MECs office. Furthermore, allegations are
reported directly to the Director: Enterprise Risk and Integrity Management

. These allegations are documented on a case register. A file is opened for each case and the matter is
allocated to a team of investigators from Enterprise Risk and Integrity Management unit.

. A preliminary investigation is conducted to assess the credibility of allegations and whether it is
financially viable before we conduct a full-scale investigation. If a preliminary investigation confirms
the validity of allegations and financial viability of conducting an investigation, then a formal
investigation commences.

. Investigation commences by interviewing all relevant parties i.e., withesses and alleged perpetrator.
Request for information is forwarded to the section affected by the allegation. All documentation
received is recorded on the case register which is signed by the investigator and person submitting
the documents. Consultation takes place with external sources. All information is recorded in a
report which is supported by an evidence file with relevant documents. The draft report is reviewed
by the Director Risk Management. The reviewed report is signed by the investigator and Director
Risk Management

. The investigation report is forwarded to the Accounting Officers office for comments and approval.

The Accounting Officer reviews the content of the report and recommendations if necessary

4. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Department received preliminary data on the Conflict of Interest (COIl) report from Provincial Treasury
(PT). The Department’s HR Unit analysed and verified the data received and send the verified data back to
Provincial Treasury.
Upon receipt of verified data from PT, the Department perform the following functions:
. Verify whether they are falling in the following categories, board members, exam assistants, interns,
contract workers, etc. which is exempted and may trade with the State.
. Contact Suppliers telephonically requesting to provide consent to the Department to deregister them
from the CSD.
. Request PT to deregister those Suppliers who agreed to be deregistered from the CSD.
. Identify those officials who resigned from the company and is awaiting the deregistration of CIPC
process.
. Those officials who could not be traced are being referred to Labour Relations to contact them as they
are the custodians of employees.
. Officials who are conflicted (did business with government) are subjected to consequence
management through further investigations conducted by Risk Management and disciplinary actions
through Labour Relations.

It must be noted that no officials from the department conducted business with government for the year under
review as per the reports received Provincial Treasury for the 2021/22 financial year.

To minimize conflict of interest is to address the root cause of barring government officials from registering on
the Centralized Supplier database
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5. CODE OF CONDUCT

The Employment of Educators Act Code of Conduct is in Schedule 2 item 7 of the same act for both
institution and office-based educators. The Code of Conduct for employees employed in terms of Public
Service Act is in PSCBC Resolution No 1 of 2003, and for SMS members is in Chapter 7 of the SMS
Handbook.

Both Codes of conduct are adhered to by the Department at all material times and as such the
department is consistent in applying the rule to all its employees.
Process followed once there is breach of code:

The Presiding Officer together with the employer representative is appointed to initiate a formal
disciplinary hearing. The employee in breach of Code is served with the Notice of Disciplinary hearing.
In the Notice charges preferred against the employee will be clearly defined with a date and a venue for
the hearing.

The employee will be afforded the following rights:
* To be represented by a union official or a shop steward/ fellow employee.
* To cross examine the witness/es of the employer,
» To state his side of the story,
« If found guilty to appeal the sanction (Not Applicable to SMS members).
Employee Relations and Advocacy directorate will keep the information in a file and on PERSAL.

The office of the Enterprise Risk and Integrity Management has adopted Ethics Policy which is reviewed
annually and approved by the Head of Department. The main purpose of the policy is to promote good
ethical behavior in Public Service in the quest to achieve service excellence and desist from corruption
or any unprofessional conduct.

The policy promotes the following:

. Outline process of remunerative work outside the public service
. Prohibits rendering of business by employees with state organs
. Promote declaration of gifts

. Prohibits conflict of interest and post-public employment

e Advocacy of the departmental code of conduct

. Promotes financial disclosure and lifestyle audit

The office has established Ethics Committee chaired in the office of the Head of Department and it seats
quarterly. It reports all its activities to the Office of the Premier

6. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

1. STI, TB, HIV&AIDS

e The department managed to distribute 54140 male condoms and 12495 condoms for
prevention purposes of sexual infections.

e 78 of our male employees took the opportunity to test for HIV and 159 female employees
were tested.

e Employees who tested HIV positive were referred to their Medical Practitioners for
treatment and support.

e 839 employees were screened for TB and 17 of them were referred for clinical diagnoses.

e 195 employees were reached for Gender Based awareness.
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2. HEALTH & PRODUCTIVITY MANAGEMENT
917 employees were screened on High Blood Pressure, Diabetes, Obesity and Cholesterol
and those employees were educated on how to self-manage their chronic diseases.

429 employees were screened on Mental lliness and were advised how to manage their

mental health.

735 COVID-19 cases were received, and two employees succumbed to it.

3. SAFETY, HEALTH ENVIRONMENT, RISK AND QUALITY MANAGEMENT
91 OHS awareness educational programmes conducted

131 departmental service points audited for OHS compliance

270 Health and Safety representatives were trained on Health & safety issues
Occupational Health and Safety Committee meetings were conducted.

4. WELLNESS MANGEMENT
2309 employees were reached with health promotion messages.
713 employees received psychosocial interventions and support.
1023 employees received training on personal financial management.

7 employees were referred for debt counselling.

612 employees participated in departmental physical and recreational activities.

7. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES

Date | Matters address ' Resolution
22/04/2021 To consider the MEC’s, HOD and the CFO’s Overviews were accepted
Overviews. of 2021/22 Annual Performance
07/05/2021 Presentation of programmes. Programme presentations received
and accepted
13/05/2021 Presentation of programmes. Programme presentations received
and accepted
23/07/2021 Implementation of the house resolutions of Schools House resolutions were implemented
visited in Feb 2021 and follow up were conducted
State of readiness on follow up visits.
09/11/2021 Consideration of the MEC’s, HOD And the CFQO'’s Overviews were accepted
Overviews for the Mid Year 6 Monthly Oversight
Report And 2020/21 Annual Report
16/11/2021 Consideration of Annual reports and financial Annual reports and financial oversight
oversight reports. reports were responded to
18/01/2022 To assess school readiness for the year 2022. Reports Tabled
Implementation of house resolutions on School visits
(Feb 2021) and follow up visits (July & August 2021)
31/03/2022 Presentation of the MEC’s, HOD and CFQO’s Overviews were accepted
overviews. for 2022/23 Annual Performance
07/04/2022 Consideration of Appropriation bill. The Appropriation Bill was
accepted
21/04/2022 Consideration of t/he consolidated responses to oral All the consolidated responses
questions. were accepted and considered
Briefing by the MEC on the suspension of the HOD. The MEC briefed the departmental
employees about the suspension of
the HOD and the Acting HOD was
officially introduced to all staff
26/04/2022 Consideration of the consolidated responses to oral All the consolidated responses
questions. were accepted and considered
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9. PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

Nature of qualification, disclaimer, Financial year in Progress made in clearing /
adverse opinion and matters of non- which it first resolving the matter
compliance arose
Immovable Tangible Capital Assets was 2016-17 The department has adopted a two-fold
scoped in, in the 2016-17 financial year and approach on disclosing its Immovable
has received a qualified audit opinion from the Tangible Capital Assets which is a
Auditor-General. The main paragraphs are combination of Cost and Fair Value. A
Capital Work-In-Progress, Completed Assets methodology detailing the process has
and Section 42 Transfers. been developed in 2021-22 financial year

that is currently being audited by the
Auditor-General to ascertain whether we
have reasonably disclosed all our assets.

Transfers & Subsidies received a qualified 2020-21 The department has improved controls
audit opinion in the 2020-21 financial year. and developed a standard operating
procedure for the implementation of all its
transfers. The department has reviewed
all its transfers and collated all the
evidence to demonstrate that it has
addressed the shortcomings noted in the
2020-21 financial year. The department
has received guidance from National
Treasury coordinated by Provincial
Treasury on the treatment of Educator
and General Assistants which contributed
to the qualification received on Transfers
& Subsidies in the previous year.

10. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT

The Internal Control Unit elevated its efforts in its pursuit of advocating for a sound control environment
throughout the entire Department. The workforce of the Department had to understand that their role in
complying to the regulatory environment of the Department. It should be recognized, however, that' there are
inherent limitations in the effectiveness of Internal Control systems as they only provide reasonable assurance.
The Unit conducted compliance checks/assessment that are focused at preventing any financial loss, irregular,
fruitless & wasteful as well as unauthorized expenditure by performing pre-audit & pre-payment checks to all
transaction that were processed by the department for the 2021/2022 financial year under the following
categories:

. EPWP

. Exit benefits of employees

. Special Schools historical overtime

. Substitute Educators

. Operation Bhatala

. Supplier payments

. Conducted determination test on cases of Irregular, Fruitless & wasteful as well as Unauthorized
expenditure.

. Coordination of the Audit Improvement Plan

\\ Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ PAGE 9
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11. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES

Public Finance Management Act and the Treasury Regulations. Sections 3.2.11 and 3.2.12 of the state that:
“The internal audit function must assist the Accounting Officer in maintaining efficient and effective controls by
evaluating those controls to determine their effectiveness and efficiency, and by developing recommendations
for enhancement or improvement. The controls subject to evaluation should encompass the following-

(a) the information systems environment.

(b) the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information.
(c) the effectiveness of operations.

(d) safeguarding of assets; and

(e) compliance with laws, regulations, and controls.

The internal audit function must assist the Accounting Officer in achieving the objectives of the institution by
evaluating and developing recommendations for the enhancement or improvement of the processes through
which —

(a) objectives and values are established and communicated.
(b) the accomplishment of objectives is monitored.
(c) accountability is ensured; and corporate values are preserved

Of the 64 planned projects and tasks for the year, 43 projects and tasks were completed, and 4 projects are
still in progress. Details of the planned reviews as per the Audit Plan are outlined in the table below

NO | PROJECT / ACTIVITY ‘ PROJECT NAME ‘ STATUS ‘
1 | Activity Monthly Reports and Meetings Complete
2 | Activity Audit Committee Meeting packs and Minutes Complete
3 | Project Performance Information Q4 Review Complete
4 | Project Annual Report Review Complete
5 | Project AFS Review Complete
6 | Project Human Resources - Terminations (In Reporting Not Done

Stage)
7 | Project (AdHoc) Verification of Employees (Collaboration with AG) Complete
Project LTSM 2020/21 - Rollover Complete
9 | Project Transfer Payments - Rollover Conditional Grants Complete
10 | Project Transfer Receipts H/O (IYM) — Rollover (Moved to In progress
Q4)
11 | Project Supply Chain Management — Rollover Complete
12 | Project (AdHoc) Verification of Moveable Assets (Collaboration with Complete
AG)
13 | Project (AdHoc) Capped Leave Complete
14 | Activity Internal Control Dashboard Not done
15 | Activity Implementing IIA QAR Report Recommendations In Progress
16 | Project Occupation Health & Safety (OHS) Complete
17 | Activity Monthly reports and meetings Complete
18 | Activity Audit Committee Meeting Packs and Minutes Complete
19 | Project AdHoc and Consulting Projects: Training of Schools Complete
20 | Project AdHoc and Consulting Projects: BEEI Project Audit Complete
21 | Project Review of Audit Intervention Plan Complete
22 | Project Performance Information Q1 Complete
23 | Project Interim Financial Statements Review Q1 Complete
24 | Project Risk Management - Follow up Complete
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NO PROJECT / ACTIVITY ‘ PROJECT NAME ‘ STATUS
25 | Project Fraud and Corruption - Roll over Complete
26 | Project PPN Review Complete
27 | Project Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Not done

Regulations Compliance - follow up- Rollover Q3

2020/21
28 | Project Entity Management Complete
29 | Project Revenue (Hostels) Follow up Complete
30 | Project Payroll Management - S&T Complete
31 | Project Review of EMIS & SASAMS data - Rollover Not done
32 | Project ICT Reviews - Roll over Complete
33 | Activity SCOPA Responses Review Complete
34 | Project Performance Agreements (SMS members) Not done
35 | Project Supervision and monitoring of teaching Not done
36 | Project Early Childhood Development Audit Not done
37 | Project Management of school finances Not done
38 | Project Review of Management of Poorly Performing Schools | Not done
39 | Project Review of Special Schools Not done
40 | Project FMCMM Complete
41 | Project (AdHoc) Review of AIP Implementation (September to Complete

November)
42 | Project Asset Management Review In Progress
43 | Activity Monthly reports and meetings Complete
44 | Activity Audit Committee Meeting Packs and Minutes Complete
45 | Project Infrastructure Not done
46 | Project Performance Information Q2 Complete
47 | Project Interim Financial Statements Review Q2 Complete
48 | Project Performance Information Q3 Complete
49 | Project Interim Financial Statements Review Q3 Complete
50 | Project SCM 21/22 Not done
51 | Project Governance follow-up Not done
52 | Project MPAT Project discontinued
53 | Project IQMS and Curriculum Not done
54 | Project District Financial Management Not done
55 | Project Transfer Payments In progress
56 | Activity Monthly reports and meetings Complete
57 | Activity Audit Committee Meeting Packs and Minutes Complete
58 | Activity Audit Committee Charter Complete
59 | Activity Internal Audit Charter Complete
60 | Activity AC Packs and minutes Complete
61 | Activity Quality Assurance and Improvement Program Complete
62 | Activity 3 Rolling and Annual Internal Plan Complete
63 | Project APP Review Not done
64 | Project LTSM 22/23 Not done

The Department appointed an external Service Provider for a period of 3 years as co-sourced

internal audit to capacitate the unit until the Department’s Organogram is fully populated.
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Key Objectives and Activities of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is an independent governance structure whose function is to provide an oversight role on
the system of internal control, risk management, and governance. The Audit Committee operates in terms of
written terms of reference, which deal with membership, authority, and responsibilities. These also ensure that
its responsibilities in terms of the Act and the Regulations are met.

The table below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members:

No. of Meetings

If internal,
P attended
o Internal or | position in . Date X n
Qualifications Date appointed . (including
external the Resigned
SCOPA
department i
meetings)
Justin Emslie CA(SA) External N/A 1 January 2018 N/A 9
Singa Nggwala BCOM External N/A 1 February 2018 N/A 6
(Honours)
Fungai Mushohwe CA(SA) External N/A 1 January 2018 N/A 6
Zamela Kiviet ACIS External N/A 1 November N/A 6
2019

12. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee is pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2022.
Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from Section 38 (1) (a) (ii) of
the Public Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it
has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in
compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein, except that we
have not reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control

Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit, which was based on the risks identified, revealed internal
control weaknesses which were raised with the management during the year.

The unit managed to complete a total of 21 activities and audits including mandatory and risk-based audits.
The planning however extended to a greater number of risk-based audits that were not completed during the
year. Several of these remained in progress at year end and have been taken into consideration for the
ensuing plan.

The unit completed two assignments on behalf of the Auditor General of South Africa (AGSA), and we thank
the AGSA for this opportunity.

The unit also undertook skills training and acted as secretariat to the Audit Committee. The unit did raise
significant control weaknesses on the completed projects, and these have been communicated with relevant
programs. The committee will continue to monitor implementation of these plans.

The recommended findings tracking tool to enhance effectiveness of the unit was not implemented by year end
and this recommendation remains.

In-Year Management and Monthly/Quarterly Report

The department has reporting monthly and quarterly to the Treasury as is required by the PFMA.

Risk Management
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The audit committee requested quarterly reporting on risk management through that unit and the risk
committee chair. The reports received highlighted progress addressing strategic and operational risks and
identification of emerging risks.

Throughout the year the committee expressed concern on the functioning of risk management and the risk
committee structures within the Department. It was evident that these structures were not functioning as
expected, providing limited assurance through reduced efficiency.

The committee has not been satisfied with the resourcing of risk management as we believe it is not adequate
for a department the size of Education and it remains a committee recommendation that the unit be further
capacitated and that systems be set in place to enhance effectiveness and communication.

Evaluation of Financial Statements and Performance reporting

The committee reviewed the annual financial statements and reporting on predetermined objectives for the
2021/2022-year end. Through this process the committee:
e Reviewed explanations for significant fluctuations compared to previous year and variances between
the financial statements and budgeted amounts.
e Reviewed any new or proposed legislation that may have an impact on policies, the financial
statements and disclosure therein.
e Reviewed the findings of Internal Audit on their review on the reporting.
e Enquired into the adequacy, reliability, and completeness of supporting information as supporting
these financial statements.

Based on our review the committee concluded that the financial statements and performance report should be
timeously submitted to the AGSA for auditing as required by the PFMA. This was to maintain compliance with
the reporting timeframes, despite concerns remaining following our review. Correction of prior year risk and
qualifications areas remained a concern despite progress against these.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The department continued to incur unauthorised expenditure in contravention of the PFMA and its Regulations.
The contributors as highlighted in the notes to the Appropriation Statement in the financial statements.

As reported in the financial statements the department continues to report irregular and fruitless and wasteful
expenditure.

Auditor General’s Report

We have reviewed the department’s implementation plan for audit issues raised in the previous year. We are
satisfied that progress has been made against issues raised except for the following:
e Immovable assets and capital work in progress has not been adequately resolved and the department
is to continue implementing recommendations to resolve these reporting issues.
e Transfers payments for transfers to schools continue to have control issues as reported in the prior
year and the auditors raise this as a continuing risk area.
e  Procurement — although not impacting audit opinion, the department incurred irregular and fruitless
and wasteful expenditure as per the financial statements indicating procurement controls require
review together with the implementation of consequence management.

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the conclusions of the AGSA on the annual financial
statements. The audited annual financial statements should be accepted and read together with the report of
the Auditor-General.

Appreciation
The Committee expresses its sincere appreciation to the Honourable MEC, Accounting Officer, Management,

Internal Audit, Provincial Treasury and the AGSA for their co-operation in enabling the Committee to fulfil its
responsibilities.

Mr JJ Emslie CA(SA)
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Eastern Cape Department of Education
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13. B-BBEE COMPLIANCE REPORTING

One measure is applicable to the Eastern Cape Department of Education, namely, the development and the
implementation of the Preferential Procurement Policy. In this regard the signed ECDoE SCM Policy and
Preferential Procurement Policy is compliant with this measure.

In respect of the subsequent measures only two measures will be applicable to the ECDoE, namely,

e developing criteria for entering into partnerships with the private sector — Public Private Partnerships
which is in the process of being established and,

e determining criteria for the awarding of incentives, grants (NPO’s — ECD centres) and investment
schemes in support of Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment which can only be reported when
the ECD function shift has been completed and handed over to the ECDoE.

The progress made by the Department in terms of complying with the B-BBEE Act 13G (1) was submitted to
DTI through Provincial Treasury in October 2021.
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PART D:

HUMAN RESOURCE
MANAGEMENT



1. INTRODUCTION

The Eastern Cape Department of Education has a responsibility to ensure that there is maximum access to
quality basic education and training which is provided to the citizens of this Province. This mandate is
supported by the following service delivery outcomes:

e To improve the quality of teaching, learning and assessment within compulsory school-going phases.

e To improve all educational institutions and develop them into thriving centres of excellence.

e To strive to progressively provide access to further/higher education.

e The provision of adequate supply of the right quantity and quality of suitably qualified educators and
practitioners; and

e The acquisition of the skills required to drive the curriculum, administration, social and psychological
support programmes.

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resource Development plays a key role in the improvement of service delivery in the department
by investing in the skills of current employees as well potential employees. HRD refers to employee
training, career development, performance development, mentoring, coaching and all other
developmental needs that might be required by employees

The Department has two types of employees, namely, educators and public servants. The employment of
these employees is based on the Organisational Structure that came to effect on the 1 April 2020.The number
of employees in the Department is 64,879. The distribution of these employees is as follows:

e  Public school educators are 51,179

e Office Based Educators are 1,277

e ECD Practitioners are 3,302

e  Public Servants are 9,116 of which 6,520 are in schools

e The total number of males is 18,256 versus 46,623 females.

Employees are attracted to caring organisations thus the Department strives to demonstrate a pleasant
working culture, enabling the Department to retain talented employees. It is also imperative to offer
development programmes to employees in line with their career paths within the organisation, thus, will
result in growth of employees. The Department will strive to be an employer of choice to attract
employees of high caliber. A talent pipeline for employees will be designed to facilitate probable
employee growth within the Department instead of seeking greener pastures elsewhere.

The Department executed the Presidential Youth Employment Initiative in a short space of time. It is no
mean fit to appoint more than 55 000 employees within a month. Although there were challenges, the
programme was a success and the Department received accolades from the National Basic Education
Department on the manner the programme was run by the Department.

Teacher development programmes were effective, as shown by the improvement in the grade 12 results.
The improvement in grade 12 results may also be attributed to the recruitment of educators who are
adept in their subjects they are teaching as well as managers in schools who lead by example. In the
dynamic world of education, the workforce of the Department does not respond to some of the needs of
the sector. There are gaps in the current workforce, such that there are subjects (e.g., Afrikaans,
Technical Mathematics, Technical Science, etc.) that the Department finds difficult to get educators for.
The Department is planning to engage Higher Education Institutions (HEI) to discuss areas of needs by
the Department so that programmes offered by HEI respond to the needs of the sector. The Department
will continue offering bursaries in line with the needs of the sector as agreed to with the HEI.
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The Department has been unable to fill some of the critical Senior Management positions due to
budgetary constraints. This has resulted in the Department appointing employees on acting capacity in
the SMS positions, because these positions cannot be left unoccupied as they drive the strategic
direction of the Department

Covid-19 became the new normal which meant as Human Resource Development had to come up with ways
of ensuring that employees are continuously skilled to be able to cope with their work. HRD introduced more
focused skills development programmes to ensure that the training implemented are addressing the skills
needs of employees per their Key performance Areas (KPAs). Even though the department had to prioritise
training for its officials also managed to keep to the provinces mandate of ensuring that the unemployed youths
are also provided with opportunities such as work experience and skills development
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Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2022
Critical occupation Number of Number | Vacancy | Number of

posts on of Rate employees

approved posts additional to

establishment | filled establishment
Administrative Related, 260 82 68.50 9
All Artisans in The Building Metal Machinery Etc., 11 5 54.50 -
Architects Town and Traffic Planners, 22 2 90.90 1
Artisan Project and Related Superintendents, 2 1 50 -
Auxiliary And Related Workers, 48 26 45.80 -
Biochemistry Pharmocol. Zoology & Life Scie.Techni, 1 1 - -
Building And Other Property Caretakers, 90 33 63.30 1
Bus And Heavy Vehicle Drivers, 12 5 58.30 2
Cleaners In Offices Workshops Hospitals Etc., 3348 1694 49.40 181
Client Inform Clerks (Switch Recept Inform Clerks), 8 6 25 -
Community Development Workers, 2 1 50 1
Compositors Typesetters & Related Printing Workers, 1 1 - -
Computer Programmers., 2 2 - 1
Computer System Designers and Analysts., 39 1 97.40 1
Conservation Labourers, 3 3 - -
Custodian Personnel, 1 1 - -
Diplomats, 1 1 - -
Earth Moving and Related Plant Operators, 1 1 - -
Engineers And Related Professionals, 4 2 50 -
Farm Hands and Labourers, 4 3 25 -
Farming Forestry Advisors and Farm Managers, 35 23 34.30 -
Finance And Economics Related, 187 72 61.50 2
Financial And Related Professionals, 263 65 75.30 4
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers, 613 372 39.30 13
Fire Fighting and Related Workers, 1 1 - -
Food Services Aids and Waiters, 309 171 44.70 6
General Legal Administration & Rel. Professionals, 1 1 - 1
Geologists Geophysicists Hydrologists & Relat Prof, 6 1 83.30 -
Head Of Department/Chief Executive Officer, 6 4 33.30 -
Household And Laundry Workers, 897 419 53.30 15
Household Food and Laundry Services Related, 10 9 10. -
Housekeepers Laundry And Related Workers, 11 9 18.20 -
Human Resources & Organisational Development & Relate Prof, | 107 37 65.40 -
Human Resources Clerks, 731 448 38.70 6
Human Resources Related, 388 85 78.10 25
Inspectors Of Apprentices Works and Vehicles, 54 25 53.70 5
Legal Related, 14 3 78.60 -
Library Mail and Related Clerks, 163 89 45.40 -
Light Vehicle Drivers, 162 82 49.40 3
Logistical Support Personnel, 100 44 56 0
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Critical occupation

Number of
posts on
approved

establishment

Number
of
posts
filled

Vacancy
Rate

Number of
employees
additional to
establishment

Material-Recording and Transport Clerks,

Mathematicians And Related Professionals, 2 - 100 -
Messengers Porters And Deliverers, 32 17 46.90 -
Motor Vehicle Drivers, 1 1 - -
Nursing Assistants, 9 7 22.20 -
Occupational Therapy, 22 11 50 1
Operational Planning, 2 - 100 -
Other Administrat & Related Clerks and Organisers, 4,458 3,173 28.80 250
Other Administrative Policy and Related Officers, 507 216 57.40 22
Other Information Technology Personnel., 32 16 50 3
Other Occupations, 66 666 56 532 15.20 5925
Physiotherapy, 3 3 - 1
Professional Nurse, 6 2 66.70 -
Quantity Surveyors & Rela Prof Not Class Elsewhere, 8 3 62.50 1
Rank: Departmental Head, 100 - 100 -
Rank: Deputy Principal, 25 - 100 -
Rank: Principal P1, 19 - 100 -
Rank: Principal P2, 25 - 100 -
Rank: Principal P3, 6 - 100 -
Rank: Principal S1, 8 - 100 -
Rank: Teacher, 332 - 100 -
Risk Management and Security Services, 28 - 100 -
Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating Clerks, 168 106 36.90 24
Security Guards, 411 281 31.60 3
Security Officers, 288 148 48.60 3
Senior Managers, 181 51 71.80 13
Speech Therapy and Audiology, 9 3 66.70 -
Staff Nurses and Pupil Nurses, 18 15 16.70 -
Trade Labourers, 4 1 75 -
Trade/Industry Advisers & Other Related Profession, 1 - 100 -
Youth Workers, 98 31 68.40 2

TOTALS
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The following table summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 3.4.4 Profile of employees who have salary levels higher than those determined by job
evaluation for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Gender Coloured White

Female

Male

Employees with disability - - N _ -

Notes
. If there were no cases where the salary levels were higher than those determined by job evaluation, keep the
heading, and replace the table with the following:

Total number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determine by job None

evaluation

3.5 Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates
provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following tables provide
a summary of turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022
Salary band Number of Appointments Terminations and Turnover

employees at and transfers | transfers out of the rate

beginning of into the department

period-1 April department

2021

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 394 6 7 1.8
Skilled (Levels3-5) 5301 56 269 5.1
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 43918 2929 2,878 6.6
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 12 854 29 1,203 9.4
Senior Management Service Bands A 42 1 5 11.9
Senior Management Service Bands B 17 - 2 11.8
Senior Management Service Bands C 1 - 1 100
Senior Management Service Bands D 1 - - -
Other 3419 4 125 3.7

5
Total 65947 3 066 4 490 6.8% ‘

Table 3.5.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March

2022

Number of
employees at
beginning of

Appointments
and transfers
into the
department

Terminations and
transfers out of
the department

Turnover

Critical occupation
rate

period-April
2021

Administrative Related

All Artisans in The Building Metal

Etc.

Machinery Etc. o 4 44.40
Architects Town and Traffic Planners 3 - - -
Artisan Project and Related -

. 2 1 50
Superintendents
Auxiliary And Related Workers 28 - 1 3.60
Biochemistry Pharmacol. Zoology & Life 1 - - -
Science.Techn
Building And Other Property Caretakers 36 - 1 2.80
Bus And Heavy Vehicle Drivers 6 - 1 16.70
Cleaners In Offices Workshops Hospitals 1,839 4 154 8.40
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Critical occupation

Client Inform Clerks (Switch Recept
Inform Clerks)

Number of
employees at

beginning of
period-April
2021

Appointments
and transfers
into the
department

Terminations and
transfers out of
the department

Turnover
rate

Communication And Information Related

Community Development Workers

Compositors Typesetters & Related
Printing Workers

Computer Programmers. 2 - - -
Computer System Designers and 1 - - -
Analysts.
Conservation Labourers 3 - - -
Custodian Personnel 1 - - -
Diplomats 1 - - -
Earth Moving and Related Plant 1 - - -
Operators
Engineers And Related Professionals 2 - - -
Farm Hands and Labourers 3 - - -
Farming Forestry Advisors and Farm 25 - 2 8
Managers
Finance And Economics Related 81 - 10 12.30
Financial And Related Professionals 71 3 9 12.70
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 384 - 12 3.10
Fire Fighting and Related Workers 1 - - -
Food Services Aids and Waiters 181 - 7 3.90
General Legal Administration & Rel. 1 - - -
Professionals
Geologists Geophysicists Hydrologists & - - -
1
Relat Prof
Head Of Department/Chief Executive Officer 4 - - -
Household And Laundry Workers 437 - 19 4.30
Household Food and Laundry Services - - -
5
Related
Housekeepers Laundry And Related - - -
7
Workers
Human Resources & Organisat Developm & 40 - 3 750
Relate Prof
Human Resources Clerks 474 - 26 5.50
Human Resources Related 89 23 27 30.30
Inspgctors Of Apprentices Works and 28 - 3 10.70
Vehicles
Legal Related 3 - - -
Library Mail and Related Clerks 95 - 6 6.30
Light Vehicle Drivers 84 2 4 4.80
Logistical Support Personnel 53 - 9 17
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 457 - 27 5.90
Messengers Porters And Deliverers 17 - 2 11.80
Motor Vehicle Drivers 1 - - -
Nursing Assistants 7 - - -
Occupational Therapy 12 - 1 8.30
Other Adm|n|strat & Related Clerks and 3,232 2 58 1.80
Organisers
Other Administrative Policy and Related 239 2 o7 11.30
Officers
Other Information Technology Personnel. 16 - - -
Other Occupations 57 217 3000 4030 7
Physiotherapy 1 1 - -
Professional Nurse 3 - - -
Quantity Surveyors & Rela Prof Not Class 1 2 - -
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Number of
employees at

Appointments

Terminations and

Critical occupation beginning of .and transfers transfers out of LCLUCE
. . into the rate

period-April dopaitmont the department

2021
Elsewhere
Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating 04 18 5 530
Clerks
Security Officers 156 - 10 6.40
Senior Managers 58 1 10 17.20
Speech Therapy and Audiology 2 1 - -
Staff Nurses and Pupil Nurses 12 4 1 8.30
Trade Labourers 2 - 1 50
Youth Workers

32 - - R
47 3 066 4 490 6.8%

Total 659

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the department.

Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left the department for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Termination Type | Number % Of Total Resignations |
Death 404 9.0%
Resignation 555 12.4%
Expiry of contract 1726 38.4%
Discharged due to ill health 76 1.7%
Dismissal-misconduct 34 0.8%
Retirement 1695 37.8%

TOTAL

4 490

100%

Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 22021 and 31 March 2022

Notch
Employment | Promotions Salary Progressions | Progression
Frmeaen _at : to another Leve_l to anot_her as a % of
Beginning Salary Promotions Notch within  Employees
of Period Level asa% Salary Level by
Occupation
Administrative Related

All Artisans in The Building Metal Machinery. 9 - - 8 88.9
Architects Town and Traffic Planners 3 - - 2 66.7
Artisan Project and Related Superintendents 2 - - 2 100
Auxiliary And Related Workers 28 - - 27 96.4
Biochemistry Pharmacol. Zoology & Life Scie.Techni 1 - - 1 100
Building And Other Property Caretakers 36 - - 33 91.7
Bus And Heavy Vehicle Drivers 6 - - 6 100
Cleaners In Offices Workshops Hospitals. 1839 - - 1755 95.4
Client Inform Clerks (Switchb Recept Inform Clerks) 6 - - 6 100
Communication And Information Related 1 - - 1 100
Community Development Workers 1 - - 1 100
Compositors Typesetters & Related Printing Workers 1 - - 1 100
Computer Programmers. 2 - - 2 100
Computer System Designers and Analysts. 1 - - 1 100
Conservation Labourers 3 - - 3 100
Custodian Personnel 1 - - 1 100
Diplomats 1 - - 1 100
Earth Moving and Related Plant Operators 1 - - 1 100
Engineers And Related Professionals 2 - - 2 100
Farm Hands and Labourers 3 - - 3 100
Farming Forestry Advisors and Farm Managers 25 - - 23 92
Finance And Economics Related 81 1 1.2 77 95.1
Financial And Related Professionals 71 - - 7 100
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 384 - - 379 98.7
Fire Fighting and Related Workers 1 - - 1 100
Food Services Aids and Waiters 181 - - 176 97.2
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Occupation

Promotions

Salary

Progressions

Employment
~t

4 annthar

1L aval

General Legal Administration & Rel. Professionals 1 - - 1 100
Geologists Geophysicists Hydrologists & Relat Prof 1 - - 1 100
“““ Head of Department/Chief Executive Officer 4 - - 4 100
Household And Laundry Workers 437 - - 429 98.2
Household Food and Laundry Services Related 5 - - 9 180
Housekeepers Laundry And Related Workers 7 - - 9 128.6
Human Resources & Organisat Developm & Relate Profit 40 - - 38 95
Human Resources Clerks 474 - - 458 96.6
Human Resources Related 89 - - 64 71.9
Inspectors Of Apprentices Works and Vehicles 28 - - 26 92.9
Legal Related 3 - - 3 100
Library Mail and Related Clerks 95 - - 93 97.9
Light Vehicle Drivers 84 - - 83 98.8
Logistical Support Personnel 53 - - 50 94.3
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 457 - - 442 96.7
Messengers Porters And Deliverers 17 - - 17 100
Motor Vehicle Drivers 1 - - 1 100
Nursing Assistants 7 - - 7 100
Occupational Therapy 12 - - 11 91.7
Other Administrat & Related Clerks and Organisers 3232 - - 3192 98.8
Other Administrative Policy and Related Officers 239 - - 227 95
Other Information Technology Personnel. 16 - - 16 100
Other Occupations 57 217 1269 2.2 53 904 94.2
Physiotherapy 1 1 100 2 200
Professional Nurse 3 - - 2 66.7
Quantity Surveyors & Rela Prof Not Class Elsewhere 1 - - 1 100
Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 94 - - 106 112.8
Security Guards 289 - - 285 98.6
Security Officers 156 - - 154 98.7
Senior Managers 58 2 34 50 86.2
Speech Therapy and Audiology 2 - - 2 100
Staff Nurses and Pupil Nurses 12 - - 14 116.7
Trade Labourers 2 - - 2 100
Youth Workers 32 - 31 96.9

TOTAL

1273

1.9 62 403

65 947

Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Salary Band

1 April
2021

Employees

Promotions
to another
salary level

Salary
bands
promotions

as a % of

employees

by salary
level

Notch
progression
as a % of
employees
by salary
bands

Progressions
to another
notch within
a salary level

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 394 - - 414 105.1
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 5301 - - 5115 96.5
Highly Skilled Production (Levels 6-8) 43918 503 1.1 44 332 100.9
Highly Skilled Supervision (Levels 9-12) 12 854 767 6 12 486 971
Senior Management (Levels 13-16) 61 3 4.9 53 86.9
Other 3419 - - 3 0.1
Total 65 947 1273 1.9 62 403 94.6%
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3.6

Employment Equity

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

following occupational categories as on 31 March 2022

Occupational Male ~ Female = Total
gatdely African | Coloured | Indian White | African | Coloured Indian | White

Leg|§lators, senior 29 4 1 1 19 3 57
officials, and managers
Professionals 13 207 1187 57 702 32 683 2422 142 2 362 52762
Technicians and 121 14 1 6 236 15 - 15| 408
associate professionals
Clerks 1053 33 - 5 3201 204 3 122 4621
Service and sales 349 34 - 1 77 9 - - 470
workers
Craft and related trades 20 1 - 0- 11 ) - - 32
workers
Plant and machine - - -
operators and 73 9 4 1 2 89
assemblers
Labourers and refated 1155 162 i 15 | 4667 321 1 95 | 6416
workers
Other 10 - - - 8 - - 1 19
Total 16 017 | 1444 59 734 | 40903 2976 146 | 2595 64874 |
Employees with 47 10 - 3 60 3 - 9 132
disabilities

Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

Occupational band

Top Management

following occupational bands as on 31 March 2021
Male

Female

‘ Total

African‘ Coloured ‘ Indian White ‘ African Coloured Indian ‘ White ‘

Senior Management

28

15

51

Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists and
mid-management

4332

581

32

258

5743

528

54

521

12 049

Skilled technical and
academically qualified
workers, junior
management, supervisors,
foremen

9532

641

26

440

20 224

2059

91

1950

43 963

Semi-skilled and
discretionary decision
making

1930

189

32

2593

238

87

5069

Unskilled and defined
decision making

169

29

179

28

410

Not available

24

16 017 1444

734

3147

120

3328

Employees with disabilities

47

10

40 903

60

132
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Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Occupational Male | Female | Total
band African  Coloured | Indian White | African | Coloured | Indian | White |
Top Management - - - - - - - - -
Senior - - - - 1 - - ) 1
Management

Professionally - -
qualified and
experienced 12 1 - 4 10 2 29
specialists and
mid-management
Skilled technical
and academically
qualified workers,
junior
management,
supervisors,
foreman and
superintendents
Semi-skilled and - - -
discretionary 18 3 2 29 4 56
decision making
Unskilled and - - - -
defined decision 3 1 2 - 6
making
Unknown - - - - 37 8 - - 45

830 56 1 38 1627 224 2 151 2929

Employees with - - - - - - - - -
disabilities

Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Occupational Male | Female | Total ‘

band

Top Management 2 - - - 4 - - - 6

Senior Management 28 3 1 1 14 3 - - 50

Professionally 4723 669 36 295 6 295 583 61 591 13 253

qualified and

experienced

specialists and mid-

management

Skilled technical and 9792 658 26 449 29728 2103 93 1986 44 835

academically
qualified workers,
junior management,
supervisors, foremen
Semi-skilled and 1958 194 - 32 2599 244 - 88 5115
discretionary
decision making

Unskilled and 170 29 - 3 182 28 - 2 414

defined decision

making

Unknown - - - - 2 1 - - 3
16 673 2 667 63 676

Employees with 49 11 - 4 62 5 - 9 140

disabilities
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Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Occupational band Male Female \ Total

African | Coloured | Indian White African | Coloured ‘ Indian ‘ White‘

Top Management 1 - - - - - - - 1

Senior Management 2 - - 2 2 - - 1 7
Professionally qualified
and experienced
specialists and mid-
management

Skilled technical and
academically qualified
workers, junior 710 47 1 34 1713 203 6 164 | 2878
management,
supervisors, foremen
Semi-skilled and - -
discretionary decision 91 18 5 130 23 2 269
making
Unskilled and defined - - -
decision making
Not available - - - - 114 10 - 1 125

291 7 3 47 639 50 12 84 | 1,203

Employees with - - - -

disabilities 3 2 3 2 10

Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Male Female
Disciplinary
action African | Coloured Indian White | African | Coloured | Indian | White

Correctlye 2 - - - - - - - 5
counseling

Final written - - - - - -

warning 3 2 5
Fine - 1 B - i - - - 2
No outcome 2 - B - B - B - 3
Suspended - - - - - -

without payment 5 1 6
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Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022
Occupational Male Female
category

African | Coloured | Indian White African | Coloured | Indian | White
Senior Officials 9 - - - 9 - - - 18
and Managers

Professionals 14 664 - - 1 34217 8 - - | 48890
Technicians and - - - - - - - - -
Associate
Professionals
Clerks 2494 15 - - 1329 19 - - 3857
Service Shop - - - - - - - - -
and Market
Sales Workers
Craft and - - - - - - - - -
Related Trade
Workers

Plant and - - - - - - - - -
Machine
Operators and
Assemblers

Labourers and - - - - - - - - -
Related Workers

Employees with 1 - - - - - - - 1
disabilities

3.7 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes.
Information regarding the signing of performance agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not
complying within the prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken is presented here.

Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2021

SMS Level Total Total number Total number of Signed performance
number of of SMS signed agreements as % of
funded members performance total number of SMS
SMS posts agreements members
Director-General/ Head of
Department
Salary Level 15 3 1 1 100
Salary Level 14 17 17 7 41
Salary Level 13 68 42 27 64

Total \ 90 60 | 36 60

Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as
on 31 March 2022

Reasons

SMS members could not submit their Performance contracts on time due to competing priorities although reminders
were issued.

Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance
agreements as on 31 March 2022

Reasons

Individual letters non-compliance was issued
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3.8 Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during
the year under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands
and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender, and disability for the period 1 April 2021 to 31

March 2022

Beneficiary Profile
Number of

Race and Gender Number of
beneficiaries

employees

% Of total
within group

Cost

Cost
(R’000)

Average
cost per
employee

Total

64 874

0.20 |

African, Male 15970 0.3

Asian, Male - 59 - - -
Coloured, Male 1 1434 0.1 4 3733
White, Male 1 731 0.1 28 28 004
African, Female 61 40 843 0.1 380 6 224
Coloured, Female 4 2973 0.1 18 4508
Asian, Female - 146 - - -
White, Female 4 2 586 0.2 37 9 355

735

112 |

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management
Service for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Beneficiary Profile Cost | Total cost
Salary band Number of Number of % Of Total Average as a % of
beneficiaries employees total Cost cost per the total
within (R’000) employee | personnel
salary expenditure
bands
Lower skilled
(Levels 1-2) 11 410 2.7 34 3,107 0.12
g)k'"ed (Levels 3- 47 5069 0.9 211 4,487 0.71
Highly skilled
production 43 43 963 0.1 325 7,554 1.09
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled
supervision 11 12 049 0.1 165 14,993 0.56
(Levels 9-12)
Other - 3328

Total 112 64 819 2 735 6 561 o

Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Beneficiary Profile

o . Number of | Number of % Of total Total Average
Critical occupation S or Cost cost per
beneficiaries employees within i
. (R’000) employee
occupation
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 2 372 0.5 14 6 845
Earth Moving and Related Plant - 1 - - -
Operators
Household Food and Laundry Services - - - -
9

Related
Human Resources Clerks 5 448 1.1 36 7134
Security Officers 1 148 0.7 4 3678
Household And Laundry Workers 3 419 0.7 13 4 340
Geologists Geophysicists Hydrologists - 1 - - -
& Related Prof
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Beneficiary Profile

Cost

" . Number of | Number of % Of total Total Average
Critical occupation N s Cost cost per
beneficiaries employees within s
. (R’000) employee
occupation
Human Resources & Organization - 37 - - -
Development & Relate Prof
Messengers Porters And Deliverers - 17 - - -
All Artisans in The Building Metal - 5 - - -
Machinery Etc.
Biochemistry Pharmacol. Zoology & - 1 - - -
Life Scie.Techni
Logistical Support Personnel 1 44 2.3 20 19 872
Finance And Economics Related 2 72 2.8 16 8117
Other Adm.lnlstrat & Related Clerks 33 3173 1 201 6088
and Organisers
Housekeepers Laundry And Related - - - -
9
Workers
Auxiliary And Related Workers - 26 - - -
Other Occupations 7 56,532 - 110 15,659
Legal Related - 3 - - -
Financial And Related Professionals - 65 - - -
Building And Other Property 1 33 3 4 4082
Caretakers
Occupational Therapy - 11 - - -
Diplomats - 1 - - -
Architects Town and Traffic Planners - 2 - - -
Administrative Related 2 82 2.4 16 8 181
Secretr?lrles & Other Keyboard 1 106 09 7 7262
Operating Clerks
Cleaqers In Offices Workshops 17 1,694 1 60 3516
Hospitals Etc.
Library Mail and Related Clerks 89 4.5 27 6 756
Human Resources Related 85 4.7 50 12 388
Head Of Department/Chief Executive - - -
) - 4
Officer
Computer Programmers. - 2 - - -
Trade Labourers - 1 - - -
Physiotherapy - 3 - - -
General Legal Administration & Rel. - 1 - - -
Professionals
Material-Recording and Transport 12 426 28 87 7 259
Clerks
Youth Workers 1 31 3.2 7 6726
Farm Hands and Labourers - 3 - - -
Compositors Typesetters & Related - 1 - - -
Printing Workers
Other Administrative Policy and - 216 - - -

Related Officers

Artisan Project and Related
Superintendents

Fire Fighting and Related Workers

NX
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Beneficiary Profile Cost

" . Number of | Number of % Of total Total Average
Critical occupation N s Cost cost per
beneficiaries employees within s
. (R’000) employee
occupation
Inspgctors Of Apprentices Works and 1 25 4 6 6258
Vehicles
Professional Nurse - 2 - - -
Bus And Heavy Vehicle Drivers - 5 - - -
Senior Managers - 51 - - -
Farming Forestry Advisors and Farm - 23 - - -
Managers
Client Inform Clerks (Switchboard
Recept Inform Clerks) 1 6 16.7 7 7262
Speech Therapy and Audiology - 3 - - -
Computer System Designers and - 1 - - -
Analysts.
Engineers And Related Professionals - 2 - - -
Other Information Technology - 16 - - -
Personnel.
Light Vehicle Drivers 1 82 1.2 4 3678
Custodian Personnel - 1 - - -
Motor Vehicle Drivers - 1 - - -
Security Guards 11 281 3.9 41 3688
Food Services Aids and Waiters 2 171 1.2 6 3245
Nursing Assistants - 7 - - -
Quantity Surveyors & Rela Prof Not - - - -
3
Class Elsewhere
Conservation Labourers - 3 - - -
Community Development Workers - 1 - - -
Staff Nurses and Pupil Nurses - 15 - - -

Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service
for the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost as a

Salary N f N f | % Of total Total C A % of the total
band umber o umber o o Of tota otal Cost verage cost personnel

beneficiaries employees within (R’000) per employee expenditure
CY:-1E18%
bands
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The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 3.10.5 Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Reason

Annual — Gratuity: Death/Retirement/Medical

Number of
employees

Total amount
(R’000)

Average per
employee
(R’°000)

7 691 33 881

Capped — Gratuity: Death/Retirement/Medical

Total

Leave Payouts (Actual) Allow Codes:
0060,0168,0625,0422,0567,0698,0699,0701

183 060
190 751
190 655

1105 165 665

143 207

3.8

HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure
Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk
of contracting HIV & related diseases (if any)

Key steps taken to reduce the risk

Field workers (Head Office and District Based Itinerant
Employees who are often compelled to work away from their
workstation and families while visiting districts and schools for
a number of days in a week and sometimes for consecutive
weeks

The Departmental Drivers who are travel within and
sometimes outside the province and are way from their
families for days and sometimes for weeks.

Educators who are forced by redeployment and the
rationalisation of schools to move closer to their new
worksites.

Exposure on COVID-19 by educators and office-based
employees.

Early detection of HIV infection through quarterly Health
Testing Services to enable employees to have a regular
check-up of their HIV.

Facilitating access to treatment (where necessary), care
and support for infected employees and affected families.

Counselling to assist acceptance and adherence to
treatment

Intensifying education on managing HIV so that it does
not impede employee productivity.

Sensitising managers on reasonable accommodation
(physically and emotionally) of employees who are
infected.

Personal Protective Equipment (sanitisers, running water,
soap, face masks and thermometers) are made available
to prevent the spread of corona virus.

Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes

Question Yes | No Details, if yes

1. Has the department designated a member of
the SMS to implement the provisions contained
in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service
Regulations, 2001? If so, provide her/his name
and position.

X |[No

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit,
or has it designated specific staff members to
promote the health and well-being of your
employees? If so, indicate the number of
employees who are involved in this task and the
annual budget that is available for this purpose.

The Directorate: Employee Wellness Services.
The Directorate has 11 employees as follows: -
headed by an Assistant Director

3 Wellness Practitioners

An Admin clerk

3 interns and have social work
qualifications and in all 12 districts.

Not all districts have placed employees as
practitioners, we still rely on Coordinators.

During the year under review a sum of

Eastern Cape Department of E
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Question 'Yes | No Details, if yes
R500 000.00 has been allocated for programme
2 implementation and R470 000.00 but we were
unable to use the budget due to austerity
measures.
3. Has the department introduced an Employee | X Yes. The Department is implementing an
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for Integrated Employee Health and Wellness
your employees? If so, indicate the key Programme modelled along the DPSA Strategic
elements/services of this Programme. Framework for Employee Health and Wellness
in the Public Service.
The key elements of this programme are the
following:
e HIV, AIDS STl and TB Management
e Health and Productivity Management
e Safety, Health, Environment, Risk and
Quality Management
e Wellness Management
4. Has the department established (a)| X Yes. The list is follows hereunder.
committee(s) as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e)
of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, This is a new committee whose term of office is
2001? If so, please provide the names of the April 2020 — March 2023
members of the committee and the
stakeholder(s) that they represent.
5. Has the department reviewed its employment| X NO. Consultation we our stakeholder need to
policies and practices to ensure that these do take place but due to connectivity and austerity
not unfairly discriminate against employees on measures does not allow the policies to be
the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the reviewed.
employment policies/practices so reviewed.
6. Has the department introduced measures to| X e Upholding the confidentiality principle
protect  HIV-positive employees or those throughout the access to treatment, care,
perceived to be HIV-positive from and support process
discrimination? If so, list the key elements of
these measures. e  Ensuring anonymity during our HTS
sessions placing no emphasis at all on the
names of participants and putting all
emphasis on statistics
eldentification of infected employees is
protected during the referral process
(names are kept strictly confidential by
referring specialist only)
7. Does the department encourage its| X *YES, During the year under the department
employees to undergo Voluntary Counselling have provided 19 HCT opportunities
and Testing? If so, list the results that you have across the province.
you achieved.
eEmployees do not make use of the
opportunity to know their status for early
detection and access to treatment, the
attrition.
eEmployees who disclosed their status were
assisted to access counselling and
treatment with the support of their Medical
Aids

NX

Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ PAGE 129




8.

Has

the
measures/indicators to monitor & evaluate the
impact of its health promotion programme? If so,

Question

department

list these measures/indicators.

'Yes | No

developed X

eQuarterly Statistical reports indicating new

eFollow up the work attendance of employees

Details, if yes

infections and services utilisation.

who have disclosed their status and are
on treatment with a view to negotiating
reasonable accommodation with the
supervisors for those who need that.

EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS UNIT: PROVINCIAL OFFICE ‘

Telephone Credentials Email

DESIGNATED SENIOR MANAGER

Ms N. Fikeni 0605235693 | Act Chief Director Nonvuselelo.fikeni@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. CN Kunene 0406084617 | Ass. Manager: EHW nobukhosi.kunene@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. N Falo 0406084113 | Wellness Practitioner ntombizandile.falo@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. SG Kiva 0406084507 | SHERQ Practitioner somila.kiva@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. BG. 0406084699 | HIV AIDS &TB / HPM bongiwe.makongolo@ecdoe.gov.za
Makongolo Practitioner
SOCIAL PARTNERS

Ms. Gewabe, N 0733085704 | NAPWA gcwaben@gmail.com
Ms. Dyubeni, N 0731632181 | NAPTOSA nogolided@naptosa.org.za
Ms. Nggengga, T 0406084200 | NEHAWU thabisa.nggengga@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. Mtshongwana, | 0415016800 | PSA sikhumbuzo.mtshongwana@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. Makayi, N 0406393229 | SADTU kngayeka@sadtu.co.za

OTHER DEPARTMENTAL UNITS
Ms. U Xathisa 0406084013 | HRD Unathi.xathisa@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. Toyiya, T 0406084210 | Employee Relations thulisa.toyi@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. Kupa, N 0406084550 | SPU nobuhle.kupa@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. A Mbambo 0406084298 | HRA andile.mbambo@ecdoe.qov.za

DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVES
Ms. Jili, PX Alfred Nzo East prudence.jili@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Moshoai, L 0810469892 | Alfred Nzo West loyiso.moashoai@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Ndunge, S 0734009919 | Amathole East Siyabulela.ndunge@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. Gunguta T 0834934855 | Amathole West thembeka.gunguta@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Ngalwana, T 0848213734 | Buffalo City walter.hena@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Ngwendu, F 0739961699 | Chris Hani East fundile.ngwendu@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Mtanase, B 0795237915 | Chris Hani West bandile.mtanase@ecdoe.gov.za
Ms. Sikithi, N 0829232111 | Joe Gqabi nokulunga.sikithi@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Hlekani, M 0826607369 | Nelson Mandela Bay mphakamisi.hlekani@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Dalasile, K 0605300902 | OR Tambo Coastal khwezi.dalasile@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Matoti, KAL 0721231562 | OR Tambo Inland linda.matoti@ecdoe.gov.za
Mr. Miggels, S 0825861021 | Sara Baartman sipho.miggels@ecdoe.gov.za
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3.12. Labour Relations

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Total number of Collective agreements None

Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2021and 31
March 2022

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings ‘ Number % Of total ‘
Corrective Counselling 4 12.1
Final Written Warning 8 24.2
Fine 6 18.2
No Outcome 4 121
Suspended Without Payment 11 33.3

Total 33 100

Total number of Disciplinary hearings finalised None

Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2021
and 31 March 2022

Type of misconduct ‘ Number % Of total ‘

Absent from work without reason or permission 3 3.89

Assault/Attempts or threatens to assault a person 11 14.28

Conduct self in improper/unacceptable manner 1 1.29

Disrespect/Abusive or insolent behavior 2 2.59

Fails to carry out order or instruction 3 3.89

Fails to comply with or contravenes an Act 1 1.29

Intimidates/Victimise others - -

Mismanages finances of State (Edu) 30 38.96

Performs poorly for reasons other than incapacity 1 1.29

Prejudices Admin/Discipline of State (Edu) 10 12.98

Prejudices Administration of Organization of Dept - -

Refuse formal program of counselling (Edu) - -

Refuse rehabilitation/Rehab program (Edu) - -

Sexual Harassment 4 5.19

Willfully or negligently mismanages finances 1.29

Total ‘ 77 ‘ 100 ‘

Table 3.12.4 Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Grievances \ Number % Of Total |

Resolved 13 23.1

Not solved 25 76.9

Total \ 38 100 |
— \\ Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/



Table 3.12.5 Disputes logged with Councils for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Disputes Number % Of Total

BCEA 8 5.8%
Collective Agreement 18 13%
Inquiry by Arbitrator 1 0.7%
Termination of Contract 5 3.6%
Transfer 1 0.7%
ULP: Benefits 28 20.3%
ULP: Demotion 2 1.5%
Unfair Discrimination 25 18.1%
Unfair Dismissal 1 0.7%
Unfair Suspension 4 2.9%
Unilateral Change to terms and conditions of Employment 8 5.8%
ULP: Promotion 18 13%
Unfair Dismissal 19 13.8%
Unfair Suspension 7 5.1%
Unilateral Change to Terms and Conditions of Employment 2 1.5%
Non-Payment Of Salary 5 3.6%
ULP. Appointment 6 4.4%
Reasons For Dismissal Not Known 2 1.5%
Salary Deduction 1 0.7%
Failure To Pay Amount Owing 3 2.2%

Total ‘ 138 100%

Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Total number of persons working days lost Nil

Total costs working days lost Nil

Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R'000) ‘ Nil

Number of people suspended ‘ 19

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 19

Average number of days suspended 100 DAYS

Cost of suspension(R’000) R 2,091,205.83
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3.9

Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.

Occupational category

Gender

Number of
employees as

of 1 April
2022

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships

Skills Programmes &
other shortcourses

Other
forms of
training

Totals

65,947 13695

1000

Senior Officials and Female 25 - 25 - 25
Managers Male 41 - 41 - 41
Professionals Female 38,086 - 5265 265 5530
Male 15,287 - 4364 135 4499
Technicians And Female 288 - - - -
Associate Professionals Male 163 - - - -
Clerks Female 3,632 - 2343 399 2742
Male 1,111 - 1557 201 1758
Service Shop and Female 78 - - - -
Market Sales Workers Male 399 - - - -
Craft And Related Trade | Female 16 - - - -
Workers Male 24 - - - -
Plant And Machine Female 3 - - - -
Operators and - - - -
Assemblers Male 89
Labourers And Related Female 5,300 - 18 - 18
Workers Male 1,405 - 82 - 82
Sub Totals Female 47,428 - 7651 664 8315
Male 18,519 - 6044 336 6380

14695

Occupational category

Gender

Number of
employees as

of 1 April
2022

Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Training provided within the reporting period

Learnerships

Skills

Programmes
& other short
courses

Other
forms of
training

Senior Officials and Female 25 | - 9 0 9
Managers Male 41 | - 9 0 9
Professionals Female 38086 | - 34005 220 34225
Male 15287 | - 14541 124 14665
Technicians And Female 288 | - - - -
Associate Professionals Male 163 | - - - -
Clerks Female 3632 | - 2371 138 2509
Male 1111 | - 1277 71 1348
Service Shop and Female 78 | - - - -
Market Sales Workers Male 399 | - - - -
Craft And Related Trade | Female 16 | - - - -
Workers Male 24 | - - - -
Plant And Machine Female 3 |- - - -
Operators and - - - -
Assemblers Male 89
Labourers And Related Female 5300 | - - - -
Workers Male 1405 | - - - -
Sub Totals Female 47428 | - 36385 358 36743
Male 18519 | - 15827 195 16022
Totals 65,947 52212 553 52765
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3.10 Injury On Duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Nature of injury on duty Number % Of total

Awards 9 29%

Injury on Duty 22 71%

Fatal - -

Total 31 100% |

3.11 Utilisation of Consultants

The following tables relates information on the utilisation of consultants in the department. In terms of
the Public Service Regulations “consultant’ means a natural or juristic person or a partnership who or
which provides in terms of a specific contract on an ad hoc basis any of the following professional
services to a department against remuneration received from any source:

. The rendering of expert advice.

. The drafting of proposals for the execution of specific tasks; and

. The execution of a specific task which is of a technical or intellectual nature but excludes an
employee of a department.

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April
2021 and 31 March 2022

Project title Total number of Duration Contract value in
consultants that (workdays) Rand
worked on project

Improve audit outcomes 1 | 30 months — Expiring 30 R735 p/h
September 2022

Financial data analysis 1 | 17 months — Expired 30 R757 p/h
August 2021

Records Management and 1 | 15 months — Expired 31 R943 p/h

Archiving December 2021

Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of
Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022
Project title Percentage ownership by Percentage Number of
HDI groups management consultants from HDI
by HDI groups groups that work on
the project

Improve audit outcomes 100% 100%
Financial data analysis 100% 100% 1
Records management and archiving 100% 100% 1

Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period 1 April 2021
and 31 March 2022

Project title Total Number of Duration Donor and contract value

consultants that worked (Workdays) in Rand
on project

Not Applicable

Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically
Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022

Project title Percentage ownership by Percentage management Number of consultants
HDI groups by HDI groups from HDI groups that work

on the project

Not Applicable
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS




Report of the auditor-general to the Eastern Cape Provincial Legislature
on vote no. 6: Department of Education

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Qualified opinion

1.

| have audited the financial statements of the Eastern Cape Department of Education set out
on pages 149 to 213, which comprise the appropriation statement, statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, the statement of financial performance, statement of changes
in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, as well as notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matters described in the basis for qualified opinion
section of the auditor’s report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Eastern Cape Department of Education as at 31 March 2022,
and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Modified Cash Standard (MCS) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act
1 of 1999 (PFMA) and Division of Revenue Act 9 of 2021 (Dora).

Basis for qualified opinion

Immovable tangible capital assets and capital works in progress

3.

The department did not appropriately account for immovable tangible capital assets and
capital work-in-progress in accordance with MCS 11, Capital assets. Immovable tangible
capital assets and capital work-in-progress were not valued and classified correctly.
Furthermore, the assets as defined by section 42 of the PFMA were disclosed as disposals
even though they had not yet been accepted by the receiving department. | was unable to
determine the impact of these and other immaterial misstatements as it was impracticable to
do so. | was also unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that immovable
tangible capital assets and capital work-in-progress were properly accounted for due to the
status of accounting records. | was unable to confirm the immovable tangible capital assets
and capital work-in-progress by alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine
whether any further adjustments were necessary to the immovable tangible capital assets
and capital work-in-progress, stated at R13,3 billion (2021: R13,2 billion) and R3,7 billion
(2021: R3,6 billion) in note 30 and 30.2 to the financial statements respectively. These
limitation misstatements also had an impact on the prior period errors disclosure in note 32 to
the financial statements.

Context for the opinion

4.

| conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.
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5. | am independent of the department in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ International code of ethics for professional accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA code) as well as other ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit in South Africa. | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code.

6. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my qualified opinion.

Emphasis of matters

7. | draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Bank overdraft

8. The department was in an overdraft position of R1,5 billion at 31 March 2022, as disclosed in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Unauthorised expenditure

9.  As disclosed in appropriation note 4.1 and note 9 to the financial statements, the department
incurred unauthorised expenditure of R184,7 million due to overspending on programme 2:
Public ordinary school education.

Other matter

10. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Unaudited supplementary schedules

11. The supplementary annexures set out on pages 214 to 225 do not form part of the financial
statements and are presented as additional information. | have not audited these schedules
and accordingly | do not express an opinion thereon.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

12. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the MCS and the requirements of the PFMA and Dora, and
for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

13. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing the
department’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
appropriate governance structure either intends to liquidate the department or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

14.

15.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included
in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance report

Introduction and scope

16.

17.

18.

19.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act 25 of 2004 (PAA) and the general notice issued in
terms thereof, | have a responsibility to report on the usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes
presented in the annual performance report. | performed procedures to identify material
findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

My procedures address the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information, which must be based on the department’s approved performance planning
documents. | have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance
indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures do not examine whether the
actions taken by the department enabled service delivery. My procedures do not extend to
any disclosures or assertions relating to the extent of achievements in the current year or
planned performance strategies and information in respect of future periods that may be
included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do not
extend to these matters.

| evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected programme presented
in the department’s annual performance report for the year ended 31 March 2022:

Programme Pages in the annual
performance report

Programme 2 — Public ordinary school 44 - 51

| performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance
planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and
related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported
performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.
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20. The material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the performance information of the
selected programmes:

Various indicators

21. | was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence for the reported achievements of
two of the indicators relating to this programme. This was due to the lack of accurate and
complete records. | was unable to confirm the reported achievements by alternative means.
Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any adjustments were required to the
reported achievements in the annual performance report for the indicators listed below:

Indicator number Indicator description Reported
achievement

PPM 206 Percentage of Funza Lushaka bursary holders 49,6%
placed in schools within six months upon completion
of studies or upon confirmation that the bursar has
completed studies

PPM 208 Percentage of learners with English First Additional 78%
Language (EFAL) and Mathematics textbooks in
grades 3, 6, 9 and 12

Other matters

22. | draw attention to the matters below.
Achievement of planned targets

23. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 40 to 70 for information on the achievement
of planned targets for the year and management’s explanations provided for the under- or
overachievement of targets. This information should be considered in the context of the
material findings on the reliability of the reported performance information in paragraph 21 of
this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements

24. | identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing.
These material misstatements were in the reported performance information of programme
2: Public ordinary school. As management subsequently corrected only some of the
misstatements, | raised material findings on the reliability of the reported performance
information. Those that were not corrected are reported above.
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Report on the audit of compliance with legislation

Introduction and scope

25. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, | have a
responsibility to report material findings on the department’s compliance with specific matters
in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to
express assurance.

26. The material findings on compliance with specific matters in key legislation are as follows:
Annual financial statements

27. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records, as
required by section 40(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of the
appropriation statement and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted
financial statements were corrected and the supporting records were provided subsequently,
but the uncorrected material misstatements and supporting records that could not be
provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a qualified opinion.

Strategic planning

28. Specific information systems were not implemented to enable the monitoring of progress
made towards achieving targets, core objectives and service delivery, as required by public
service regulation 25(1)(e)(i) and (iii).

Expenditure management

29. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to
R19,6 million as disclosed in note 22 to the annual financial statements, in contravention of
section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the irregular
expenditure was caused by non-compliance with supply management chain legislation.

30. Effective steps were not taken to prevent fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R7
million, as disclosed in note 23 to the annual financial statements, in contravention of section
38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1. The majority of the fruitless and
wasteful expenditure was caused by interest paid on late payments.

31. Payments were not made within 30 days or an agreed period after receipt of an invoice, as
required by treasury regulation 8.2.3.

Transfer of funds

32. Appropriate measures were not maintained to ensure that transfers and subsidies to entities
were applied for their intended purposes, as required by treasury regulation 8.4.1.
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Asset management

33.

Proper control systems were not in place at the department to ensure the safeguarding and
maintenance of assets, as required by treasury regulation 10.1.1(a).

Procurement and contract management

34.

35.

Some of the construction contracts were awarded to contractors that did not qualify for the
contract in accordance with Construction Industry Development Board regulation 25(7A).

Some of the construction contracts were extended or modified without the approval of a
properly delegated official as required by section 44 of the PFMA and treasury regulations
8.2.1 and 8.2.2.

Other information

36.

37.

38.

39.

The accounting officer is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not
include the financial statements, the auditor’s report and the selected programme presented
in the annual performance report that have been specifically reported in this auditor’s report.

My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information
and compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and | do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion on it.

In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements and the selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, or my
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

| did not receive the other information prior to the date of this auditor’s report. When | do
receive and read this information, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, |
am required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and request that
the other information be corrected. If the other information is not corrected, | may have to
retract this auditor’s report and re-issue an amended report as appropriate. However, if it is
corrected this will not be necessary.

Internal control deficiencies

40.

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective
was not to express any form of assurance on it. The matters reported below are limited to the
significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for the qualified opinion, the
findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation
included in this report.
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41.

42.

43.

The disciplines expected from strategic and operational initiatives were not consistently
implemented at all levels within the department. These gaps were not timeously identified
and rectified by leadership, which hindered progress in achieving credible financial and
performance reporting and ensuring compliance with legislation.

The submitted financial statements and annual performance report contained material
misstatements and material findings that were not corrected. The portfolios of evidence and
supporting schedules used to support the financial statements were not complete and
accurate in all instances. There was also a lack of coordination and accountability from those
responsible for collating and collecting the portfolios of evidence to support the achieved
targets in the annual performance report.

Not all planned internal audits had been finalised at year-end, which limited how the
significant risks from the risk assessment could be addressed. Management did not respond
timeously and appropriately to the findings and recommendations of internal audit. The audit
committee was also limited in certain instances by management’s lack of responsiveness to
recommendations raised.

Material irregularities

44.

In accordance with the PAA and the Material Irregularity Regulations, | have a responsibility
to report on material irregularities identified during the audit and on the status of the material
irregularities reported in the previous year’s auditor’s report.

Material irregularities identified during the audit

45.

The material irregularities identified are as follows:

Interest paid on payments not made within 30 days

46.

47.

48.

49.

The department did not settle payments to the supplier responsible for professional quantity
surveying services within 30 days, in contravention of treasury regulation 8.2.3. This led to
the supplier instituting legal proceedings against the department, and charging interest. The
non-compliance has resulted in a material financial loss of R3,6 million. The payments were
made by the department up to the period ending 31 March 2021 and was disclosed as
fruitless and wasteful expenditure in note 23 of the 2020-21 annual financial statements.

I notified the accounting officer of the material irregularity on 22 July 2021 and invited him to
make a written submission on the actions taken. The accounting officer instituted an
investigation into the matter. This was initially submitted to risk services for investigation and
upon follow up, the department noted that the matter should have been investigated by the
internal controls unit. This will be rectified within the department and all relevant information
will be submitted to the unit.

The accounting officer has committed to conclude the investigation on 30 September 2022.

A follow up will be done in the next audit to assess the appropriateness of the actions taken
by the accounting officer upon receipt of the investigation report.

\\ Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/ ——




Interest paid on payments not made within 30 days

50.

51.

52.

53.

The department did not settle payments to the supplier responsible for renovation and
redevelopment within 30 days, in contravention of treasury regulation 8.2.3. This led to the
supplier charging interest. The non-compliance has resulted in a material financial loss of
R1,3 million. The payments were made by the department up to the period ending 31 March
2021 and was disclosed as fruitless and wasteful expenditure in note 23 of the 2020-21
annual financial statements.

I notified the accounting officer of the material irregularity on 22 July 2021 and invited him to
make a written submission on the actions taken. The accounting officer instituted an
investigation into the matter. This was initially submitted to risk services for investigation and
upon follow up, the department noted that the matter should have been investigated by the
internal controls unit. This will be rectified within the department and all relevant information
will be submitted to the unit.

The accounting officer has committed to conclude the investigation on 30 September 2022.

A follow up will be done in the next audit to assess the appropriateness of the actions taken
by the accounting officer upon receipt of the investigation report.

Interest paid on payments not made within 30 days

54.

55.

56.

57.

The department did not settle payments to the supplier responsible for various projects within
30 days, in contravention of treasury regulation 8.2.3. This led to the supplier instituting legal
proceedings against the department. The non-compliance has resulted in a material financial
loss of R2,7 million. The payments were made by the department up to the period ending 31
March 2021 and was disclosed as fruitless and wasteful expenditure in note 23 of the 2020-
21 annual financial statements.

I notified the accounting officer of the material irregularity on 22 July 2021 and invited him to
make a written submission on the actions taken. The accounting officer instituted an
investigation into the matter, the department committed to concluding the investigation by 21
December 2021, but has not met this timeframe due to non-availability of information that
has been requested from the implementing agents.

The accounting officer has committed to conclude the investigation on 30 October 2022.

A follow up will be done in the next audit to assess the appropriateness of the actions taken
by the accounting officer upon receipt of the investigation report.

Payments for extension of time claims and interest due to late payment of supplier

58.

The department did not settle payments to the supplier responsible for construction, repairs,
renovations and additions within 30 days, in contravention of treasury regulation 8.2.3. This
led to the supplier charging for extension of time claims and interest. The non-compliance
has resulted in a material financial loss of R1,4 million. The payments were made by the
department up to the period ending 31 March 2021.
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59.

60.

61.

I notified the accounting officer of the material irregularity on 1 October 2021 and invited him
to make a written submission on the actions taken. The accounting officer instituted an
investigation into the matter. The department initially committed to concluding the
investigation by 21 December 2021, but has not met this timeframe due to the non-
availability of information that has been requested from the implementing agents.

The accounting officer has committed to conclude the investigation on 30 October 2022.

A follow up will be done in the next audit to assess the appropriateness of the actions taken
by the accounting officer upon receipt of the investigation report.

Employees of department benefitted from presidential initiative whilst employed by the
department

62.

63.

64.

Payments were made to employees of the department that are permanently employed with
funds from the presidential initiative, which was meant for unemployed youth within the
province. This is a result of ineffective internal controls that were not in place for the approval
and processing of payments made, as required by treasury regulation 8.1.1. The payments
were made by the department up to the period ending 31 March 2021. The non-compliance
resulted in a material financial loss of R1.5 million.

I notified the accounting officer of the material irregularity on 9 August 2021 and invited him
to make a written submission on the actions taken. The accounting officer instituted an
investigation into the matter and the department committed to do a full audit on all schools
using the internal audit unit and risk management unit at the department. The audit was
meant to be concluded by December 2021. A report on the investigation was submitted in
February 2022, and a follow up on the appropriateness of the actions taken by the
accounting officer was made. The department made a new commitment date of 2 August
2022 for the conclusion of the audit on the schools due to school closure.

A follow up will be done in the next audit to assess the appropriateness of the actions taken
by the accounting officer upon receipt of the investigation report.

Material irregularities in progress

65.

| identified another material irregularity during the audit and notified the accounting officer, as
required by material irregularity regulation 3(2). By the date of this auditor’s report, the
response of the accounting officer was not yet due. This material irregularity will be included
in the next year’s auditor’s report.

Status of previously reported material irregularities

Payments made for services not rendered

66.

Payments were made for school furniture refurbishment services that were not delivered, as
effective internal controls were not in place for the approval and processing of payments
made, as required by treasury regulation 8.1.1. The payments were made between the year
ended 31 March 2019 and the year ended 31 March 2020. The non-compliance resulted in a
material financial loss of R3,4 million.
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67.

68.

69.

70.

I notified the accounting officer of the material irregularity on 15 October 2020 and invited
him to make a written submission on the actions taken. The accounting officer instituted an
investigation into the matter and found that two departmental officials were responsible.
Disciplinary processes for the responsible employees were finalised, where one of the
employees was exonerated and the other found guilty.

The matter was also reported to the South African Police Service and the Mthatha
Commercial Crimes Unit on 1 December 2020. The investigation had not yet been concluded
at the date of this report.

The department has instituted proceedings to recover the monies lost as per the letter dated
16 March 2022 addressed to the state attorney from the legal representative of the
department.

A follow up will be made in the next audit to confirm that the monies lost have been
recovered from the supplier.

Payment for goods not delivered

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

Payment was made for school furniture manufacture and delivery services that were not
rendered, as effective internal controls were not in place for the approval and processing of
payments made, as required by treasury regulation 8.1.1. The payment was made on

9 December 2020. The non-compliance resulted in a material financial loss of R1,5 million.

I notified the accounting officer of the material irregularity on 21 July 2021 and invited him to
make a written submission on the actions taken. The accounting officer instituted an
investigation into the matter and found that a departmental official was responsible. Final
charges were drawn up and signed by the head of department on 27 July 2022 and charges
were issued to the employee on 28 July 2022.

The matter was also reported to the South African Police Service on 22 March 2022. The
investigation had not yet been concluded at the date of this report.

The department has instituted proceedings to recover the money lost as per the letter dated
23 May 2022 addressed to the supplier from the state attorney.

A follow up will be made in the next audit to confirm that consequence management has
been executed against the responsible director and that monies lost have been recovered
from the supplier.

Other reports

76.

| draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties which had, or
could have, an impact on the matters reported in the department’s financial statements,
reported performance information, compliance with applicable legislation and other related
matters. These reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or my
findings on the reported performance information or compliance with legislation.
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77. The Special Investigating Unit is conducting ongoing investigations into supply chain
management processes and delivery of goods and services relating to covid-19 expenditure.
These investigations cover the previous financial periods and are still ongoing.

78. The Office of the Premier is conducting ongoing investigations into irregular budgetary
processes and delivery of learner-teacher support material and other matters. The
investigations cover the current financial period and is still ongoing.
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Audliting to build public confidence
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As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements and the
procedures performed on reported performance information for selected programme and on
the department’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in this
auditor’s report, | also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the department’s internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer.

conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer's use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. | also conclude,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Eastern Cape
Department of Education to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion on the financial statements. My
conclusions are based on the information available to me at the date of this auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a department to cease
operating as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance

3.

I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide the accounting officer with a statement that | have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships
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and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
as at 31 March 2022

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and
Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial
Statements.

3. Detail on payments for financial assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to
the Annual Financial Statements.

4, Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

4.1. Per programme:

Final Actual | Variance | Variance as a
Appropriation | Expenditure %
of Final
Approp.
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Programme 2 - Public Ordinary
Schools
29 866 018 30050710 (184 692) -1%

The over expenditure in social contributions is attributed to the employer’s contribution to medical aid
and the employer’s contribution on pension fund, which was not provided for in the departmental
baseline during the adjustment estimates as expected in terms of PSCBC Res 1 of 2021. The amount
provided for as additional funding of R1.054 billion for cash allowance was not adequate to cover the
total salary increase implications, hence the whole amount was allocated under salaries and wages.

Programme 3 - Independent
Schools
101 628 99 226 2402 2%

The underspending is due to the withholding of funds for non-compliant of 3 independent schools due
to late submission of quarterly reports (AFS) and also to underperforming schools.

Programme 4 - Public Special
Schools
955 947 944 476 11 471 1%

The under expenditure is as a result of delays in the payment of historical overtime for special school staff
which was projectized and the delays are due to the verification processes coupled with the allocation of
the code by PT being issued for short periods of time. The underspending is also due to austerity
measures implemented by the Department to control the spending of goods and services and machinery
and equipment.
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
as at 31 March 2022

Programme 5 - Early Childhood
Development
587 605 516 607 70998 12%

The underspending is mainly on personnel due to unfilled vacancies caused by practitioners that has left
the system due to retirement and others who were appointed in the mainstream schools as Post Level 1
educators after acquiring the professional qualifications of ECD as well as Pre Grade R Training budget
which was set aside for training and development of Pre-Grade R (ECD NQF Level 4 qualification was on
the evaluation stage by year end hence the budget could therefore not be utilized as the tender processes
were not yet finalized.

Programme 6 - Infrastructure
Development
1506 631 1214 942 291 689 19%

The overall under expenditure is evident under Public Ordinary Schools mainly due to invoices that could
not be processed on time which relates to maintenance work for different implementing agents which was
set aside for fencing projects as part of the departments’ recovery plans but could not be finalised. A
rollover of unspent funds has been requested from Provincial Treasury for all unpaid invoices.

(In the case of surpluses on programmes, a detailed explanation must be given as to whether it is
as a result of a saving or underspending.)

4.2. Per economic classification:

Final Actual Variance | Variance
Appropriation | Expenditure asa%
of Final
Approp.
R’000 R’000 R’000 %
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 29582 477 29675740 (93 263) -1%
Goods and services 3 662 093 3579 333 82 760 2%
Interest and rent on land 1420 1420 - 0%
Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities
Departmental agencies and accounts 65 150 65 150 - 0%
Higher education institutions 14 500 14 288 212 1%
Non-profit institutions 2428 074 2 418 605 9469 0%
Households 219 391 272 627 (53 236) -24%
Payments for capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures 1 086 838 845 354 241 484 12%
Machinery and equipment 79787 75 345 4 442 6%

Compensation of employees: The over expenditure in social contributions is attributed to the
employer’s contribution to medical aid and the employer’s contribution on pension fund, which was not
provided for in the departmental baseline during the adjustment estimates as expected in terms of
PSCBC Res 1 of 2021. The amount provided for as additional funding of R1.054 billion for cash
allowance was not adequate to cover the total salary increase implications, hence the whole amount was
allocated under salaries and wages.
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
as at 31 March 2022

Goods and services: The under expenditure is mainly attributed to a decision made by the department
to implement austerity measures implemented on various items within good and services to avoid
overspending.

Non-profit institutions: The under expenditure is due to withholding of funds to independent schools that
did not comply with the submission of compliance documents (AFS's) which resulted in withholding of
funds to 3 underperforming Independent Schools, as well as Pre Grade R Training budget which was set
aside for accredited training of Pre-Grade R Practitioners in ECD NQF Level 4 qualification was on the
evaluation stage by year end hence the budget could therefore not be utilized as the tender processes
were not yet finalized.

Households: The overspending is due to payment of accruals and current payments for leave gratuities
in respect of employees who resigned from the system, other taking early retirement and deaths
emanating from implementation of Operation Bhatala

Buildings and other fixed structures: The overall under expenditure is mainly due to invoices that could
not be processed on time which relates to maintenance work for different implementing agents which was
set aside for fencing projects as part of the departments’ recovery plans but could not be finalised. A
rollover of unspent funds has been requested from Provincial Treasury for all unpaid invoices.

Machinery and equipment: The underspending is mainly due to austerity measures implemented by the
department to avoid overspending at year end.

4.3. Per conditional grant

Variance

asa%

Final Actual of Final

Appropriation | Expenditure Variance Approp.

R’000 R’000 R’000 %

Maths, Science and Technology Grant 59 696 38 680 21016 35%

Education Infrastructure Grant 1506 631 1214 942 291 689 19%

HIV and AIDS Grant 50 369 47 349 3 020 6%

National School Nutrition Programme 1443 715 1437 852 5863 0%

Extended Public Works(social sec) 29797 29797 - 0%

Extended Public Works Integrated 4 586 3 691 895 20%
Programme

Learner Profound Intel Disability Grant 33909 23 925 9984 29%

3128703 2796 236 332 467 11%

Maths, Science and Technology Grant: The Grant had already committed R19.947 million before the
end of the financial year. The contracted service providers delayed a lot in delivering the ordered items
which resulted to the underspending.
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
as at 31 March 2022

Education Infrastructure Grant: The under expenditure is mainly due to invoices that could not be
processed on time which relates to maintenance work for different implementing agents which was set
aside for fencing projects as part of the departments’ recovery plans but could not be finalised. A rollover
of unspent funds has been requested from Provincial Treasury for all unpaid invoices.

HIV and AIDS Grant: The reason funds were not spent in 2021/22 is due to delays in delivery of goods
by the contracted service providers which also contributed to late submission of invoices. This has direct
impact in Accommodation and meals, printing of scripted lesson plans for life skills and life orientation
manual as well as school suggestion boxes to assist learners to report bullying that is happening in
schools.

National School Nutrition Programme: The under spending is due to unused budget for catering and
T&S budget as a result of planned trainings for Food handlers on food safety and hygiene and conducting
Accountability sessions with districts. These activities have not been executed due to COVID restrictions
as these activities involves large number of individuals. The procurement of photocopiers for districts did
not materialized as the Directorate was waiting for SCM to facilitate the process.

Learner Profound Intel Disability Grant: The Grant closed the financial year with unpaid commitments
mainly from school furniture, matrasses and sponges, buggies, laptops and motor vehicles. The non-
payment is due to delayed deliveries by contracted service providers. The specialized nature of the goods
procured makes the turnaround time longer than expected and most of the service providers will only be
able to deliver mid-May as there are specific manufacturing guidelines based on the individual learner.
The underspending on COE is due to -delays in appointment of Joe Ggabi Team of 5 officials. The team
assumed duties late during the financial year, whereas expenditure was budgeted from April 2021.
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

VOTE 6

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 March 2022

Note
REVENUE
Annual appropriation 1
Statutory appropriation
Departmental revenue 3
TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees 4
Goods and services 5
Interest and rent on land 6

Total current expenditure

Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies 7
Total transfers and subsidies

Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 8
Total expenditure for capital assets

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year
Voted Funds
Annual appropriation
Conditional grants
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 12

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

Note
ASSETS
Current Assets
Unauthorised expenditure 9
Receivables 10

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 10

S\ N

o

2021/22 2020/21
R'000 R'000
37 137 752 36 216 215
1978 1564
- 14 843
37 139 730 36 232 622
29 675 740 29 432 072
3579 333 3038 331
1420 278
33 256 493 32 470 681
2770670 | | 3517 819
2770 670 3517 819
920699 | | 605 366
920 699 605 366
36 947 862 36 593 866
191 868 (361 244)
191 868 (376 087)
(140 636) (515 682)
332 504 154 438
- 14 843
191 868 (361 244)
2021/22 2020/21
R'000 R'000
2 555 329 2 339 426
2 488 403 2303 711
66 926 35715
122 776 124 385
122776 | | 124 385 |
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TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Voted funds to be surrendered to the
Revenue Fund
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to
be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Bank overdraft
Payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Recoverable revenue

TOTAL

|~\
N

(NN
L (OV)

2 678 105 2 463 811
2 648 805 2 442 194
987 511 765 389
4 802 7 621
1604 212 1618 677
52 280 50 507

2 648 805 2 442 194
29 300 21 617
29 300 | 21617
29 300 21617
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
as at 31 March 2022

2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Recoverable revenue
Opening balance 21617 20978
Transfers 7 683 639
Debts revised (644) (165)
Debts recovered (included in departmental
receipts) (5699) (4 842)
Debts raised 14 026 5 646
Closing balance 29 300 21 617
TOTAL 29 300 21617
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CASHFLOW STATEMENT

as at 31 March 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Annual appropriated funds received
Statutory appropriated funds received
Departmental revenue received
Interest received

Net (increase)/ decrease in working capital
Surrendered to Revenue Fund

Current payments

Interest paid

Transfers and subsidies paid

Net cash flow available from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets
(Increase)/decrease in non-current receivables
Net cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/ (decrease) in net assets
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

S\ N

Note

-
EXN

o |
[

15

IS 100

2021/22 2020/21
R'000 R'000

37 230 472 36 282 842
37 137 752 36 216 215
1978 1564

90 705 64 979

37 84

(214 130) (1 060 779)
(247 999) (236 856)
(33 070 381) (31437 011)
(1 420) (278)

(2 770 670) (3517 819)
925 872 30 099
(920 699) (605 366)
1609 9944

(919 090) (595 422)

7 683 639

7 683 639

14 465 (564 684)
(1618 677) (1053 993)
(1 604 212) (1618 677)
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
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NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2021

PART A: ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Summary of significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been
applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management has concluded that
the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information.

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated. Management has used
assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements. These are based on the best
information available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness
of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations
issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act.

1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash Standard.
2 Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
3 Presentation currency
Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the
functional currency of the department.
4 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand
(R°000).
5 Foreign currency translation
Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African Rands
using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.
6 Comparative information
6.1 | Prior period comparative information
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial
statements. Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been
reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with the
format of the current year’s financial statements.
6.2 | Current year comparison with budget
A comparison between the approved final budget and actual amounts for each programme and
economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.
7 Revenue
7.1 | Appropriated funds
Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against the
revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).
Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the
appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process
are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the adjustments become
effective.
The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the reporting
date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.
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7.2

Departmental revenue

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and
is subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a payable in
the statement of financial position.

7.3

Accrued departmental revenue

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the notes to
the financial statements when:

e it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction
will flow to the department; and

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable from
collecting agents.

Write-offs are made according to the department’s debt write-off policy

8 Expenditure
8.1 | Compensation of employees
8.1.1 | Salaries and wages
Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of
payment.
8.1.2 | Social contributions
Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised in
the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as
transfers to households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
8.2 | Other expenditure
Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments for capital
assets) is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment. The
expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is more than the
capitalisation threshold.
8.3 | Accruals and payables not recognised
Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost
at the reporting date.
8.4 | Leases
8.4.1 | Operating leases
Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements.
8.4.2 | Finance leases
Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital expenditure
in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.
The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and are not
apportioned between the capital and interest portions.
Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at the
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for the year ended 31 MARCH 2021

lower of:
e cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

e the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to acquire
ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.
Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as a
current liability.
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

10 Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued
interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off. Write-offs are made
according to the department’s write-off policy.

1 Financial assets

11.1 | Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)
A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.
At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts
already settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are measured at
cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.

11.2 | Impairment of financial assets
Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction in
the recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future economic
benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the financial
statements.

12 Payables
Payables recognised in the statement of financial position are recognised at cost.

13 Capital Assets

13.1 | Inmovable capital assets
Immovable assets reflected in the asset register of the department are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements at cost or fair value where the cost cannot be determined reliably. Immovable
assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction are recorded at fair value at the date of acquisition.
Immovable assets are subsequently carried in the asset register at cost and are not currently
subject to depreciation or impairment.
Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready
for use.
Additional information on immovable assets not reflected in the assets register is provided in the
notes to financial statements.

13.2 | Movable capital assets
Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.
Movable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair value as
at the date of acquisition.
Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable assets

— \\ Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/




EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 MARCH 2021

are measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be
recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or
impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when
ready for use.

13.3

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost. Intangible
assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value as at the date of
acquisition.

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when
the department commences the development phase of the project.

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital assets are
measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible assets are
measured at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be
recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or
impairment.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature forms part of the cost of the existing asset when ready
for use.

13.4

Project Costs: Work-in-progress

Expenditure of a capital nature is initially recognised in the statement of financial performance at
cost when paid.

Amounts paid towards capital projects are separated from the amounts recognised and
accumulated in work-in-progress until the underlying asset is ready for use. Once ready for use,
the total accumulated payments are recorded in an asset register. Subsequent payments to
complete the project are added to the capital asset in the asset register.

Where the department is not the custodian of the completed project asset, the asset is transferred
to the custodian subsequent to completion.

14

Provisions and Contingents

14.1

Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. The
provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present obligation at
the reporting date.

14.2

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible
obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the
department or when there is a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

14.3

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible asset
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arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the department.

14.4

Capital commitments
Capital commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements.

15

Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time as the
expenditure is either:

e approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds are
received; or

e approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off against
the appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or

o transferred to receivables for recovery.
Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised expenditure.

16

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when
confirmed. The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful
expenditure incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements when it is
resolved or transferred to receivables or written off.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

17

Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed. The
amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is
impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant
authority, transferred to receivables for recovery, not condoned and removed or written-off.

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be recoverable
and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

18

Changes in accounting estimates and errors
Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine the
period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error. In such cases the department shall
restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which
retrospective restatement is practicable.

19

Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted for in
the financial statements. The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-adjusting
events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

20

Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for all infrastructure related projects. In
terms of the arrangement the department is the principal and is responsible for directing the
Eastern Cape Department Public Works and other implementing agents to undertake transactions
relating to infrastructure projects through the memorandum of understanding. All related revenues,
expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised or recorded in terms of the relevant
policies listed herein. Additional disclosures have been provided in the notes to the financial
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statements where appropriate.

21 Recoverable revenue
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial
year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either
transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are transferred to the
statement of financial performance when written-off.

22 Related party transactions
Related party transactions within the Minister/MEC’s portfolio are recorded in the notes to the
financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s length.
The number of individuals and the full compensation of key management personnel is recorded in
the notes to the financial statements.

23 Inventories
At the date of acquisition, inventories are recognised at cost in the statement of financial
performance.
Where inventories are acquired as part of a non-exchange transaction, the inventories are
measured at fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value or where
intended for distribution (or consumed in the production of goods for distribution) at no or a
nominal charge, the lower of cost and current replacement value.
The cost of inventories is assigned by using the weighted average cost basis.

24 Employee benefits
The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not recognised
and provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1.2. Conditional grants
2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Total grants received 34 3128 703 2 863 182
Provincial grants included in Total Grants received 3128 703 2863 182
2. Statutory Appropriation
MEMBERS' REMUNERATION 1978 1564
1978 1564
Actual Statutory Appropriation received 1978 1564
3. Departmental revenue
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 3.1 63 826 56 333
Fines, penalties and forfeits 3.2 110 43
Interest, dividends and rent on land 3.3 37 84
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 3.4 26 769 8 603
Total revenue collected 90 742 65 063
Less: Own revenue included in appropriation 90 742 50 220
Departmental revenue collected - 14 843
31 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Sales of goods and services produced by the department 63 826 56 333
Sales by market establishment 7 5
Other sales 63 819 56 328
Total 63 826 56 333
3.2 Fines, penalties and forfeits
Fines 110 43
Total 110 43
3.3 Interest, dividends and rent on land
Interest 37 84
Total 37 84
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34 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue

Total

4. Compensation of employees

4.1. Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages

Basic salary

Performance award

Service Based
Compensative/circumstantial
Periodic payments

Other non-pensionable allowances
Total

4.2. Social contributions

Employer contributions
Pension

Medical

UIF

Bargaining council

Official unions and associations
Insurance

Total

Total compensation of employees

Average number of employees

2021/22 2020/21
R'000 R'000

26 769 8 603

26 769 8 603
21015332 21795737
14 678 43 998

46 095 33 054
530 452 548 833

8 555 19 907

3 852473 2802 361
25 467 585 25 43890
2650 964 2701939
1545490 1473939
2982 4412

2 357 2 357

4 841 4913

15621 622

4208 155 4188 182
29 675 740 29 432 072
65712 68 279
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5. Goods and services
2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Administrative fees - 229
Advertising 7 185 22 235
Minor assets 5.1 273 531
Bursaries (employees) 80 504 116 172
Catering 6 588 12 498
Communication 108 006 289 450
Computer services 5.2 269 969 195 146
Consultants: Business and advisory services 8 318 38 979
Infrastructure and planning services 164 199 140 987
Legal services 22 442 5965
Contractors 2634 1264
Agency and support / outsourced services 1436 774 552 372
Audit cost — external 5.3 24 205 28 012
Inventory 5.4 697 022 519 097
Consumables 5.5 196 917 640 680
Operating leases 37 665 25181
Property payments 5.6 213 556 195 928
Rental and hiring - 4
Transport provided as part of the departmental activities 2505 3426
Travel and subsistence 5.7 78 386 74 958
Venues and facilities 446 5236
Training and development 93 387 67 885
Other operating expenditure 5.8 128 352 102 096
Total 3 579 333 3038 331

There has been a substantial increase in the expenditure of the items listed below. The main reason of
this increase was the settlement of accruals and payables that could not be paid by the end of 2020/21
financial year.

« Computer Services

» Legal fees

* Inventory

* Training and Development year

* Other operating expenditure.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the department recorded R1.4billion and R552milion for the
comparative year for its agency and support services respectively. The significant increase in the balance
is mainly driven by the fact that the first phase of the Presidential Youth Employment Initiative payments
only commenced in the last quarter of the prior year.

The phase was extended by a month, resulting in additional expenditure in the current year. The second
phase of the initiative also commenced in the current year resulting in a further increase in the balance.
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5.1. Minor assets
2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Tangible assets 273 531
Machinery and equipment 273 ] | 531
Total 273 531
5.2. Computer services
SITA computer services 35904 34 676
External computer service providers 234 065 160 470
Total 269 969 195 146
5.3. Audit cost — External
Regularity audits 20 186 26 689
Investigations 2 300 -
Computer audits 1719 1323
Total 24 205 28 012
5.4. Inventory
Learning and teaching support material 607 027 364 071
Other supplies 5.4.1 89 995 155 026
Total 697 022 519 097
5.4.1 Other Supplies
Assets for distribution 89 995 155 026
Machinery and equipment 99 3 805
School furniture 89 896 151 221
Total 89 995 155 026

accruals and payables that could not be paid by the end of 2020/21.

The Department is showing a substantial increase in the expenditure of this item due to the payment of
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5.5. Consumables
2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Consumable supplies 147 677 596 004
Uniform and clothing 115 646 575 080
Household supplies 8 054 4023
IT consumables - 106
Other consumables 23 977 16 795
Stationery, printing and office supplies 49 240 44 676
Total 196 917 640 680

The department procures COVID-19 essentials under Uniform and clothing item. In the 2020/21

financial year, the department acquired such essential through a central procurement system to cater
for all employees and all learners at school level. In the 2021/22 financial year, the Department
transferred funds to schools and items that were procured in 2021/22 were much less compared to items
procured in 2020 as they were only procured to augment what was already existing

5.6. Property payments
Property management fees 91 430 100 153
Property maintenance and repairs 56 999 28 461
Other 65 127 67 314
Total 213 556 195 928
5.7. Travel and subsistence
Local 78 386 74 952
Foreign - 6
Total 78 386 74 958
5.8. Other operating expenditure
Resettlement costs 5205 4 457
Other 123 147 97 639
Total 128 352 102 096

5.9. Remuneration of members of a commission or committee (Included in Consultants: Business
and advisory services)

Name of Commission / Committee No. of

members
Audit Committee 4 722 819
Total 722 819
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6. Interest and rent on land

2021/22 2020/21

Note R'000 R'000

Interest paid 1420 278
Total 1420 278

The Department was charged interest on late payments made. This was due to budget constraints the
Department is currently faced with.

7. Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities -
Departmental agencies and accounts ANNEXURE 1A 65 150 73 344
Higher education institutions ANNEXURE 1B 14 288 6 039
Non-profit institutions ANNEXURE 1C 2 418 607 3206 477
Households ANNEXURE 1D 272 625 231 959
Total 2770670 3517 819

Transfers to NPI — In 2020/21 financial year, the Department provided financial support to schools to
protect School Governing Body teacher posts, this support was not given in 2021/22 financial year, thus
the decrease in expenditure.

8. Expenditure for capital assets
Tangible assets 920 699 605 366
Buildings and other fixed structures 30 845 354 595 289
Machinery and equipment 28 75 345 10 077
Total 920 699 605 366

In 2020/21 financial year funds were reprioritised to respond to COVID-19 pandemic. In the year under
review COVID-19 regulations were relaxed to open the market and expenditure improved.

8.1. Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets
Voted Funds TOTAL
R'000 R'000
Tangible assets 920 699 920 699
Buildings and other fixed structures 845 354 845 354
Machinery and equipment 75 345 75 345
Total 920 699 920 699

The increase in expenditure of finance lease transport assets is due to the payment of long outstanding
accruals amounting to R43 million and the relaxation of COVID-19 regulations.
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8.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 2020/21
Voted Funds TOTAL
R'000 R'000
Tangible assets 605 366 605 366
Buildings and other fixed structures 595 289 595 289
Machinery and equipment 10 077 10 077
Total 605366 605 366
8.3. Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets
2021/22 2020/21
R'000 R'000
Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment | 69999 | | 6511
Total 69 999 6 511

Machinery and Equipment — The increase in expenditure of finance lease transport assets is due to the
payment of long outstanding accruals amounting to R43 million and the relaxation of COVID-19
regulations.

9. Unauthorised expenditure

9.1. Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure
Opening balance 2303 711 1270 319
Prior period error
As restated 2303711 1270 319
Unauthorised expenditure - discovered in the current year (as restated) 184 692 1033 392
Closing balance 2488 403 2303711

Analysis of closing balance

Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation 2488 403 2303 711

Total 2 488 403 2303 711
9.2 Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per economic classification

Current 2218 389 2 064 263

Transfers and subsidies 270 014 239 448

Total 2 488 403 2303 711
9.3. Analysis of unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation per type

Unauthorised expenditure relating to overspending of the 2488 403 2303711

vote or a main division within the vote

Total 2488 403 2303 711
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The Department is slowly recovering from the effects of national fiscal consolidation that affected the
Department’s ability to afford its current Cost of Employees financial obligations. This has resulted in
the Department overspending one of its main division within the vote.

9.4. Details of unauthorised expenditure — current year
2021/22
Disciplinary steps QJ
Incident taken/criminal proceedings R’000
Overspending in Programme 2 184 692
Total 184 692
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10.2. Other receivables
2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
(Group major categories, but list material items)
Receipt control account 3 -
Debit order exception 2 -
Receipt deposit 31 -
Debit order control 4319 -
Total 4 355 -
10.3. Impairment of receivables
Estimate of impairment of receivables 92 739 83 291
Total 92739 83 291

The impairment is for receivables for which there is an indication that it should be impaired, otherwise
an impairment for all receivables that are older than three years is recognised.

1. Voted Funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance 765 389 275690
Prior period error
As restated 765 389 275690
Transfer from statement of financial performance 191 868 (376 087)
(as restated)
Add: Unauthorised expenditure for current year 184 692 1033 392
aid during the year (154 438) (167 606)
Closing balance 987 511 765 389
12. Departmental Revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening balance 7 621 11 808
Prior period error
As restated 7621 11 808
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance - 14 843
(as restated)
Own revenue included in appropriation 90 742 50 220
Paid during the year (93 561) (69 250)
Closing balance 4 802 7 621
13. Bank Overdraft
Consolidated Paymaster General Account 1535 584 1403 039
Outstanding Payments 68 624 215 638
Total 1604 212 1618 677

The Department was granted an excess facility of R1.565 billion by Provincial Treasury and the
difference is due to outstanding payments that remained unpaid at year end.
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14. Payables — Current
2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Payables - current
Clearing accounts 14.1 29 442 27 663
Other payables 14.2 22 838 22 844
Total 52 280 50 507
14.1. Clearing Accounts
(Identify major categories, but list material
amounts)
Sal:ACB Recalls:CA 9 561 8078
Sal: Garnishee 952 2 358
Pension recoverable 3 588 2761
Sal Pension fund 296
Sal: Income tax 11 105 9894
GEHS refunds 4 236 4102
Medical,UIF 174
Total 29 442 27 663
14.2. Other Payables
(Identify major categories, but list material
amounts)
Receipt deposit 6
Prep dom cap asset 2
SARS payment 22 836 22 836
Prepmnt:Dom:Capital Asset:CA 2 -
Total 22 838 22 44
15. Net cash flow available from operating activities
Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial 191 868 (361 244)
Performance
Add back non-cash/cash movements not deemed 734 004 391 343
operating activities
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (31 211) (41 557)
Increase/(decrease) in payables — current 1773 14 170
Expenditure on capital assets 920 699 605 366
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (247 999) (236 856)
Own revenue included in appropriation 90 742 50 220
Net cash flow generated by operating activities 925 872 30099
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16. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Consolidated Paymaster General account (1604 212) (1618 677)
Total (1604 212) (1618 677)
17. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
17.1. Contingent liabilities
Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees  Annex 2A 28 780 28 815
Claims against the department Employees  Annex 2B 197 725 137 807
Intergovernmental payables Annex 4 128 128
(unconfirmed balances)
Other Annex 2B - 1048 078
Total 226 633 1214 828

State guarantees — These are
guarantees made by the
Department to various financial
institutions against which
employees make home loans.
These become liability to the
department only in the event that
the employee defaults on their
bank obligations

Legal claims- These are claims
made against the Department
which are still pending court
ruling

In 2020/21 the Labour Appeal Court (LAC) ruling that the Public Sector salary increase was unlawful and
invalid was appealed and referred to the Constitutional Court. In 2021/22 the Constitutional Court has
upheld a judgement that found 2018 Public Sector wage agreement to be invalid and unlawful.

17.2. Contingent Assets

Nature of contingent asset Note

Unconfirmed claims with other government Annex 3 17 809 6 624
departments

Total 17 809 6 624

The increase is due to the claim made to the Department Higher Education of R8.8 million for
Examination markers and Exam assistants for the administration of Adult Basic Education and Training
Level 4 examinations on their behalf. Included is also a claim to KZN Department of Education of R1.1
million for transferred educators.
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18. Capital Commitments

Buildings and other fixed structures 1178 819 1679 818
Total 1178 819 1679 818
19. Accruals and Payables not recognised
19.1. Accruals
2021/22 2020/21
R'000 R'000
Listed by economic 30 days 30+ days Total Total
classification
Goods and services 151 545 311 563 463 108 732 646
Transfers and subsidies - 138 769 138 769 342 481
Capital assets - 26 288 26 288 62 956
Total 151 545 476 620 628 165 1138 083
Listed by programme level Note
Administration 91 489 46 057
Public Ordinary School Education 357 601 1014 378
Public Special School Education 1155 -
Early childhood Development 708 13 281
Infrastructure Development 26 288 62 956
Examination and Education Related Services 150 924 1411
Total 628 165 1138 083
| 2020-21 Accruals were Adjusted by R24 533 million
19.2. Payables not recognised
Listed by economic
classification 30 days 30+ days Total Total
Goods and services 512 518 594 220 1106 738 635 311
Capital assets 128 785 128 785 77 880
Total 512 518 723 005 1235 523 713 191
Listed by programme level Note R'000 R'000
Administration 451 817 131 905
Public Ordinary School Education 624 400 411 258
Public Special School Education 2639 5543
Early childhood Development 628 12 841
Infrastructure Development 128 785 77 880
Examination and Education Related Services 27 254 73764
Total 1235523 713 191

20-21 Payables were adjusted by R366 thousand.

S\ N

Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

PAGE 190



EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Included in the above totals are the following:
Confirmed balances with departments

Confirmed balances with other government entities
Total

20. Employee Benefits

Leave entitlement
Service bonus
Performance awards
Capped leave

Other

Total

2021/22 2020/21

Note R'000 R'000
Annex 4 54 669 175012
Annex 4 - 16 732
54 669 191 744

360 316 585 008

900 067 912 984

- 21388

2304 473 2 336 467

55754 224 136

3620610 4 079 983

Other relates to Compensation of Employees related accruals.

2021/22 financial vear.

Performance awards: The Department of Public Service Administration approved a decremental
adjustment of the percentage that can be allocated from the remuneration budgets for the payment of
Performance for all categories of employees with 1.5% and 0% approved for 2020/21 and 2021/22
financial years respectively. The Department has no intentions of paying Performance Bonuses for the

21. Lease Commitments

21.1. Operating Leases

2021/22

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than five years

Total lease commitments

2020/21

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than five years

Total lease commitments

Buildings and

other fixed Total
structures

R'000 R'000

12 959 12 959

12 556 12 556

25 515 25 515
Buildings and

other fixed Total
structures

R'000 R'000

13003 13003

24 682 24 682

37 685 37 685
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21.2. Finance Leases
2021/22 Machinery and Total
equipment

R'000 R'000
Not later than 1 year 259 684 259 684
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 314 428 314 428
Later than five years - -
Total lease commitments 574 112 574 112

There has been no payment made on the Sizwe/Sita tablet contract as Sita requested the matter to be
decided by the courts. Sita has not yet taken the matter to court as an applicant

2020/21 Machinery and Total
equipment
R'000 R'000
Not later than 1 year 421 343 421 343
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 323 497 323 497
Later than five years - -
Total lease commitments 744 840 744 840
22. Irregular expenditure
22.1. Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
2021/22 2020/21
R'000 R'000
Opening balance 1815100 1788073
Prior period error -
As restated 1815100 1788073
Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to prior year 22.2 3164 24 773
Add: Irregular expenditure - relating to current year 22.2 19 583 2 254
Closing balance 1837 847 1815100
Analysis of closing balance
Current year 22 747 27 027
Prior years 1815100 1790 327
Total 1837 847 1815100
22.2. Details of current and prior year irregular expenditure — added current year (under
determination and investigation)
Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
Infrastructure Determination tests are being conducted 22747
Total 22747
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The irregular expenditure of R3.163 million incurred relates to subsequent payments which were made in
the current year for infrastructure projects identified from prior years. the irregular expenditure of

R19 583 incurred and reported in 2021-22 relates payment made for infrastructure projects without
proper approval of variation orders.

22.3 Details of irregular expenditure under assessment (not included in the main note)

2021/22
R'000

Incident
Goods & services 43 968
Infrastructure 170 141
Human Resources 268
Total 214 377

Finalisation for performance of assessments to confirm whether these transactions meet the definition of
irregular expenditure could not be concluded in the 2021/22.

22.4 Prior period error

Prior period error Note 2020/21
R'000

Relating to 2020/21 16 394

Additional expenditure due to 2021 audit findings (misstatement (23)

of confirmed infrastructure balance)

Additional expenditure due to 2021 audit findings (misstatement 24 409

of confirmed infrastructure balance)

Additional expenditure due to 2021 audit findings (misstatement (7 992)

of condoned contracts in prior year confirmed infrastructure

balances)

Total 16 394

22.5 Details of the non-compliance where an institution is involved in an inter-institutional
arrangement
Department of Public Works 24 486

23. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

23.1. Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure

2021/22 2020/21
R’000 R’000

Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance 209 350 193 200
As restated 209 350 193 200
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure — relating to current year 24.2 7 004 16 150
Closing balance 216 354 209 350

| Include discussion here where deemed relevant
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23.2. Details of current and prior year fruitless and wasteful expenditure — added current year (under
determination and investigation)

2021/22
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal
Incident proceedings R’000
NMB municipality interest paid 533
Fleet services interest paid 603
Infrastructure interest 5584
Fleet interest(adjustment) 284
Total 7 004
24. Related party transactions
2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000
Payments made
Goods and services 8 417 14 184
Total 8 417 14 184
In kind goods and services provided/received
List in kind goods and services between department
and related party
Rental of buildings paid by DPW 16 366 16 495
Municipal services for buildings by by DPW 548 628
Total 16 914 17 123
2021/22 2020/21
Note R’'000 R’'000
Year end balances arising from revenue/payments
Receivables from related parties - -
Payables to related parties Annex 5 38 417 147 645
Total 38 417 147 645
ANNEXURE 4
Department 2021/22 2020/21
Social development 13 -
Public works 18 889 99 191
Transport 19 322 43 893
Health 65 -
Office of the Premier 128 4 561
Total 38 417 147 645

as at year end.

The above amounts are payables to the listed Eastern Cape provincial departments for services received
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25. Key management personnel

2021/22 2020/21
No. of R'000 R'000
Individuals
Political office bearers (provide detail 1 1978 1564
below)
Officials:
Levels 15 and 16 3 5 407 6 431
Level 14 15 16 557 19510
Level 13 65 61 096 58 000
Family members of key management 48 25600 20 513
personnel
Total 110 638 106 018
26. Provisions
Long service awards 101 594 47 750
Total 101 594 47 750
26.1. Reconciliation of movement in provisions — 2021/22
Total
Long service awards provisions
R'000 R'000
Opening balance 47 750 47 750
Increase in provision 101 594 101 594
Settlement of provision (47 750) (47 750)
Closing balance 101 594 101 594
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Reconciliation of movement in provisions - 2020/21
Long service

awards Total provisions

R'000 R'000

Opening balance 47 867 47 867
Increase in provision 47 750 47 750
Settlement of provision (47 867) 47 867)
Closing balance 47 750 47 750

The provision made is for employee who will be qualifying and paid long service awards in
2022-23 financial year.

The increase in the amount provided is due to the increase in number to be provided for. Last financial yet
the number was 2 361, this financial year it is 6 316.
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2022

29. Intangible Capital Assets
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2022
Opening Closing
balance balance
R'000 R'000
SOFTWARE 11 078 11 078
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 11 078 11 078

a. Movement for 2020/21
MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

MARCH 2021
Opening Closing
balance balance
R'000 R'000
SOFTWARE 11078 11 078
TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 11 078 11 078

S\ N

Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/. PAGE 202



€202 YaieN T€ Agq pa1ajdwod aq pjnom suollediisaaul ayi 1eyl pajedidijue si i
*8U13502 pawWasp 4O UOII9|dW0I |NJSSIIINS 0 [BIIUID UOIIeWIOUI JISE] JO AYljIge|leAe
-uoU 01 3Np S1ep UOISSIWANS SIUBW1L]S |eldueUly AQ pasi|eul} 8¢ 10U P|NO an|eA
J1ey ‘syoafoud zz8T Y3 Jo s109foud 615 "pJepuels ysed payipolA Jo TT 491deyd jo

2/ ydes3eaed yum aul| uj ‘sanssi Adeda| 03 anp syuawndop 3uizioddns a3enbape Aq
payoddns 3¢ jJouued $3502 3soym s3a3foad gg8T 404 1500 pawaap Jusawipiedap syl

181 96€ 01 ceel syo9foad anjen aiej |e3o |
GO6 €68 | 615 (ssaub0id ul anjeA Jieq) 109 JB-saINjoNJIS paxiy Jayjo pue sbuipjing
[AAAAVE] €lc | anje/ Jie4-sainjonuis paxiy Jayjo pue sbuipjing
000.M :SMOJ||0} se ssaiboud ul si Juswiysijqe)sa anjeA llej 3SOYM S}oSSe pue anjeA ey

je palLIes sjasse |ejides ajqibue) ajqeAoww 8y} Jo [e)J0} SAOQE a3} Ul papn|ouj
anjep JaquinN

uolnjenjea jo ssasoud e ul s}assy |ejideq ajqibue] ajgeAoww]

Ggeg eee el 0€0 LLS 1S/, 2S99 808 L6l €1 S13SSV 1V1IdVI FT19I9NVL IT9VAONNNI TVLIOL
GEG €€€ €1 | 080 Z1§ 1G/ 259 | | s808/6l¢€l sbulp|ing |euapisaJ-UON
geg eee el 0€0 21S 1S/ 299 808 /6l €l SFUNLIONYLS d3IXId ¥3IHLO ANV SONIAIng
000.4 000. 000.d 000.4
aouejeq Buiso|) sjesodsiqg suonippy aouejeq Buiuado

€202 HOXYVIN L€ A3AN3 ¥VIA JHL JO04 ¥3LSIOFY LIASSV dHdd S1IASSV 1V.LIdVI IT19IONVL T9VAOINNI NI LNIJINIAON L°0€

sjassy |eydeq ajqibue] ajqeroww] ‘0¢

2202 Yoa1eyy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy

SANIWFLVLS TVIONVNIH TVNNNVY FHL OL S3LON

9310AN

NOILYINA3 40 LNJWLHVdId 3dVI NYTFLSVI

PAGE 203

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

Eastern Cape Department of Education

NX



89/ ¥L€

000.d
anjep

876 9¢ JeJ WO0J pue siaquinu s1rafoid aaey jou
op Aays se Ajiauapl 03 Asea jou aue 3p3(oud
950 1S asay1) sJaquinu 123foad ou yiim syoafoud-

(N2> 01 pa1edJewdp Sem
10141SIP 9Y3 Uaym pauiewad syafosd asay])
6LLT¢E s109[oud Ayjedpiuni 11431S1Q A UOSIS-
(s134 01 pasuajsuesl uaaq aney pjnoys

19 Je3A |BIDUBULY ZTOT 94049 PI139)d
€68 79 9Jam s3o9foud asayl) syafoud 1IHA-

1SISSE 01 |eId1440 Ue Pa1edO||e 10U Sey
1ua3e Suinuawsa|dw] JUBAS|3J Y} pUE pUNO}
J0u spuswndop 3uisoddns asoym s3oafoad-
€99 9¢1 :smojjo} se dn
opew aJe uolesiisanul Japun s}asse 3yl

:smoJ|o} se dn apew aie uonebisaAul Japun sjesse ay |

LEL saunjonys paxi Jayjo pue sbuipjing
:uonebiysaaul
Japun ale jey) sjosse ale 19)s1bal Josse ay) Jad sjosse |ejides a|qibue) ajgeaowwi ay) Jo [B}0) dAOGE dY) Ul papn|ou|

JaquinN
uonebiysaaul Japun sjassy |eyided 9jqibue] ajqeroww]

2202 Yoa1eyy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy
SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 TYNNNV FHL OL STLON

9310AN
NOILYINA3 40 LNJWLHVdId 3dVI NYTFLSVI

PAGE 204

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

Eastern Cape Department of Education

NX



808 /6l €I (rse6 09) vZ6 9.1 8€8 180 €1 S13SSV 1V1IdVO 319I9NVL ITaVAONNI TVLOL
808 /61 €l _ (¥56 09) 26 9.1 8€8 180 €l sbuipiinq |epuspisal-UON
808 /61 €I (¥56 09) 26 9.1 8€8 180 €1 SFUNLONYLS Ad3XId ¥3IHLO ANV SONIATINg
000.d 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.d

aouejeq Buiso|) sjesodsiq suonlippy 10449 aouejeq BuiuadQ

pouad Joud

1202 HOYVIN 1€ AJAN3 ¥VIA FHL JOd ¥3LSIO3Y 13SSV d3dd S1ASSV TVLIdVI FT19IONVL IT9VAONNI NI LNIJINIAON

12/020¢ 10} JUsWdAON

89/ v1€

9ev a1

2202 Yoa1eyy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy
SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 TYNNNV FHL OL STLON

9310AN
NOILYINA3 40 LNJWLHVdId 3dVI NYTFLSVI

sjusawnaop
8uioddns 1noyiim syoafoad Adedaq mda-
9d02s wJ1ju0od 03 syuswnoop 3uioddns
J3yuny el pue 3dods paplodas walsAs ay3
w0} s1ayip 9do3s paljlian asoym s303foad-
39eq

PAGE 205

Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

NX



629 60¢-

629 60¢-

G8lL 9¥9 ¢

G8L 919 ¢

986 /8€

986 18¢

000.3

‘painooud pey juswedsp ay) 18y}
19SSE 8] JO 8njeA 8yl pajeISIano SIY] "18SSe 8y JO 1S00 8y} 0] pasije)ides Ajoal1i0oul aiem ainjeu ul jeyde)-uou aie Yolym ‘s}soo aoUBUSIUIB|

UOoI}eo1ISSE|OSIW S}SOD ddUBUUIRW JO UOI}OBII0D

‘goue|eq Buiuado sy} 0} Jusuisnlpe siyy ul paynsal

yolym ‘poyiawl s3s09 Juswaoe|dal pajeroaidap Buisn sjoafoid ainjoniiseljul pajoaye ay) s}soo ay) Buluiwiaap jo aAneuls)e ue paljdde pue
pajosje uswuedsp ay) ‘wajgqoid Siy} SA[0SaJ 0] JOpIO U] "9|geljaJ S}9SSE ainjonJiseljul JO S}s0d 8y} ainseaw 0} Juswiedsap ay} Joy a|qissodu
11 sayew yoiym ‘syoafoud uo s1s09 siapiaoid aoiaias jeuolssajold Jo ssauala|dwod Bulinsua Jo walsAs aAey Jou Sa0p pIp Juswyedsp ay|

pauiuualap Ajgerjal aq jJou pjnod s3sod asoym sjoafoid 10j }S09 pawsap JO uoljeuIwdlaq

"spJepuels yseD pauipo oyl Aq paniwiad jou si siy] “sjuswnoop Buiuoddns Jo yoe| 0} anp sjosloid uo siepiroid 8o1AI8S [BUOISSS)0Id JO S)S0D

8y} Joj Bununoooe pue Bululwislap Ul %g| JO S)ewiss ue pasn uswyedsp ay| "Apossiooul panjea Aisnoiraid sem syosfoid ayj Jo 1800 ay |

%8| Je pajew}sa Ajjeniul S}S0D [eUOISS3J0.id JO [BSIOADY

‘pouiad [ejoueul) z2z/L202
pue Lz/0zZ0Z 8y} Jo voe] 8y} ul paojagjjal Jou ale aiojaiay) pue puoAaq pue porad 0z/6L0Z O} djeja. siolio poriad Joud asay |

Jodus pouad oud jo ainjeN

ajoN Jo419 pouad toud

2202 Yoa1eyy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy
SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 TYNNNV FHL OL STLON

9310AN
NOILYINA3 40 LNJWLHVdId 3dVI NYTFLSVI

PAGE 206

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

Eastern Cape Department of Education

NX



G.609L1

9¢8 9¢

928 9¢

€66 680 |-

€66 680 |-

]

jejol

pJepue)s Buiunoooe ay) Aq palinbal s se uoljebisaAul Joapun S}assy, Se PasO[osIp JoU OS[e a1am
Aay] "uonew.lojul Jo 3oe| Jo asneoaq JaysiBal jJosse oy} Ul papn|oul Jou aJam 8)e)s Jo ueblo Jayjoue Aq pajuswaldwi aiem yoiym syosfoid uieps)

19)s16a1 jJosse paxiy ay) wody papiwo Ajsnoiraud syoafoad a0y Buiunoosoy

*19]s1694 19SSE 8y Ul J8)sIBal 18sse ay) Ul JUNOWE 1094100Ul 18 pa)sod Seoue)suUl 8WOoS Ul pue pajesljdnp aiam sjosloid

sJoui9 Bunsod j09foad jo uoidaLI0n

2202 Yoa1eyy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy
SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 TYNNNV FHL OL STLON

9310AN
NOILYINA3 40 LNJWLHVdId 3dVI NYTFLSVI

PAGE 207

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

Eastern Cape Department of Education

NX



€10 /8 G8. 8¢l lejol

ssaibouid-ul
€10 /8 G8/ 821 -ylom [eyideos ul pspnjoul Jo0U 810ja1ay) pue pua JeaA je pied Jou Jnq paAladal seledleo ssalbold o) Bunejal sjunowy
000.4 000.d dIM [esdeq o} Buijejas pasiubooal jJou sojqehed
12/020¢ ze/ieoe

"ss9004d juswalinooid By} JO JUSWISOUSWIWOISI BY} 9)BISS908U Uy} PINOM J8)je| 8] "S}OBJIUOD JO UOIIeUIULIS)
se ||lom se olwepued gL-QIAOD 84} ‘Siulejsuod 196png Jo jnsal e se ale ssaibold-ul-}iop) [endeD ul usaq aAey ley) syoafoid jo uonesijeuly ayy ul sAejap ay L

TSG 1L19¢€ (90zZ 689) €18 €.l 988 986G € Iv1i0l
265 1/9¢ (902 689) €18¢€./ 988 986G € saunjonyis paxiy Jayjo pue sbuipjing
000.Y 000.Y 000.Y 000.Y / Xauuy

2202 Yyoiel Lg pajeulws) dIM 1202 Iudy | ajJoN

aouejeg sjoenjuo) [ (Y  JeaA juaiin) aouejeg

Buiso|9 9y} o} s)assy) Buiuadp

asn 1o} Apeay

€202 HOYVNN LE LV SV SSTUD0Ud"NI"MHOM TV LIdVO
ssaiboud-ui-yuopp jended "z 0s

2202 Yoa1eyy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy

SANIWFLVLS TVIONVNIH TVNNNVY FHL OL S3LON

9310AN

NOILYINA3 40 LNJWLHVdId 3dVI NYTFLSVI

PAGE 208

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

Eastern Cape Department of Education

NX



"ss800.d Juswainooid ayj JO JUBLWBIUBWIUIOIS. BY] 8]BJISS809U UdY] P[NOM J8}je] 9l "S}OBJJUOD JO UOHRUILLIS]
se jjem se ojwepued 6 L-GINOQD 8y} ‘Sjuledisuod jobpnq Jo }nse. e se ale ssaiboid-ul-3ioM [ejden ul usaq aaey jey) sposfoid jo uonesijeuly ay; ul sAejep ey

988 986G € (91€ €02) 189 L0S - 125882 € Tv1i0l
988 986 € (91€ €02) 189 10S - 126882 € seinjonu)s paxiy Jayjo pue sbuip|ing
000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 7 xauuy

1202 Yo24e|y LS pajeuiwa)l dIM louaid pouad Joud aouejeg bBuiuadp 9JON

aouejeg sjoenuon [ (¥y  Jesp juaun)

Buiso|9 9y} o} s)assy)

asn 1o} Apeay

1202 HOXUVIN L€ 1V SV SSTUO0Ud-NI"MHUOM 1V.LIdVI

2202 Yoa1eyy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy
SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 TYNNNV FHL OL STLON

9310AN

NOILYINA3 40 LNJWLHVdId 3dVI NYTFLSVI

PAGE 209

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/

Eastern Cape Department of Education

NX



EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

31. Principal-agent arrangements

a. Department acting as the principal

Eastern Cape Department of Public Work
Development bank of South Africa
Eastern Cape Development Corporation
Independent development Trust

Office of The Premier

The Mvula Trust

Coega Development Corporation
Amatola Water Board

Total

2021/22
R'000

520 143
41 861
2087
98 964
12 664
3175
137 547
8 657

825 098

2020/21
R'000

152 994
36 218
844

55 596
4 468
2502
227 092
8978

488 692

Agency fees included in the above amount
IMPLEMENTING AGENT AMOUNT

Amatotal Water 387
Coega 11 788
DBSA 321

IDT 528

TMT 256

Total 13 350

The Department uses DPW, DBSA, IDT, TMT, OTP, CDC and AW as implementing agents for facilitation
of the infrastructure related projects. There has been no changes in the contracts from the prior period.
These are specialists which are used due to capacitation of the department and is more cost effective as

a result of economies of scale

Current liabilities

Accruals & Payables
IMPLEMENTING AGENT AMOUNT
Amatola Water 3076
Coega 25 568

DBSA 18 889

IDT 24 974

T™T 384

ECDC 624

DPW 20 898
TOTAL 94 413
Current assets
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EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

There are 4 credit notes that we submitted by IA’s at year end amounting to R542 000. These are

included in the accruals and payables

There are no cost implications for the principal if the principal-agent arrangement is terminated. If the
agent is not performing the projects are transferred to the other implementing agent

32. Prior period errors

Correction of prior period errors

Assets:

Movement in immovable capital assets —
opening balance (additions)

Immovable capital assets CWIP —
opening balance

Payables not recognised relating to
CwIP

Movable major assets

Net effect

Liabilities:

Capital accruals and payables
Reclassification of SIU provision
SIU provision to payables

Net effect

Other:
Irregular expenditure
Net effect

S\ N

Note

30.1

30.2

19.2

28

Note

Note

23.2

Amount bef Prior period Restated

error error Amount
correction

R’000 R’000 R’000

11 141 394 1760 975 12 902 369

1280 855 2 007 665 3288 520

- 87 013 87 013

280 596 (7 425) 273 171

12 702 845 3 848 228 16 651 073

Amount bef Prior period Restated

error error Amount
correction

R’000 R’000 R’000

165 755 (24 919) 140 836

16 732 (16 732) -

- 16 732 16 732

182 487 (24 919) 157 568

Amount bef Prior period Restated

error correction error Amount

R’000 R’000 R’000

1798 707 16 394 1815 101

1798 707 16 394 1815101

Eastern Cape Department of Education || ANNUAL REPORT 2021/. PAGE 211




vv.180LC 28l €98 ¢ ¥0S €€ 661 961 ¢ £€0.82L € €0.821 € (zz1 s02) LS 06 ¥8C €VC €
uels Ayjigesiq
|93u] punojold
1€29¢C 6.0 ¥€ %L 786 6 626 €C 606 €€ 606 €€ G06 9 ¥00 LC JsulesT
awuwelboid
pajelbayu|
SHIOM
6.C ¥ OLL Y %08 G668 169 € 986G v 98S v 98S ¥ olland Umvcmwxm_
BES
|BID0S)SYIOAN
066 ¢t 8¢l 6¢ %001 A 09/ 6¢ 16/ 6¢ 16/ 6¢ 16/ 6¢ 2llgnd pepusix3
awwelsboid
uonuInN
vec L9e L 19¢ 1/€ L %001 €98 G 2G88 eV L SLLEVr L SlLevy L SLLevr L [00YOS |euoleN
ueln
961 L¢ Ge0 vE %V6 020 ¢ (2°WA%4 69¢ 0G 69¢ 0S 08¢ S 680 Sv SAlv pue AIH
el
aJnjonusequ|
a8l cee L 89 0YE L %18 689 L6¢C crevic L L€990G | L€990S | (zz1 S02) 9./ 0. 1.6 0¥9 L uoheonp3
el
ABojouyos] pue
929 vE Slc ey %S9 9lo I¢ 089 8¢ 969 69 969 65 08S . 9Ll ¢s 90UaIdS ‘syiey
000, 000. % 000, 000. 000, 000, 000. 000, 000,
ydep INVYO
Aq juads sjuelo 40 IWVN
juawedap 1oV spuny juswyiedap | juswyiedap |elouln0IdioY
Aq juads anuaA’dy | ajqejieAe | (Buipuadsiano) Aquads | Aq paaiadal a|gejleAy sjuawysnipy anuaAay
junowy JO uoIsIAIg J0 9, / l|apun junowy jJunowry lejol viod SI9AQ |10y Jo uoisialg
12/0202 IN3dS NOILVIOT1V LNV
A3AITOTY SLINVYUO TVNOILIANOD 40 LNJNILVIS €e

2202 Ya1epy Lg papus 1eaf ay} 1oy

SAINIWFLVLS TVIONVNIH TVNNNVY FHL O1 S31ON

9310AN

NOILYONAF 40 LNJWLHVdId IdVO NYTFLSVI

PAGE 212

ANNUAL REPORT 2021/.

Eastern Cape Department of Education

AX



EASTERN CAPE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

VOTE 6

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2022

34. BROAD BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT PERFORMANCE

Information on compliance with the B-BBEE Act is included in the annual report under the section titled B-

BBEE Compliance Performance Information.

35. COVID 19 Response Expenditure

2021/22 2020/21
Note R'000 R'000

ANNEXURE 7
Goods and services 115103 601 808
Transfers and subsidies 65 192 279 835
180 295 881 643
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CONTACTS

Steve Vukile Tshwete Education Complex
Zone 6, Zwelitsha, 5608

Private Bag X 0032, Bhisho ,5605

Tel: 040 608 472

Citizen care line:080 121 2570

www.eceducation.gov.za

PR136/2021
ISBN: 978-0-621-49457-0



